
TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
Weaverville Community Room at Town Hall 
30 South Main Street, Weaverville, NC 28787 

Livestreaming of meeting via the “Live” Tab on the Town’s YouTube Channel –  
Click this link: Youtube.com Weaverville NC government Live streams ; and 
Meeting recordings viewable under the “Videos” Tab 
(unless technical difficulties are experienced) 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA 

Monday, January 27, 2025 
Regular Meeting at 6:00 pm 

 

General public comments may be submitted during the meeting or in writing in advance on any meeting topic or any other item of interest related to the Town of 
Weaverville. Normal rules of decorum apply to all comments and duplicate comments are discouraged. The general public comments section of the meeting will 
be limited to 20 minutes. Comments during the meeting are generally limited to 3 minutes. You must be recognized before giving your comment. Written 
comments timely received will be provided to Town Council and read during the 20-minute general public comment period as time allows. Written comments are 
limited to no more than 450 words and can be submitted as follows: (1) by putting your written comment in a drop box at Town Hall (located at front entrance and 
back parking lot) at least 6 hours prior to the meeting, (2) by emailing to public-comment@weavervillenc.org  at least 6 hours prior to the meeting, (3) by mailing 
your written comment (received not later than Monday’s mail delivery) to: Town of Weaverville, PO Box 338, Weaverville, NC, 28787, Attn: Public Comments. For 
more information please call (828)645-7116. 

  Pg # Presenter 
    

1. Call to Order .........................................................................................................  Mayor Fitzsimmons 
    

2. Approval/Adjustments to the Agenda ................................................................  Mayor Fitzsimmons 
    

3. Conflict of Interests Statement …………………………………………………………….………….  Mayor Fitzsimmons 
    

4. Consent Agenda ..................................................................................................  Interim Manager Harris 
 A. December 10, 2024, Town Council Workshop Meeting Minutes …………………. 

B. December 18, 2024, Town Council Special Called Meeting Minutes ……………. 
C. Monthly Tax Report, Refunds/Releases ………………………………………………………. 
D. Conflicts of Interest Policy ………………………..………………………………………………… 
E. Budget Amendments – Police and Community Center .……………..…..…………… 
F. Board Appointments – Planning Board and Tree Board ……………….……………… 
G. Cooperative Interlocal Agreement – Wayfinding Signs ………………………………. 
H. Comprehensive Land Use Plan Update ……………………………………………………….. 
I. Code Amendments–Ch. 20–Parking, Tree Preservation, Setbacks – Set PHs… 

2 
7 
8 

15 
18 
20 
23 
39 
51 

 

    

5. Interim Town Manager’s Report ……….……………………………………………………….…… 71 Interim Manager Harris 
    

6. General Public Comments (see below for additional information) …...….………….  Mayor Fitzsimmons 
    

7. Discussion & Action Items   
 A. Annexation/Zoning – AdventHealth ………………….…………………………………………. 

B. Annexation/Zoning – 21 Parker Cove Road ………………………………………….……… 
C. Non-Discrimination Ordinance ………….………………………………………………………… 
D. Hurricane Relief Donations from Weaverville, California …………….………………. 
E. Human Resources Audit ……………………………………………………………………………… 
F. Quarterly Report – Finance ………………………….……….…………………………………….. 
G. Quarterly Report – Planning ………………………………..………………………………………. 

73 
90 
97 

112 
113 
121 
138 

Interim Manager Harris 
Interim Manager Harris 
Mayor Fitzsimmons 
Mayor Fitzsimmons 
Interim Manager Harris 
Finance Director Dozier 
Planning Director Eller 

    

8. Closed Session  Mayor Fitzsimmons 
 N.C.G.S. §143-318.11(a)(3). To consult with an attorney employed or retained by the 

public body in order to preserve the attorney-client privilege between the attorney 
and the public body, which privilege is hereby acknowledged; and N.C.G.S. §143-
318.11(a)(6). To consider the qualifications, competence, performance, character, 
fitness, conditions of appointment, or conditions of initial employment of an individual 
public officer or employee or prospective public officer or employee. 

  

    

9. Adjournment ........................................................................................................  Mayor Fitzsimmons 
 

https://www.youtube.com/@weavervillencgovernmentcha8063/streams
mailto:public-comment@weavervillenc.org


Town Council Workshop - Dec. 10 2024 Minutes
Tuesday, December 10, 2024 at 6:00 PM 
Town Council Chambers, Town Hall, 30 S. Main St. Weaverville, N.C. 

1. CALL TO ORDER
Roll Call - Town Council Present: Vice Mayor John Chase, Council members Doug Jackson,
Catherine Cordell, Peter McGuire, and Dee Lawrence

Absent: Mayor Patrick Fitzsimmons and Michelle Wood

Staff Present- Interim Town Manager Scottie Harris, Public Works Director Dale Pennell,
Water Plant Superintendent Randall Wilson, Finance Director Tonya Dozier, Attorney
Jennifer Jackson, Town Clerk Tamara Mercer, and A/V Coordinator Lauren Ward.

2. Water Requests 

2.1 75 Cole Road Renewal Request 
Public Works Director Pennell provided an overview of the project for 75 
Cole Road apartments noting the reasons for the water renewal request. He 
reviewed the deadlines over the course of the project, and highlighted 
updates to the project, specifically for smaller units of one-bedroom 
apartments. The developer is requesting less water allocation of 64,000 
gallons. Which is a decrease from 67,000 gallons.  

The Public Works Department has reviewed the application and determined 
there is adequate water capacity available to serve the development and 
Mr. Pennell recommended approval of the water renewal. 

Motion to approve the renewal of the water commitment located at 75 Cole 
Road based on the updated request for 64,000 gallons per day. 
Moved by: John Chase 

Aye Peter McGuire, Doug Jackson, Dee Lawrence, John 
Chase, and Catherine Cordell 

Carried 5-0 

2.2 40 Doan Road Request 

2

TOWN OF ~ 

WEA VERVILLE 



Mr. Pennell reviewed application submitted by CBG Engineers for 4,000 GPD 
to serve a 10-home single family subdivision located at 40 Doan Road, 
property that is approximately 3 acres.  He noted the subject site plan. 

Mr. Pennell said the applicant is aware that a 6” public water line will need 
to be extended for approximately 250 feet at the developer’s expense along 
Doan Road from the town’s 10” water line in Doan Road which terminates at 
the meter vault. 

The subject site is located outside of town limits.  The town has typically 
required a developer who requests water to apply for annexation when the 
proposed project is outside town limits.  However, in this case, Town staff 
believes that it might not make sense for the Town to annex the site in order 
to supply municipal services that far outside of the Town’s primary borders 
or to add to the Town’s satellite annexation percentage, especially when 
considering the 10% maximum satellite annexation limitation and other 
larger tracts that have expressed preliminary interest in annexing.  

Staff can recommend the 4,000-gallon water allocation even though the site 
is located outside of town limits as this is similar to the channel crossing 
past June Bug. In that case, the town granted the water without required 
annexation. Mr. Pennell added that Council may not require the annexation 
due to the distance from Town limits.  

Motion to approve the water allocation request for 40 Doan Road 
Subdivision as presented and without requiring annexation. 
Moved by: Dee Lawrence 

Aye Peter McGuire, Doug Jackson, Dee Lawrence, John 
Chase, and Catherine Cordell 

Carried 5-0 

2.3 AdventHealth Request 
Mr. Pennell reviewed the AdventHealth Buncombe County Campus request 
for water commitment serving a four-building complex located at the 
hospital campus adjoining US 25-70 and Ollie Weaver Road.  He explained 
the layout of the site plan which is on the property that was previously 
planned for 244 apartments. The project engineers initially requested 
98,000 gallons, but upon assessment, the new request is for a total of only 
63,500 per day which is actually less for the hospital than the apartment 
complex across the roadway. Public Works Department has determined that 
adequate water capacity is available to serve the request. The developer 
will extend the town's 12 water line along Ollie Weaver Road to their site at 
the developer's expense. 

There was a question-and-answer period regarding, campus layout, number 
of beds, (101 beds), and medical office buildings for 57 practitioners, 
medical facility, ambulatory usage and allocations based on their other 
similar facilities.  

Motion to approve the water commitment/extension request for 
AdventHealth Buncombe County Camp conditioned upon all parcels within 
the project being annexed into the Town's municipal limits. 

3



Moved by: Doug Jackson 

Aye Peter McGuire, Doug Jackson, Dee Lawrence, John 
Chase, and Catherine Cordell 

Carried 5-0 

2.4 21 Parker Cove Road Request 
Mr. Pennell reviewed the request for water allocation for a 45-lot 
subdivision submitted by Greenstreet Capital Partners with a request for 
18,000 gallons per day. He noted the site plan layout.  

The water lines will be required to be a minimum 6” diameter with fire 
hydrants, to be installed at the developer’s expense and to be turned over 
to the town for ownership and maintenance upon completion.  The 
preliminary site plan shows the proposed lines to be installed in a private 
road right-of-way (Water Leaf Drive) outside the project boundary, within 
the NCDOT road right-of-way for Parker Cove Road adjoining the project, 
and within several 20’ wide private alleys and roads with unknown widths 
on the property.    

The Public Works Director has found that there is sufficient capacity within 
the Town’s water system to provide this project with water without 
affecting existing customers.  He did include that the required 20-foot utility 
right-of-way was not shown on the plans 

There was a question-and-answer period regarding utility easements, the 
alleyway, the rights-of-way, waterlines, Water Leaf Drive and timeline for the 
Town accepting the roadways, and ROW conflicts. 

Vice Mayor Chase noted the recommendations as submitted by the Planning 
Board, and there was general consensus to table the request until the 
departments and staff can address the concerns as referenced above. 

Motion to table the item water request located at 21 Parker Cove Road until 
more information and clarification regarding the aforementioned concerns 
were addressed. 
Moved by: Doug Jackson 

Aye Peter McGuire, Doug Jackson, Dee Lawrence, John 
Chase, and Catherine Cordell 

Carried 5-0 

3. Water Meter Conversion Project Update
Mr. Pennell discussed the Water Maintenance Division matter regarding the conversion from
the radio-read water meters to the cellular-read meters. Casey Roberts, Water Distribution
Superintendent, was also present.

Pennell said the radio-read meter project was completed and fully installed in 2020. With
the new meters the staff accomplished meter reading in three days instead of a week. Water
bill discrepancies and usage discrepancies were also correctly addressed.  The radio-read
meters are no longer available and the Town is having to switch to cellular-read meters with
data automatically uploaded. The Town recently purchased 88 new meters and 60 were

4



installed and tested. The staff training is completed, and reception is excellent. The town 
needs to replace over 3,000 meters in addition to adding new customers into the system. 

There was further discussion on costs, supplies, product warranty, cellular service, 5-G and 
reception frequencies, inference and licensures, and the timeframe for installation using a 
vendor. Mr. Pennell approximated the costs for this upgrade at $982,000, so this is a large 
financial project that will have to be addressed in the upcoming FY25/26 budget..  

Vice Mayor Chase asked staff to provide several options for Town Council to consider during 
budget deliberation including doing the project in phases over several budget cycles and 
doing the project all at once. 

4. Lead Service Line Project Update
Mr. Pennell provided information concerning the EPA (Environmental Protection Agency)
Lead Service Line Find and Replace Project, which requires that which requires the Town to
take certain steps to eliminate lead from the water system and homes.  This mandate is
unfunded. Mr. Pennell stated that the Public Works Department met the NCDEQ deadline of
October 15th by submitting our inventory of 3,331 water meters inspected to confirm the
existence of any lead components or unknown service materials.

Further, he said Staff accomplished the NCDEQ requirement to notify all meter customers in
writing. The Letter informed residents such as galvanized materials or if there are unknowns
and the town provided homeowners with water test kits per citizens requests.

The engineering report provides the timeline for funding the 'find' portion of the mandate
and the 'replace' portion, which is within a 10-year span. NCDEQ approved the application
for funding the project via a loan in the amount of $2,000,000. Mr. Pennell explained the
reasons staff recommends not accepting the loan, including specifically a required
administrative fee that would exceed the Town’s cost in funding this project itself.

There was discussion regarding the sample sites for Tier 1, Tier 2, Tier 3, etc., negative
samples, consultant costs, NC State 2-million loan from State Water Infrastructure
Authority, Lead Service Line Replacement program, scheduled deadlines, Federal
regulations and future expenses.  GIS mapping of the waterlines is completed for the
inventory project.

Mr. Pennell added that the Town's water fund is healthy, and it probably does not make
sense to use the loan as the town has the funding. There was general Town Council
consensus to decline the loan offered on this project.

5. Water Treatment Plant Update
Water Treatment Plant Superintendent Wilson reviewed the resiliency project, water
expansion project, and raw water pump station repairs after Hurricane Helene. He said the
generators and transfer switch have been delivered and are ready to install.

Discussion included the water treatment plant expansion timeline, review process, State
final approval review and we estimate to begin the project in 2026.

The raw water pump station replacement and repair of station in aftermath of storm, at a
cost of approximately $75,000 should begin January 1st.

The town was awarded the State Gold Star for the water treatment plan for 2023, the AWOP
award for the 15th consecutive year.

5



6. ADJOURNMENT
There being no further business and without objection, Vice Mayor Chase adjourned the
meeting at 7:06 p.m.

Patrick Fitzsimmons, Mayor 

Tamara Mercer, Town Clerk 

6



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE MINUTES 

Town Hall Council Chambers 
30 South Main Street 
Weaverville, NC 28787 

December 18, 2024 at 3:30 pm 
Town Council Special Called Meeting 

The Town Council for the Town of Weaverville held a special called meeting on December 18, 
2024, at 3:30 pm in the Council Chambers at Town Hall, 30 South Main Street, Weaverville, NC. 

Councilmembers present: Mayor Patrick Fitzsimmons, Vice-Mayor John Chase, 
Councilmembers Doug Jackson, Catherine Cordell, Michele Wood, Peter McGuire, and Dee 
Lawrence.  

Staff members present: Town Attorney John Henning, Town Clerk Tamara Mercer, Interim Town 
Manager Harris. 

1. Call to Order - Mayor Fitzsimmons called the meeting to order at 3:30 pm.

2. Closed Session

At 3:30 p.m. Councilmember Lawrence moved to enter closed session as authorized by N.C.G.S.
§143-318.11(a)( 6) in order to consider the qualifications, competence, performance, character,
fitness, conditions of appointment, or conditions of initial employment of an individual public officer
or employee or prospective public officer or employee; or to hear or investigate a complaint, charge,
or grievance by or against an individual public officer or employee. General personnel policy issues
may not be considered in a closed session. A public body may not consider the qualifications,
competence, performance, character, fitness, appointment, or removal of a member of the public
body or another body and may not consider or fill a vacancy among its own membership except in
an open meeting. Final action making an appointment or discharge or removal by a public body
having final authority for the appointment or discharge or removal shall be taken in an open
meeting.
The motion was approved unanimously (7-0) and Town Council entered closed session. 
[CLOSED SESSION] 

Councilmember Wood made a motion to exit closed at 4:18 p.m. and re-enter into open session. 
The motion was approved unanimously (7-0). 

3. Adjournment

There being no further business, Mayor Fitzsimmons adjourned the special called meeting at 
4:18 p.m. without objection. 

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 
Tamara Mercer, Town Clerk 

7



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: January 27, 2025 

SUBJECT: Monthly Tax Report 

PRESENTER:  Tax Collector 

ATTACHMENTS: Monthly Tax Report Summary 

TR-401G Net Collections Report for December 2024 

RMV Refund/Release Report for November 2024 

RMV Refund/Release Report for December 2024 

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

Buncombe County has provided the monthly net collections report with data through the 

end of December 2024 and a request for tax releases/refunds.  

A summary of the monthly tax report is provided and shows that 82.34% of the Town’s 

property taxes have been collected as of the end of December (which is a little higher 

at this time of year).  This totals $3,542,342 out of the $4,302,300 total tax levy (real 

property, personal property, and business personal property). At the end of December 

2024 there was $759,958.23 left to collect of the 2024 property taxes.  

The Motor Vehicle Levy Releases/Refunds report for November & December are attached. 

Buncombe County Assessor’s Office has requested approval of the following 

releases/refunds: 

Dec 2024 Property Tax Levy Release/Refund $1,126.08 
Nov 2024 Motor Vehicle Levy Release/Refund $173.84 
Dec 2024 Motor Vehicle Levy Release/Refund $100.23 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

The monthly report is provided for information only. 

Town Council action to approval of the tax releases/refunds is requested.  The following 

motion is suggested:   

I move that Town Council approve the releases and refunds as requested. 

8



Tax Year 2024

Summary for YTD  Dec  2024:

Original Billed Amts 4,297,291$             

Abs Adj (Adjustments by Assessor) (2,815)$  

Bill Releases (40)$  

Discovery Levy 5,305$  

Additional Levy 2,559$  

Net Levy 4,302,300$             

Total Current Year Collections 3,542,342$             

% Collected 82.34%

Total Left to be Collected: 759,958$                

Prior Years Tax Paid 2,060$  

Prior Years Interest Paid 176$  

Town of Weaverville

MONTHLY TAX REPORT

FY 2024-2025

9



B
il

l R
el

ea
se

s 
($

)
A

ss
es

so
r 

R
ef

u
n

d
s 

($
)

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

D
at

e 
ru

n:
 1

/8
/2

02
5

 3
:5

4:
11

 P
M

T
R

-4
01

G
 N

et
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
s 

R
ep

o
rt

N
C

P
T

S
 V

4

D
at

a 
as

 o
f: 

1
/7

/2
02

5
 1

1:
31

:4
5 

P
M

 A
bs

tr
ac

t T
yp

e:
 B

U
S

,IN
D

,P
U

B
,R

E
I,R

M
V

T
ax

 D
is

tr
ic

t:
W

E
A

V
E

R
V

IL
L

E

Le
vy

 T
yp

e:
A

d
m

in
 E

xp
en

se
, 

A
d

ve
rt

is
em

en
t 

F
ee

, 
A

tt
o

rn
ey

 F
ee

, 
C

o
lle

c
ti

o
n

 F
ee

 5
, 

C
o

lle
c

ti
o

n
 F

ee
 9

, C
o

st
, D

o
ck

et
in

g
 E

xp
en

se
, 

E
X

P
E

N
S

E
, F

E
E

 IN
T

E
R

E
S

T
, G

ar
n

is
h

m
en

t 
F

ee
, 

In
te

re
st

, 
L

A
T

E
 L

IS
T

 P
E

N
A

L
T

Y
, L

eg
al

 A
d

 E
xp

en
se

, 
N

S
F

 P
en

al
ty

, P
o

st
ag

e 
E

xp
en

se
, 

S
h

er
if

f 
S

er
vi

ce
 F

ee
, S

P
E

C
IA

L
 A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
, S

T
O

R
M

W
A

T
E

R
, T

A
X

, V
E

H
IC

L
E

 F
E

E
, 

W
E

A
V

E
R

V
IL

L
E

 T
A

X

R
ep

o
rt

 P
ar

am
et

er
s:

D
at

e 
S

en
t 

to
 F

in
an

ce
 S

ta
rt

:
 M

in
 -

 D
ec

e
m

b
er

 1
, 2

0
24

D
at

e 
S

en
t 

to
 F

in
an

ce
 E

nd
:

 M
ax

 -
 D

ec
e

m
b

er
 3

1,
 2

02
4

N

D
ef

au
lt 

S
or

t-
B

y:
 T

ax
 Y

ea
r

G
ro

up
in

g:
 T

ax
 D

is
tr

ic
t,

L
ev

y 
T

yp
e

T
ax

 Y
ea

r:
20

25
, 2

0
24

, 
20

23
, 

20
22

, 2
02

1
, 2

0
20

, 
20

19
, 

20
18

, 
20

17
, 

20
16

, 2
0

15
, 

20
14

, 
20

13
, 2

01
2

, 2
0

11
, 

20
10

, 
20

09
, 

20
08

, 
20

07
, 2

0
06

, 
20

05
, 

20
04

Y
ea

r 
F

or
:

20
24

, 2
0

23
, 

20
22

, 
20

21
, 2

02
0

, 2
0

19
, 

20
18

, 
20

17
, 

20
16

, 
20

15
, 2

0
14

, 
20

13
, 

20
12

, 2
01

1
, 2

0
10

, 
20

09
, 

20
08

, 
20

07
, 

20
06

, 2
0

05
, 

20
04

, 
20

03

C
ol

la
ps

e 
D

is
tr

ic
ts

:

Fi
sc

a
l Y

ea
r 

A
ct

iv
it

y 
fr

o
m

 J
u

ly
 1

, 
2

0
X

X
 t

o
 D

ec
em

b
er

 3
1

, 
2

0
2

4
A

ct
iv

it
y 

fr
o

m
 D

ec
em

b
er

 1
, 

2
0

2
4

 t
o

 D
ec

em
b

er
 3

1
, 

2
0

2
4

T
ax

 
Y

ea
r

O
ri

g
. 

B
il

le
d

 A
m

t 
($

)
A

b
s.

 A
d

j 
($

)
B

il
l R

el
ea

se
s 

($
)

D
is

c.
 L

ev
y 

($
)

N
et

 L
ev

y 
($

)
A

m
t 

C
o

ll
ec

t.
 (

$
)

U
n

p
ai

d
 B

al
an

ce
 

($
)

A
m

t 
C

o
ll

ec
t.

 (
$

)
A

b
s.

 A
d

j 
($

)
D

is
c.

 L
ev

y 
($

)

A
d

d
it

io
n

al
 

Le
vy

 (
$

)
T

A
X

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

: 
W

E
A

V
E

R
V

IL
L

E
 

 L
E

V
Y

 T
Y

P
E

: 
In

te
re

st
 

C
o

ll
ec

ti
o

n
 F

ee
 

A
m

t 
($

)
%

 C
o

ll
.

%
 U

n
co

ll
.

A
ss

es
so

r 
R

ef
u

n
d

s 
($

)
N

et
 C

o
ll

ec
ti

o
n

s 
($

)
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 
Le

vy
 (

$
)

0.
00

0.
00

6,
58

2.
01

0.
00

0.
00

N
A

N
A

0.
00

0.
00

6,
58

2.
01

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

20
23

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

4,
86

1.
85

0.
00

0.
00

N
A

N
A

0.
00

0.
00

4,
86

1.
85

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

20
22

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

5,
05

9.
05

0.
00

0.
00

N
A

N
A

0.
00

0.
00

5,
05

9.
05

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

20
21

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

11
,9

05
.6

2
0.

00
0.

00
N

A
N

A
0.

00

0.
00

11
,9

05
.6

2
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
20

20
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

0.
00

0.
00

5,
05

6.
63

0.
00

0.
00

N
A

N
A

0.
00

0.
00

5,
05

6.
63

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

20
19

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

31
6.

01
0.

00
0.

00
N

A
N

A
0.

00

0.
00

31
6.

01
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
20

18
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

0.
00

0.
00

39
.5

7
0.

00
0.

00
N

A
N

A
0.

00

0.
00

39
.5

7
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
20

17
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

0.
00

0.
00

64
.9

2
0.

00
0.

00
N

A
N

A
0.

00

0.
00

64
.9

2
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
20

16
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

0.
00

0.
00

10
0.

08
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
20

15
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

P
A

G
E

 1
 o

f 3

10

II ------------------+-----+----+ 

II ------------------+-----+----+ 

II ----------------

II 



0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
13

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

10
0.

08
0.

00
0.

00
N

A
N

A
0.

00

0.
00

0.
00

47
.7

2
0.

00
0.

00
N

A
N

A
0.

00

0.
00

47
.7

2
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
20

14
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

0.
00

0.
00

1,
02

0.
36

0.
00

0.
00

N
A

N
A

0.
00

0.
00

1,
02

0.
36

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

20
13

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

73
0.

74
0.

00
0.

00
N

A
N

A
0.

00

0.
00

73
0.

74
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
20

12
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

12
.5

9
0.

00
0.

00
N

A
N

A
0.

00

0.
00

12
.5

9
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
20

11
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

T
A

X
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
: 

W
E

A
V

E
R

V
IL

L
E

 
 L

E
V

Y
 T

Y
P

E
: 

L
A

T
E

 L
IS

T
 P

E
N

A
L

T
Y

  

0.
00

0.
00

35
,7

97
.1

5
0.

00
0.

00
N

A
N

A
0.

00

0.
00

35
,7

97
.1

5
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
S

u
b

.
0.

00

0.
00

0.
00

2,
18

6.
27

0.
00

0.
00

85
.9

2 
%

14
.0

8 
%

0.
00

2,
54

4.
42

2,
18

6
.2

7
35

8.
15

1,
64

1.
58

0.
00

20
24

2,
33

0.
93

1.
55

0.
36

21
5.

40

0.
00

0.
00

9,
16

8.
30

80
.3

5
0.

00
99

.4
8 

%
0.

52
 %

0.
00

9,
21

6.
15

9,
16

8
.3

0
47

.8
5

0.
00

0.
00

20
23

9,
15

4.
90

55
.4

7
0.

36
36

.7
3

0.
00

0.
00

3,
26

7.
17

0.
00

0.
00

99
.5

0 
%

0.
50

 %
0.

00

3,
28

3.
53

3,
26

7
.1

7
16

.3
6

0.
00

0.
00

20
22

2,
55

5.
97

4.
77

0.
80

73
3.

13

6,
08

3.
77

0.
00

0.
00

4,
39

2.
09

0.
00

0.
00

99
.5

1 
%

0.
49

 %
0.

00

4,
41

3.
92

4,
39

2
.0

9
21

.8
3

0.
00

0.
00

20
21

1,
32

0.
31

65
.2

0
0.

54
3,

15
9.

35

60
5.

87
3.

02
10

,2
28

.3
8

0.
00

0.
00

7,
03

2.
49

23
1.

82
0.

00
99

.7
9 

%
0.

21
 %

0.
00

7,
04

7.
59

7,
03

2
.4

9
15

.1
0

0.
00

0.
00

20
20

1,
21

1.
84

47
8.

88
0.

96

T
A

X
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
: 

W
E

A
V

E
R

V
IL

L
E

 
 L

E
V

Y
 T

Y
P

E
: 

T
A

X
 

0.
00

0.
00

26
,0

46
.3

2
31

2.
17

0.
00

98
.2

7 
%

1.
73

 %
0.

00

26
,5

05
.6

1
26

,0
46

.3
2

45
9.

29
1,

64
1.

58
0.

00
S

u
b

.
16

,5
73

.9
5

0.
00

0.
00

3,
54

2,
34

2.
17

2,
55

9.
37

0.
00

82
.3

4 
%

17
.6

6 
%

72
4.

67

4,
30

2,
30

0
.4

0
3,

54
2

,3
42

.1
7

75
9,

95
8

.2
3

1,
40

0,
06

3
.3

2
1,

12
5.

95
20

24
4,

29
7,

29
1.

04
2,

81
5

.0
6

39
.6

8
5,

30
4.

73

0.
00

0.
00

4,
20

2,
51

5.
94

2,
14

8.
86

0.
00

99
.9

6 
%

0.
04

 %
0.

00

4,
20

4,
32

8
.9

1
4,

20
2

,5
15

.9
4

1,
81

2
.9

7
0.

00
0.

00
20

23
4,

19
6,

76
5.

41
2,

95
3

.4
8

60
.1

6
8,

42
8.

28

0.
00

73
5.

06
3,

98
9,

76
3

.7
8

0.
00

0.
00

99
.9

6 
%

0.
04

 %
0.

00

3,
99

0,
50

9
.9

8
3,

98
9

,0
28

.7
2

1,
48

1
.2

6
0.

00
0.

00
20

22
3,

98
6,

15
1.

82
1,

31
7

.9
6

43
.4

1
5,

71
9.

53

0.
00

72
6.

57
3,

72
6,

11
3

.8
6

2,
93

4.
84

0.
00

99
.9

2 
%

0.
08

 %
0.

00

3,
72

8,
40

7
.7

1
3,

72
5

,3
87

.2
9

3,
02

0
.4

2
0.

00
0.

00
20

21
3,

71
7,

65
2.

88
6,

29
6

.9
1

36
.2

6
14

,1
53

.1
6

0.
00

2,
15

6.
28

3,
37

4,
17

3.
97

2,
72

6.
76

0.
00

99
.9

7 
%

0.
03

 %
0.

00

3,
37

3,
04

1
.1

9
3,

37
2

,0
17

.6
9

1,
02

3
.5

0
0.

00
0.

00
20

20
3,

35
4,

21
6.

35
6,

68
0

.6
8

71
.8

0
22

,8
50

.5
6

0.
00

0.
00

71
,7

19
.3

6
0.

00
0.

00
10

0 
%

0 
%

0.
00

71
,7

19
.3

6
71

,7
19

.3
6

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

20
13

73
,3

42
.4

9
0.

00
1,

62
3.

13
0.

00

0.
00

66
,5

39
.4

1
66

,5
39

.4
1

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

20
12

68
,0

37
.6

3
0.

00
1,

49
8.

22
0.

00

P
A

G
E

 2
 o

f 3

11



0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
13

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
13

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

66
,5

39
.4

1
0.

00
0.

00
10

0 
%

0 
%

0.
00

20
,0

64
.0

9
3,

37
2.

66
56

,4
56

.2
6

0.
00

0.
00

82
.5

6
0.

00
0.

00
10

0 
%

0 
%

0.
00

82
.5

6
82

.5
6

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

20
11

82
.5

6
0.

00
0.

00

T
A

X
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
: 

W
E

A
V

E
R

V
IL

L
E

 
 L

E
V

Y
 T

Y
P

E
: 

W
E

A
V

E
R

V
IL

L
E

 T
A

X
 

0.
00

3,
61

7.
91

18
,9

73
,2

51
.0

5
10

,3
69

.8
3

0.
00

96
.1

1 
%

3.
89

 %
72

4.
67

19
,7

36
,9

29
.5

2
18

,9
69

,6
33

.1
4

76
7,

29
6.

38
1,

40
0,

06
3.

32
1,

12
5.

95
S

u
b

.
19

,6
93

,5
40

.1
8

0.
00

0.
00

44
,4

24
.9

8
0.

00
0.

00
89

.2
8 

%
10

.7
2 

%
0.

00

49
,7

61
.7

5
44

,4
24

.9
8

5,
33

6.
77

0.
00

0.
00

20
19

49
,9

54
.8

2
0.

00
19

3.
07

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

91
4.

17
0.

00
0.

00
58

.1
1 

%
41

.8
9 

%
0.

00

1,
57

3.
28

91
4.

17
65

9.
11

0.
00

0.
00

20
18

1,
57

6.
57

0.
00

3.
29

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

14
5.

15
0.

00
0.

00
70

.6
0 

%
29

.4
0 

%
0.

00

20
5.

59
14

5.
15

60
.4

4
0.

00
0.

00
20

17
77

1.
97

0.
00

56
6.

38
0.

00

0.
00

0.
00

16
8.

06
0.

00
0.

00
78

.1
5 

%
21

.8
5 

%
0.

00

21
5.

06
16

8.
06

47
.0

0
0.

00
0.

00
20

16
21

7.
62

0.
00

2.
56

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

16
0.

43
0.

00
0.

00
83

.2
2 

%
16

.7
8 

%
0.

00

19
2.

77
16

0.
43

32
.3

4
0.

00
0.

00
20

15
20

1.
36

0.
00

8.
59

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

72
.8

5
0.

00
0.

00
3.

44
 %

96
.5

6 
%

0.
00

2,
11

9.
86

72
.8

5
2,

04
7.

01
0.

00
0.

00
20

14
2,

12
6.

15
0.

00
6.

29
0.

00

0.
00

0.
00

1.
15

0.
00

0.
00

0.
20

 %
99

.8
0 

%
0.

00

57
0.

35
1.

15
56

9.
20

0.
00

0.
00

20
13

57
0.

35
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

0.
00

0.
00

20
4.

72
0.

00
0.

00
31

.9
4 

%
68

.0
6 

%
0.

00

64
0.

88
20

4.
72

43
6.

16
0.

00
0.

00
20

12
75

2.
46

0.
00

11
1.

58
0.

00

4,
26

7.
44

66
,6

84
.6

4

0.
00

0.
00

46
,0

91
.5

1
0.

00
0.

00
83

.3
8 

%
16

.6
2 

%
0.

00

55
,2

79
.5

4
46

,0
91

.5
1

9,
18

8.
03

0.
00

0.
00

S
u

b
.

56
,1

71
.3

0
0.

00
89

1.
76

0.
00

S
ig

na
tu

re
 (

T
ax

 C
ol

le
ct

or
) 

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

_

0.
00

3,
61

7.
91

19
,0

81
,1

86
.0

3
10

,6
82

.0
0

0.
00

96
.0

8 
%

3.
92

 %
72

4.
67

19
,8

18
,7

14
.6

7
19

,0
77

,5
68

.1
2

77
6,

94
3.

70
1,

40
1,

70
4.

90
1,

12
5.

95
T

o
ta

l
19

,7
66

,2
85

.4
3

20
,6

6
9.

96

P
A

G
E

 3
 o

f 3

12

,--+--+--+----<e--+--+--,--+--+--+----<e--+--+--,--+--+--+-- - -



District Refunds FY2024

July 2024 through June 2025

NCVTS Pending refund report Fiscal Year 2025

Nov-24
District 

Type
Net Change

COUNTY ($9,833.21)

CITY ($3,284.11)

CITY ($92.02)

CITY ($17.52)

CITY ($173.84)

CITY ($237.61)

FIRE ($60.26)

FIRE ($3.57)

FIRE ($6.16)

FIRE ($165.95)

FIRE ($99.80)

FIRE ($20.68)

FIRE ($35.98)

FIRE ($26.24)

FIRE ($60.72)

FIRE ($214.85)

FIRE ($57.06)

FIRE ($92.95)

FIRE ($287.49)

FIRE ($39.38)

FIRE ($7.63)

FIRE ($92.99)

FIRE ($59.20)

SPECIAL ($331.63)

SPECIAL ($12.72)

($15,313.57)

FAS

FSW

FUH

FWB

FWO

SAS

FNB

FRC

FRE

FRI

FSK

FEC

FFA

FFB

FJU

FLE

CWV

CWO

FBA

FBR

FEB

Tax Jurisdiction

BUN

CAS

CBM

CMT

 Page  2 of  2

13



District Refunds FY2024
July 2024 through June 2025

NCVTS Pending refund report Fiscal Year 2025

Dec-24
District 

Type
Net Change

COUNTY ($7,319.27)

CITY ($2,304.28)

CITY ($4.01)

CITY ($100.23)

FIRE ($21.65)

FIRE ($4.43)

FIRE ($153.65)

FIRE ($211.75)

FIRE ($9.81)

FIRE ($112.15)

FIRE ($43.89)

FIRE ($118.54)

FIRE ($65.35)

FIRE ($8.23)

FIRE ($99.73)

FIRE ($177.41)

FIRE ($54.95)

FIRE ($48.61)

FIRE ($46.58)

SPECIAL ($322.03)

($11,226.55)

FSK

FSW

FUH

FWB

SAS

Total

Tax Jurisdiction

BUN

CAS

CBM

CWV

FBA

FEB

FEC

FFA

FFB

FGC

FLE

FNB

FRC

FRE

FRI

14



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: January 27, 2025 

SUBJECT: Conflicts of Interest Policy  

PRESENTER:  Interim Town Manager Harris 

ATTACHMENTS: Conflicts of Interest Policy dated 12/23/24 

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

Tim Ormond of Blue Earth Planning, Engineering & Design submitted the Water Resources 
Development grant application for the Main Street Nature Park stormwater projects and 
related improvements on December 27, 2024.  

As part of the application the Town was required to provide a conflicts of interest policy. 
The attached policy was put into place on December 23, 2024, by the Mayor in order to 
comply with the grant requirements.  

Town Council is asked to ratify the adoption of this policy. 

It is recommended that this policy be comprehensively reviewed in the future with possible 
revisions recommended by the Town Attorney for broader application and consistency 
with federal and state laws, and Town Code.  

TOWN COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED:  

Town Council is asked to ratify the attached Conflicts of Interest Policy.  

A proposed motion is as follows:  I move that Town Council ratify the Conflicts of Interest 
Policy dated December 23, 2024.  

15



The Town of 
    Weaverville

N O R T H   C A R O L I N A  

30 South Main Street • Weaverville, NC 28787 (PO Box 338) 
(828) 645-7116 • Fax (828) 645-4776

www.weavervillenc.org 

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY 

Section 1. Definitions 
Conflict of Interest - An actual or perceived interest by a Weaverville Town employee or member of 
Weaverville’s governing board in an action that results in, or has the appearance of resulting in, 
personal, organizational, or professional gain. A conflict of interest occurs when an employee or 
governing board member has a direct or fiduciary interest in another relationship. A conflict of 
interest could include: 

(1) Ownership with a member of the Board of Directors/Trustees or an Employee where one or the
other has supervisory authority over the other or with a client who receives services.

(2) Employment of or by a member of the Board of Directors/Trustees or an Employee where one
or the other has supervisory authority over the other or with a client who receives services.

(3) Contractual relationship with a member of the Board of Directors/Trustees or an Employee
where one or the other has supervisory authority over the other or with a client who receives
services.

(4) Creditor or debtor to a member of the Board of Directors/Trustees or an Employee where one
or the other has supervisory authority over the other or with a client who receives services.

(5) Consultative or consumer relationship with a member of the Board of Directors/Trustees or an
Employee where one or the other has supervisory authority over the other or with a client who
receives services.

The definition of conflict of interest includes any bias or the appearance of bias in a decision-making 
process that would reflect a dual role played by a member of the organization or group. An example, 
for instance, might involve a person who is an Employee and a Board Member, or a person who is 
an employee and who hires family members as consultants. 

Governing Body – Includes the mayor, vice mayor, and councilmembers for the Town of 
Weaverville. 

Section 2.  Employee Responsibilities 
It is in the interest of the organization, individual staff, and members of the governing board to 
strengthen trust and confidence in each other, to expedite resolution of problems, to mitigate the 
effect and to minimize organizational and individual stress that can be caused by a conflict of 
interest. 

Employees are to avoid any conflict of interest, even the appearance of a conflict of interest. This 
organization serves the community as a whole, rather that only serving a special interest group. 

16

http://www.weavervillenc.org/


The appearance of a conflict of interest can cause embarrassment to the organization and 
jeopardize the credibility of the organization. Any conflict of interest, potential conflict of interest or 
the appearance of a conflict of interest is to be reported to your supervisor immediately. Employees 
are to maintain independence and objectivity with clients, the community, and organization. 
Employees are called to maintain a sense of fairness, civility, ethics, and personal integrity even 
though law, regulation, or custom does not require them. 

Section 3.  Acceptance of Gifts 
Employees, members of employee’s immediate family, and members of the governing board are 
prohibited from accepting gifts, money, or gratuities from the following: 

(1)Persons receiving benefits or services from the organization.

(2)Any person or organization performing or seeking to perform services under contract with the
organization.

(3)Persons who are otherwise in a position to benefit from the actions of any employee of the
organization.

Employees may, with the prior written approval of their supervisor, receive honoraria for lectures 
and other such activities while on personal days, compensatory time, annual leave, or leave without 
pay. If the employee is acting in any official capacity, honoraria received by an employee in 
connection with activities relating to employment with the organization are to be paid to the 
organization. 

Section 4. Adoption and Effective Date 
This Conflicts of Interest Policy has been adopted with an effective date of December 23, 2024, and 
shall be in full force and effect until such time as it is amended or repealed, and is in addition to any 
conflicts of interest provisions provided by North Carolina Law or the Town Code of Ordinances. 

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

Patrick Fitzsimmons 
Mayor 

David Scott Harris 
Interim Town Manager 

17

fU1f -1Pf7 ~ 

~ . t1r/-



18

Date of Meeting: 

Subject: 

Presenter: 

Attachments: 

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

January 27, 2025 

Budget Amendment - Community Center, Police 

Town Finance Director 

Budget Amendment Form 

Description/Summary of Request: 

The Town received proceeds from the sale of bricks at the Community Center during Oct -

Dec 2024 totaling $672.14. 

The Town collected an additional $4,051.00 in Cops for Kids donations during Dec 2024 -

Jan 2025, bringing the fiscal year-to-date total to $8,326.00. 

The attached budget amendment is necessary in order to include these funds in the Fiscal 

Year 2024-2025 budget. 

Action Requested: 

Town Manager recommends approval of the attached Budget Amendment. 



19

Budget Amendment FY 2024-2025 

Town of Weaverville 

What expense accounts are to be increased? 

Account Account Description 

010-600-614-39510 Community Center Programs 
010-430-431-26608 Cops for Kids (Expenditure) 

Transfer Amount 

$672.14 
$4,051.00 

What expense account(s) are to be decreased or additional revenue expected to offset expense? 

Account 

010-004-300-09022 
010-004-300-09028 

Account Description 

Contributions Community Center 
Cops for Kids (Revenue) 

Transfer Amount 

$672.14 
$4,051.00 

Justification: Please provide a brief justification for this budget amendment. To record 
donations received for the Community Center Oct - Dec 2024; Cops for Kids donations received Dec 
2024 - Jan 2025. 

Authorized by Finance Officer Date 

Authorized by Town Manager Date 

Authorized by Town Council (if applicable) Date 

Budget Ordinance Section 12: 
B. The Budget Officer or his/her designee is hereby authorized to distribute departmental funds based upon the line 

item budgets and make expenditures therefrom, in accordance with the Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act 

C. The Budget Officer or hisjher designee may authorize transfers between line items, expenditures and revenues, 
within a department or division without limitation and without a report being required. 

D. The Budget Officer or his/her designee may transfer amounts up to 5%, but not to exceed $10,000 monthly, between 
departments, including contingency appropriations, but only within the same fund. The Budget Officer must make 
an official report on such transfers at a subsequent regular meeting of Town Council. 

E. The Budget Officer or his/her designee may not transfer any amounts between funds, except as approved by Town 
Council, as a budget amendment 



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

PRESENTER: 

ATTACHMENTS: 

January 27, 2025  

Board member Appointments 

Mayor Fitzsimmons

Planning Board proposed roster & Tree Board proposed 

roster 

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

Recommendations: To appoint members to open terms on board vacancies. 

Planning Board: To appoint Jonathan Brown as a regular member, to serve an open 

term until June of 2025. To appoint Nancy Waldrup as an alternate member to fulfill 

a term to June of 2025. 

Tree Board: To appoint Gary Harmon as a regular member, to serve an open term to 

May of 2027. To appoint William Mobley as an alternate member to serve an open 

term to May of 2025.  

Request: Nominate and appoint Planning Board members and Tree Board members. 

20



WEAVERVILLE PLANNING BOARD 

Regularly meets 1st Tuesday of the month at 6 pm in 
Community Room/Council Chambers at Town Hall  

NAME AND 
POSITION 

CONTACT INFORMATION FIRST 
APPT 

DATE OF 
APPT 

TERM 
(3 YEARS) 

Jane Kelley  
Regular Member 
Chair 

2021 August 
2023 

 September  
2023 – 2026 

Mark Endries  
Regular Member 
Vice Chair  

2021 March 
2022 

September 
2024 - 2027 

Donna Mann Belt 
Regular Member  

2021 August 
2023 

September  
2023 – 2026 

Jonathan Brown 
Regular Member 

2024 January 
2025 

June 2024 – 
2025  

Michael Sollazzo 
Regular Member 

2024 August 
2024 

September 
2024 – 2025 

Nancy Waldrup 
Alternate Member 

2025 January 
2025 

June 2024 –
2025  

Jennifer Young 
Alternate Member 

2024 August 
2024 

September 
2024 - 2027 

James Eller  
Town Planner 

828-484-7002 (direct line)
jeller@weavervillenc.org

John Henning 

Michael Frue 
Town Attorney 

828-398-2775 Office
john@csedlaw.com

michael@csedlaw.com 
Tamara Mercer 
Clerk/Bd Sec. 

828-484-7003 (direct line)
tmercer@weavervillenc.org

Last updated January 2025  

21

mailto:john@csedlaw.com
mailto:michael@csedlaw.com
mailto:tmercer@weavervillenc.org


WEAVERVILLE TREE BOARD 

Regularly meets _1st Wednesday of the month at 6 pm in 
Community Room/Council Chambers at Town Hall  

NAME AND 
POSITION 

CONTACT INFORMATION FIRST 
APPT 

DATE OF 
APPT 

TERM 
(3 YEARS) 

Gary Harmon 
Regular Member 

Weaverville 
Town Resident 

2024 January 
2025 

May  
2024 – 2027 

Pauline Griffith 
Regular Member 

Weaverville 
Town Resident 

2024 May 2024 May  
2024 -  2026 

Russ Kantner 
Regular Member 

Weaverville 
Town Resident 

2024 May 2024 May  
2024 – 2025 

Inger Stallman-
Jorgensen 
Regular Member 

Weaverville 
Town Resident 

2024 June 2024  June 2024 – 
May 2027 

Greg Sanfilippo 
Regular Member 

Buncombe Co. 
Outside Town limits 

2024 May 2024 May 
2024 – 2026 

Jeff Colavecchia 
Regular Member 

Buncombe Co. 
Outside Town limits 

2024 May 2024 May  
2024 –2025 

Caroline Lord 
Regular Member 

Buncombe Co. 
 Outside Town limits  

2024 May 2024 May  
2024 –  2027 

Caleb Hudson 
Alternate Member 

Buncombe Co. 
Outside Town limits 

2024 May 2024 May  
2024 –  2026 

William Mobley 
Alternate Member 

Weaverville 
Town Resident 

2025 January 
2025 

June 2024-
May 2025 

Scott Harris 
Town Manager 

828-484-7001 (direct line)
sharris@weavervillenc.org

Tamara Mercer 
Clerk/Board Sec. 

828-484-7003 (direct line)
tmercer@weavervillenc.org

Last updated January 2025  

22

mailto:tmercer@weavervillenc.org


TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

PRESENTER:  

ATTACHMENTS: 

January 27, 2025 

Cooperative Interlocal Agreement – Wayfinding Signs 

Planning Director 

Proposed Resolution and Cooperative Interlocal Agreement 

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

The Buncombe County Tourism and Development Authority (TDA) has agreed to continue 
to manage the Regional Wayfinding Program that began in 2008 with such management to 
be handled by Explore Asheville including the following: ongoing administration, 
maintenance including annual system review, signage replacement, addition, and updates 
as approved. The TDA has produced the attached Cooperative Interlocal Agreement to 
serve a guide for the wayfinding sign program in all of Buncombe County for the next 10 
years.  

All of the following jurisdictions have been asked to participate: Asheville, Black Mountain, 
Weaverville, Woodfin, and Buncombe County.  

The proposed agreement sets out the role of the agreement and obligations of the various 
parties and indicates that the TDA will be funding all approved wayfinding signage, 
including the replacement of any approved signs that are damaged or demolished.  

The Town will have obligations to maintain the approved signage including removing 
graffiti, washing/cleaning signs and poles, removing vegetation from signs, and notifying 
Explore Asheville of any damage to signage.  

The Interim Town Manager recommends that Weaverville participate in this program. 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Town Council action to approve the attached Cooperative Interlocal Agreement and 
authorize the Town Manager to execute on the Town’s behalf. A suggested motion is: 

I move that we adopt the attached resolution as presented so that the 
Cooperative Interlocal Agreement between the Buncombe County Tourism and 
Development Authority and the Town of Weaverville regarding the wayfinding 
signs program is approved and the Interim Town Manager is authorized to 
execute the agreement.  

23



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

RESOLUTION APPROVING COOPERATIVE INTERLOCAL 
AGREEMENT CONCERNING WAYFINDING SIGNS 

WHEREAS, the Town of Weaverville wishes to participate in the Regional 
Wayfinding Program managed by the Buncombe County Tourism and Development 
Authority and Explore Asheville; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Weaverville has authority under N.C Gen. Stat. § 
160A-461 to enter into interlocal agreements with other units of local government; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that, as allowed by North Carolina 
General Statute §160A-461, Town Council hereby approves and enters into the 
attached Cooperative Interlocal Agreement, and authorizes the Interim Town 
Manager to execute the same.  

ADOPTED this the 27th day of January, 2025. 

PATRICK FITZSIMMONS, Mayor 

TAMARA MERCER, Town Clerk 

24



1 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF BUNCOMBE  

COOPERATIVE INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

This Cooperative Interlocal Agreement made and entered into this _____ day of _________, 
2025, by and between the Buncombe County Tourism Development Authority, an Authority duly 
organized and operating pursuant to the laws of the State of North Carolina (herein “TDA”);and the 
following North Carolina Municipal Corporations:  City of Asheville, Town of Black Mountain, 
Town of Weaverville, Town of Woodfin, (all collectively referred to herein as “Governing Entities”), 
and Buncombe County, a political subdivision of the State of North Carolina (herein “County”).  

W  I  T  N  E  S  S  E  T  H : 

WHEREAS, Wayfinding refers to a program of directional, informational, and 
orientation signs, kiosks, gateways, and placemaking or landmark design elements to improve 
the user experience of orientation and choose a path within the built environment; and 

WHEREAS, TDA, in partnership with the Governing Entities and the County 
implemented a Regional Wayfinding Program in 2008; and,  

WHEREAS, in an ongoing partnership with the Governing Entities and the County, the 
TDA has agreed to continue to manage the Regional Wayfinding Program with such 
management to consist of: ongoing administration, maintenance including annual system review, 
signage replacement, addition, and updates as approved based upon the process as set forth 
herein within the entirety of Buncombe County (herein “Project”); and,  

WHEREAS, the Project may consist of directional, informational, and orientation signs, 
kiosks, gateway, and placemaking or landmark design and sculptural elements mounted in the 
ground, in sidewalks, on buildings, or on other poles (herein “Signs”); and, 

WHEREAS, the Buncombe County Tourism Development Authority, a North Carolina 
501(c)6 nonprofit (herein “Explore Asheville”) is a contractor of the TDA; and,  

WHEREAS, Explore Asheville will serve as a liaison on the Project and the TDA may 
contract with Explore Asheville to provide any of its duties or responsibilities hereunder. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the above promises and, for other good and 
valuable consideration, including the promises and covenants set out below, the sufficiency of 
which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

A. TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Scope:   The Project was developed in three phases as follows: (a)  Phase I-Master Plan
Phase-which involved development of a Wayfinding analysis and detailed program for the Signs;

25



2 

(b) Phase II-Implementation Phase-which involved sign fabrication and installation of the initial
program of Signs; and (c) Phase III-Management Phase-which involves arranging for the
ongoing management, maintenance of and revisions to the Project.  This Agreement recognizes
that Phase I and Phase II of the Project have been completed and addresses Phase III only, the
ongoing Management Phase.

The role of this Agreement is as follows: 

a. To serve as a guide for the ongoing management of the Project and maintenance of the
Signs. 

b. To be accepted, approved and adopted by resolution of the governing board of each
Governing Entity that is a party to this Agreement. 

c. To allow the Governing Entities to prohibit themselves from constructing or
permitting the construction of other signs within their jurisdictions that may be deemed to be 
considered destination Wayfinding, or that might otherwise be inconsistent or in conflict with the 
Interlocal Agreement and Criteria for Inclusion, the current version of which is attached hereto 
as Exhibit A, and as may be approved by the TDA from time-to-time. 

d. To provide criteria for the establishment of new Signs, changes to existing Signs, and
the inclusion of new destinations in the Project. 

e. To establish mapped boundaries that determine areas of maintenance responsibility and
identify the Signs that fall within these boundaries. 

f. To put each Governing Entity on notice as to all Signs Assigned to the Governing
Entity whether located within or outside of the Governing Entity’s jurisdiction. Those Signs to a 
Governing Entity that are outside each Governing Entity’s jurisdiction are shown in the table 
attached hereto as Exhibit B, as may be amended by the TDA from time to time.  For purposes of 
this Agreement, such Signs are “Assigned” to the applicable Governing Entity. 

2. Duration   The term of this Agreement shall be for a period of ten (10) years commencing
from the 1st day of January 2025 until the 1st day of January 2035 and shall automatically renew
for successive one (1) year terms unless either party gives the other parties ninety (90) days prior
written notice of intent to terminate this Agreement.

3. Signs within the Right of Way of the State of North Carolina:  The North Carolina Department
of Transportation (NCDOT) has the ultimate authority over right-of-way along State owned or
maintained roads. Signs proposed for placement in state-maintained right-of-ways must be
approved by the North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) prior to placement.  For
each Sign to be placed in the state-maintained right of way, the responsible Governing Entity
must obtain encroachment approval from the NCDOT. The NCDOT can remove or relocate
Signs in the state-maintained right of way at their discretion if the NCDOT deems the changes
are needed to ensure public safety or to allow for new construction.

26



3 

If the NCDOT determines Signs within the state-maintained right of way are not maintained 
satisfactorily, the NCDOT may choose to perform the maintenance on these Signs.   In these 
cases, the State may be entitled to financial reimbursement from the TDA.   

B. ESTABLISHMENT OF WAYFINDING COMMITTEE

1. Committee: The parties to this Agreement shall establish a Wayfinding Committee
(herein “Committee”), to oversee the approval of requests for complex new signage systems,
placemaking or landmark signage requests, and whether to require full or partial payment for the
signs and their installation.    The Committee shall convene as is necessary based on qualifying
actions that come before them.

2. Powers of Committee:   The Committee is hereby empowered to perform the following acts:

a. Recommend Approval of New Signs.   Review applications for new Signs and Sign
messages according to the Criteria for Inclusion. The Committee shall make
recommendations to the TDA for approval of requests for complex new signage systems,
placemaking or landmark signage requests where applicable. The TDA shall have the
final authority to approve all new Signs and changes to existing Sign messages. See
Exhibit A.

b. When appropriate, require full or partial payment for the materials and installation of new
Signs from public and private entities that request such Signs to be added to the
Wayfinding Project.

3. Committee Membership:   The Committee shall consist of a minimum of three (3) members as
follows: (a) Explore Asheville Vice President of the Partnership and Destination Management;
(b) Explore Asheville Destination Project Manager; and (c) one staff member appointed by the
appropriate corresponding Governing Entities. See Exhibit A. At its discretion, the TDA Board
can appoint additional at-large members to the committee.

C. FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND PROCEDURES

After the TDA has approved a new Sign or change to an existing Sign message, the following 
sets forth the financial responsibility for such Sign:(Signs not so approved by the TDA shall not 
be subject to this Agreement). 

1. Replacement of damaged or demolished Signs within the corporate limits of a Governing
Entity and the unincorporated areas of Buncombe County:

a. Responsibility.  The TDA shall be financially responsible for one hundred percent
(100%) of the costs for materials and labor for damaged or demolished Signs within
the corporate limits of a Governing Entity and within the unincorporated areas of
Buncombe County.

27



4 

b. Procedure.  Explore Asheville shall be notified of loss or damages to any Sign. The
Governing Entities shall retrieve damaged Signs within their jurisdiction or as
otherwise Assigned (as defined below) and store them in a safe environment.  The
reinstallation of damaged or demolished Signs will be coordinated with the vendor’s
annual inspection and installation follow-up.  The TDA shall pay the vendor directly
for the costs.

2. New Signs or New Sign Messages for Destinations that meet the Criteria for Inclusion:

a. Financial Responsibility.  The TDA shall pay one hundred percent (100%) of the
costs for materials and labor for the fabrication and installation of Signs for
destinations owned and/or managed by the Governing Entities when the Sign meets
the Criteria for Inclusion.  The TDA, through the Committee, reserves the right to
develop financial policies that require full or partial cost recovery of the costs for
materials and labor for the fabrication and installation of Signs for destinations owned
and/or managed by private entities when the Sign meets the Criteria for Inclusion.

b. Procedure.  Once a request has been approved, Explore Asheville shall order the
necessary Sign materials from the designated vendor.  The vendor will directly
invoice the TDA for materials and labor.  If the committee determines the costs for
materials and installation should be shared with or paid by a private entity requesting
the Sign(s), the vendor shall submit a single invoice to the private entity or separate
invoices to the TDA and the private entity for the agreed upon shared cost.  The TDA
and/or private business shall directly pay the vendor for the cost of the Sign materials
and subsequent installation.  If the private entity is required to pay all or a portion of
the cost, the private entity shall provide Explore Asheville with proof of payment.
After which, Explore Asheville will coordinate the installation with the designated
vendor.

3. New Signs or new Sign messages for destinations that do not qualify under the Criteria for
Inclusion:

a. Financial Responsibility.  If a Governing Entity requests a new Sign or Sign
message for a destination owned and/or managed by the Governing Entity that does
not meet the Criteria for Inclusion the Governing Entity requesting the Sign or Sign
message shall be financially responsible for one hundred percent (100%) of the costs
for materials and labor for the fabrication and installation of such Signs or Sign
messages.  Signs or Sign messages requested by private entities for destinations that
do not meet the Criteria for Inclusion will be rejected and will not be eligible for
installation.

b. Procedure.  Once a request has been approved, Explore Asheville shall order the
necessary Sign materials from the designated vendor.  The vendor will invoice the
Governing Entity directly for payment.  Upon proof of payment, Explore Asheville
will coordinate the installation with the vendor.

28



5 

4. Terms of Payment: For all payments outlined in section C of this Agreement, all invoices
from the vendor will be accompanied by appropriate documentation of actual costs.  All
undisputed invoices must be paid within sixty (60) days and shall incur interest at the prevailing
interest rate for each day the invoice remains unpaid past sixty days.

D. MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITIES

1. General Maintenance Defined. Through the course of the year, individual Signs require
attention.  The Governing Entities are responsible for General Maintenance as defined herein, on
those Signs within their jurisdiction as well as any other Signs that have been Assigned.
General maintenance includes:

a. Removal of graffiti and placards as necessary.

b. Washing/cleaning of all Sign panels and poles as necessary.

c. Removing plant material at the base of the Sign and/or visually obstructing or damaging
the Sign.

d. Notifying Explore Asheville in a timely manner of any damaged or demolished Signs
within the Governing Entity’s corporate limits or as otherwise Assigned.  In the event a
Sign is damaged to the extent that it is not readable by the driving public (e.g. the Sign is
knocked down), the responsible Governing Entity must relocate the damaged Sign to a
secure location and notify Explore Asheville of its removal and storage location.

2. Warranty Maintenance Coverage:    Notwithstanding the foregoing, Explore Asheville
acknowledges that some maintenance items above may be covered by certain warranties
provided by the fabricator and/or installer of the Signs.  If Explore Asheville believes an item of
maintenance is covered under the warranties issued, Explore Asheville shall notify the fabricator
and/or installer who shall be given a reasonable period of time to honor its warranties.  If the
fabricator and/or installer does not honor its warranties within such period, then Explore
Asheville shall determine how to proceed.

E. ADDITIONAL DUTIES AND RESPONSBILITIES:

1. The Governing Entities’ Representatives:

a. Appoint a Representative to monitor and ensure compliance with the duties and
responsibilities of the Governing Entity as outlined herein and serve as a point of
administrative contact for Explore Asheville. See Exhibit A.

a. Provide Explore Asheville with a staff contact who is responsible for retrieving damaged
Signs within the Governing Entity’s corporate limits and as otherwise Assigned.

29



6 

2. The County shall:

a. By signing this agreement, the County authorizes the Governing Entities to maintain
Signs within jurisdiction of the County, but outside of the corporate limits of the
Governing Entities.

b. The County further acknowledges that should it request the installation of any Sign, it
will become a Governing Entity as to all such Signs it requests and will be treated as a
Governing Entity for purposes of this Agreement as related to such Signs.

F. DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY UPON DISSOLUTION OF AGREEMENT:  Neither
the TDA, the County nor any of the Governing Entities may acquire any real property under the
terms of this Agreement.  All personal property acquired under the terms of this Agreement shall
remain with the Governing Entity in whose jurisdiction the Sign is placed or as otherwise
Assigned. For all personal property for which there was partial financial participation by a
private entity, said personal property shall be held as tenants in common with the applicable
Governing Entity and the private entity.   Personal property acquired under the terms of this
agreement may be disposed of consistent with the financial grant that authorized the purchase or
by mutual agreement of the respective parties.

G. REPRESENTATIVES:  The names and addresses of the representatives for Explore
Asheville, the Governing Entities and the County are as follows:

1. Explore Asheville (Contact for Signage Requests to the Wayfinding Committee)
a. Name: Kimberly Puryear 
b. Title: Destination Project Manager 
c. Address: 27 College Place, Asheville, NC 28801 
d. E-mail Address: kpuryear@exploreasheville.com  
e. Phone Number: (919) 539-5157 (cell)

2. City of Asheville
Transportation

a. Name: Jessica Morriss 
b. Title: Assistant Director of Transportation 
c. Address: 70 Court Plaza, Asheville, NC 28802 
d. E-mail Address: jmorriss@ashevillenc.gov 
e. Phone Number: (828) 259-5943

Management 
a. Name: Jaime Matthews 
b. Title: Assistant to the City Manager 
c. Address: 70 Court Plaza, Asheville, NC 28802 
d. E-mail Address: jmatthews@ashevillenc.gov 
e. Phone Number: (828) 251-4541

30

mailto:jmatthews@ashevillenc.gov


7 

Downtown 
a. Name: Dana Frankel 
b. Title: Downtown Planning Manager 
c. Address: 70 Court Plaza, Asheville, NC 28802 
d. E-mail Address: dfrankel@ashevillenc.gov 
e. Phone Number: (828) 251-1122

City of Asheville Contact to Retrieve Damaged or Destroyed Signage 
a. Name, Department: Dean Grayson, Transportation
b. Email: dgrayson@ashevillenc.gov  
c. Phone: (828) 259-5449

3. Town of Black Mountain
a. Name: Jessica Trotman 
b. Title: Assistant Town Manager / Planning Director 
c. Address: 160 Midland Avenue, Black Mountain, NC 28711 
d. E-mail Address: jessica.trotman@tobm.org  
e. Phone Number: (828) 419-9300, ext. 370

Town of Black Mountain Contact to Retrieve Damaged or Destroyed Signage 
a. Name, Department: Jamey Matthews, Public Services Director
b. Email: Jamey.matthews@townofblackmountain.org 
c. Phone: 828.419.9300, ext. 660 

4. Town of Weaverville
a. Name: James Eller 
b. Title: Planning Director 
c. Address: P.O. Box 338, Weaverville, NC  28787 
d. E-mail Address: seller@weavervillenc.org  
e. Phone Number: (828) 484-7002

Town of Weaverville Contact to Retrieve Damaged or Destroyed Signage 
a. Name, Department:   Dale Pennell, Public Works Director
b. Email: dale.pennell@weavervillenc.org 
c. Phone: 828.645.0606 

5. Town of Woodfin
a. Name: Shannon Tuch 
b. Title: Town Manager 
c. Address: 90 Elk Mountain Road, Asheville, NC  28804 
d. E-mail Address: STuch@Woodfin-NC.gov     
e. Phone Number: (828) 253-4887

Town of Woodfin Contact to Retrieve Damaged or Destroyed Signage 
a. Name, Department: TBD
b. Email:

31

1111 

mailto:dfrankel@ashevillenc.gov
mailto:dgrayson@ashevillenc.gov
mailto:jessica.trotman@tobm.org
mailto:Jamey.matthews@townofblackmountain.org
mailto:seller@weavervillenc.org
mailto:dale.pennell@weavervillenc.org
mailto:STuch@Woodfin-NC.gov


8 

c. Phone:

6. County of Buncombe
a. Name: E.B. Odderstol 
b. Title: Economic Development Program Analyst 
c. Address: 46 Valley Street, Asheville, NC  28801 
d. E-mail Address: Elizabeth.Odderstol@buncombecounty.org 
e. Phone Number: (828) 203-5685

H. SEVERABILITY.  Should any provision or provisions contained in this Agreement be
declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be void, unenforceable or illegal, such provision
or provisions shall be severable, and the remaining provisions hereof shall remain in full force
and effect.

I. GOVERNING LAW.  This Agreement is entered into in North Carolina and shall be
construed under the statutes and laws of North Carolina.

J. ENTIRE AGREEMENT and AMENDMENTS.  This Agreement represents the entire
understanding between the parties and may not be modified or amended except by an instrument
in writing, signed by the parties hereto.

32

mailto:Elizabeth.Odderstol@buncombecounty.org


9 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be signed by their 
designated representatives and their seals to be herein affixed as duly authorized by their 
governing boards as of the day and year first above written. 

Attest to: 

______________________________________ 
Vic Isley, President & CEO 

BUNCOMBE COUNTY TOURISM 
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY: 

By: ___________________________ 
       Brenda Durden, Chair 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF BUNCOMBE 

I, Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid certify that Jonna Sampson, personally 
came before me this day and acknowledged that she is the Executive Office Manager to the 
Buncombe County Tourism Development Authority, an Authority created by North Carolina 
Law, and that by authority duly given and as the act of the Authority, the foregoing instrument 
was signed in its name by its Chair and attested by herself as its Executive Operations Manager. 

Witness my hand and notarial seal this _______ day of ________________, 2025 

Notary Public: ________________________ 

Type or print Name: ___________________ 

My Commission Expires: _______________ 

This Agreement has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget 
and Fiscal Control Act: 

Finance Director: ______________________ 

Date: _____________________________ 

33



10 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be signed by their 
designated representatives and their seals to be herein affixed as duly authorized by their 
governing boards as of the day and year first above written. 

Attest to: 

___________________________________ 
Tamara Mercer, Town Clerk 

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE: 

By: _______________________________        
David Scott Harris, Interim Town Manager 

COUNTY OF BUNCOMBE 

I, Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid certify that _____________________, 
personally came before me this day and acknowledged that she is the Town Clerk of the Town 
of Weaverville, a municipal corporation, and that by authority duly given and as the act of the 
corporation the foregoing instrument was signed in its name by its Town Manager and attested 
by herself as its Town Clerk. 

Witness my hand and notarial seal this _______ day of ________________, 2025 

Notary Public: ________________________ 

Type or print Name: ___________________ 

My Commission Expires: _______________ 

34



11 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be signed by their 
designated representatives and their seals to be herein affixed as duly authorized by their 
governing boards as of the day and year first above written. 

Attest to: 

____________________________________ 
Sarah Gross, Clerk to the Board of County 
Commissioners 

COUNTY OF BUNCOMBE: 

By: ________________________________ 
       Avril Pinder, County Manager 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF BUNCOMBE 

I, Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid certify that Lamar Joyner, personally 
came before me this day and acknowledged that he is the Clerk to the Board of County 
Commissioners for Buncombe County, a Body Politic and Corporate, and that by authority duly 
given and as the act of the corporation the foregoing instrument was signed in its name by its 
County Manager and attested by himself as its Clerk to the Board. 

Witness my hand and notarial seal this _______ day of ________________, 2025 

Notary Public: ________________________ 

Type or print Name: ___________________ 

My Commission Expires: _______________ 

35



12 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be signed by their 
designated representatives and their seals to be herein affixed as duly authorized by their 
governing boards as of the day and year first above written. 

Attest to: 

___________________________________ 
Wesley Barker, Town Clerk 

TOWN OF BLACK MOUNTAIN: 

By: ________________________________ 
       Josh Harrold, Town Manager 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF BUNCOMBE 

I, Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid certify that Angela Reece, personally 
came before me this day and acknowledged that she is the Town Clerk of the Town of Black 
Mountain, a municipal corporation, and that by authority duly given and as the act of the 
corporation the foregoing instrument was signed in its name by its Town Manager and attested 
by herself as its Town Clerk. 

Witness my hand and notarial seal this _______ day of ________________, 2025 

Notary Public: ________________________ 

Type or print Name: ___________________ 

My Commission Expires: _______________ 

36



13 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be signed by their 
designated representatives and their seals to be herein affixed as duly authorized by their 
governing boards as of the day and year first above written. 

Attest to: 

___________________________________ 
Gena Powers, Town Clerk 

TOWN OF WOODFIN: 

By: ________________________________ 
       Shannon Tuch, Town Administrator 

COUNTY OF BUNCOMBE 

I, Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid certify that ________________, 
personally came before me this day and acknowledged that she is the Town Clerk of the Town of 
Woodfin, a municipal corporation, and that by authority duly given and as the act of the 
corporation the foregoing instrument was signed in its name by its Town Manager and attested 
by herself as its Town Clerk. 

Witness my hand and notarial seal this _______ day of ________________, 2025 

Notary Public: ________________________ 

Type or print Name: ___________________ 

My Commission Expires: _______________ 

37



14 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be signed by their 
designated representatives and their seals to be herein affixed as duly authorized by their 
governing boards as of the day and year first above written. 

Attest to: 

___________________________________ 
Maggie Burleson, City Clerk 
(official seal) 

CITY OF ASHEVILLE: 

By: ________________________________ 
        Debra Campbell, City Manager 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF BUNCOMBE 

I, Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid certify that Maggie Burleson, 
personally came before me this day and acknowledged that she is the City Clerk of the City of 
Asheville, a municipal corporation, and that by authority duly given and as the act of the 
corporation the foregoing instrument was signed in its name by its City Manager and attested by 
herself as its City Clerk. 

Witness my hand and notarial seal this _______ day of ________________, 2025 

Notary Public: ________________________ 

Type or print Name: ___________________ 

My Commission Expires: _______________ 

4907-1220-4305, v. 2

38



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE TOWN 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

Monday, January 27, 2025 

Annual Update of the Comprehensive Land Use Plan (CLUP)

Planning Director 

Amended and Restated Resolution Concerning Growth Areas, 
Resolution Updating Comprehensive Land Use Plan with 
Updated Action Plan with Priorities and Future Land Use Map

Date of Meeting: 

Subject: 

Presenter:  

Attachments: 

Description: 

As is done annually, the Planning Board has reviewed and offered a recommendation on 
the update of the CLUP, including an action plan table with priorities, updated Future 
Land Use Map, and the inclusion of the resolution concerning development within 
identified growth areas.  

The action plan table with priorities and resolution concerning development within 
identified growth areas have been updated as a result of the conversations during the 
joint meeting of Town Council and the Planning Board. 

Action Requested: 

With the public hearing held on Tuesday, January 21, action is eligible on the annual 
update of the CLUP. A proposed motion is as follows:

I move that we adopt the  Amended and Restated Resolution Concerning Growth  
Areas as presented and to adopt the Resolution Amending the Comprehensive Land Use 
Plan

39



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
AMENDED AND RESTATED RESOLUTION 

CONCERNING GROWTH AREAS 

WHEREAS, on October 23, 2023, Town Council adopted a resolution concerning 
identified growth areas and, at a joint meeting with the Planning Board on August 20, 2024, 
several desired changes to the desired uses in the growth areas were discussed;  

WHEREAS, municipal growth through annexation is essential to sound urban 
development and continued economic stability in the Town of Weaverville; and 

WHEREAS, managing growth by extending municipal services makes sense and 
annexation of properties ensures that new development is built to Town of Weaverville 
standards;  

WHEREAS, influencing where and what commercial development occurs within the 
Weaverville area and providing balanced residential development is desirable to the Town 
of Weaverville; 

WHEREAS, the Town of Weaverville would like to see growth that is well-designed 
and that complements the development that is already within the Town;   

WHEREAS, the Town of Weaverville has identified certain properties along its 
municipal borders as having a high likelihood of development due to the presence of public 
water and sewer and has identified them as growth areas as described below; 

WHEREAS, the Town wishes to indicate its willingness to consider the voluntary 
annexation of the properties included within these growth areas and to inform the public of 
the types of development that the Town believes is consistent with its Comprehensive Land 
Use Plan and reasonable when considering the surrounding area; 

WHEREAS, Town Council now wishes to amend and restated such resolution; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Weaverville Town Council hereby 
declares and resolves as follows: 

1. The Town has identified the following growth areas which are now shown on the
Town’s GIS map, a copy of which is attached hereto:

a. Growth Area 1 – Gill Branch Valley Area
b. Growth Area 2 – Monticello Road West Area
c. Growth Area 3a – Ollie Weaver Road Area – Commercial (portion of the area

near and along Monticello Road and 25/70 which is more commercial in
nature)

d. Growth Area 3b – Ollie Weaver Road Area – Residential (portion that is more
rural and residential in nature).

e. Growth Area 4 – I-26 Corridor
f. Growth Area 5 – Reems Creek Road Area
g. Growth Area 6 – US Highway 25/70 Corridor

40



2 

2. The Town is likely to favorably consider voluntary annexation petitions received for
the properties shown within these growth areas. It is noted, however, that some
development, especially in Growth Area 3, may best proceed without annexation as
the provision of municipal services may be difficult in certain locations and some
areas may be ineligible for annexation by the Town of Weaverville due to legal
requirements regarding satellite annexation.

3. The following is valued, and as proposed development is considered on these
properties, the Town would like to see an emphasis on:

a. Great streets and gathering places, where the pedestrian is prioritized;
b. Connections between adjoining developments and to gathering places;
c. Walkability through the installation of sidewalks, greenways, and other multi-

modal trails, especially those that will connect to the existing or planned
pedestrian network within Weaverville;

d. Preservation of natural spaces for public use;
e. Establishment of open spaces that provides recreational opportunities in the

form of greenways, playing fields and/or playgrounds;
f. Protection of streams and creeks;
g. Preservation of mature trees and planting of street trees;
h. Landscape buffering and screening to protect views;
i. Reduction of stormwater runoff which threatens our water quality;
j. Energy conservation measures, such as EV charging stations and solar;
k. Inclusion of commercial uses that support compatible development.

4. Consistent with Town Council’s prior discussions and consensus, the following uses
of land are found to be compatible with the Town’s adopted Comprehensive Land Use
Plan and its Future Land Use Map, and may be desirable within Growth Area 1 [Gill
Branch Valley Area]:

a. mixed use development;
b. single family residential development;
c. duplexes;
d. townhouses;
e. multifamily development;
f. commercial development (especially those supporting residential

neighborhoods such as small general retail, restaurants, professional
services).

These uses are most consistent with the following zoning districts: R-1, R-2, R-3, R-
12, C-2, and conditional district zoning. 

5. Consistent with Town Council’s prior discussions and consensus, the following uses
of land are found to be compatible with the Town’s adopted Comprehensive Land Use

41



3 
 

Plan and Future Land Use Map, and may be desirable within Growth Area 2 
[Monticello Road West Area]:  

a. mixed use development; 
b. single family residential development; 
c. duplexes; 
d. townhouses; 
e. commercial development (especially those supporting residential 

neighborhoods such as small general retail, restaurants, professional 
services).  

These uses are consistent with the following zoning districts: R-1, R-2, R-3, C-2, and 
conditional district zoning.   

6. The following uses of land are found to be compatible with the Town’s adopted 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan and its Future Land Use Map, and may be desirable 
within Growth Area 3a [Ollie Weaver Road Area - Commercial]:   

a. commercial development (especially medical services such as healthcare 
facilities and medical offices; small general retail, restaurants, professional 
services; and other commercial uses supporting residential neighborhoods).  

These uses are consistent with the following zoning districts: C-2, conditional district 
zoning, and any neighborhood commercial or light commercial district. 

7. The following uses of land are found to be compatible with the Town’s adopted 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan and its Future Land Use Map, and may be desirable 
within Growth Area 3b [Ollie Weaver Road Area - Residential]:   

a. single family residential development; 
b. duplexes; 
c. commercial development (especially those supporting residential 

neighborhoods).  

These uses are consistent with the following zoning districts: R-1, R-2, R-3, C-2, and 
conditional district zoning.  

8. The following uses of land are found to be compatible with the Town’s adopted 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan and its Future Land Use Map, and may be desirable 
within Growth Area 4 [I-26 Corridor]:   

a. mixed use development; 
b. single family residential development; 
c. duplexes; 
d. townhouses; 
e. multifamily development; 
f. commercial development (especially medical services such as healthcare 

facilities and medical offices, small general retail, restaurants, hotels); 

These uses are most consistent with the following zoning districts: R-1. R-2, R-3, R-
12, C-2, and conditional district zoning. 

42



4 
 

9. The following uses of land are found to be compatible with the Town’s adopted 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan and its Future Land Use Map, and may be desirable 
within Growth Area 5 [Reems Creek Road Area]:   

a. mixed use development; 
b. single family residential development; 
c. duplexes; 
d. townhouses; 
e. commercial development (especially those supporting residential 

neighborhoods such as small general retail, restaurants, professional 
services).  

These uses are most consistent with the following zoning districts: R-1, R-2, C-2, and 
conditional district zoning, and any neighborhood commercial or light commercial 
district. 

10. The following uses of land are found to be compatible with the Town’s adopted 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan and its Future Land Use Map, and may be desirable 
within Growth Area 6 [US Highway 25/70 Corridor]:   

a. light commercial development (especially medical services such as healthcare 
facilities and medical offices; small general retail supporting residential 
neighborhoods; professional offices).  

These uses are consistent with the following zoning districts: C-2, conditional district 
zoning, and any neighborhood commercial or light commercial district. 

11. The Town is willing to support compatible development within these growth areas 
by considering approval of public water requests for such development if current or 
anticipated capacity is available and such approval is in the best interest of the Town 
and/or its water system. 

12. Town Council’s recommended procedure for approvals is for property owners to 
present voluntary annexation petitions either prior to or simultaneously with a water 
request and zoning request. Some deviations from this recommendation are 
anticipated in situations where a property is ineligible for municipal annexation or 
where provision of municipal services will prove difficult. 

13. Nothing herein is binding on the Town of Weaverville and the review and approval of 
all annexation petitions, land use applications, and water extension or commitment 
requests will be made in Town Council’s discretion following procedures as required 
by North Carolina law and local ordinance. 

14. The Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan is hereby automatically amended to 
include this amended and restated resolution concerning growth areas.  

  

43



5 

ADOPTED this the _____ day of January 2025. 

PATRICK FITZSIMMONS, Mayor 

TAMARA MERCER, Town Clerk 

44



RESOLUTION APPROVING AMENDMENTS TO THE TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE’S 
COMPREHENSIVE LAND USE PLAN 

WHEREAS, on 15 July 2019 the Weaverville Town Council adopted a Comprehensive 
Land Use Plan and has since that date used the plan to guide development within the Town; and 

WHEREAS, updates to the plan have previously been approved on 24 August 2020, 23 
August 2021, 24 October 2022, and 20 November 2023, and in a continued effort to reasonably 
maintain the plan, additional updates to the plan are now proposed; 

WHEREAS, the Town of Weaverville has authority pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 160D-
501(c) to amend its plan but must follow the process mandated for zoning text amendments set 
out it N.C. Gen. Stat. § 160D-601; and 

WHEREAS, on 3 October 2023 the Planning Board reviewed and recommended certain 
updates to the plan as outlined in a recommendation dated 4 October 2023; 

WHEREAS, as required by N.C. Gen. Stat. § 160D-601, a public hearing on the proposed 
updates to the plan was held during a meeting of Town Council on 21 January 2025 at 6:00 p.m., 
after due notice as required by law, including newspaper publication on 9 January 2025 and 16 
January 2025, and a written comment period beginning on 30 December 2024; 

WHEREAS, Town Council of the Town of Weaverville finds that the proposed updates to 
the plan will aid in guiding a coordinated, efficient, and orderly development within the Town’s 
planning jurisdiction and are in the best interest of the Town; 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE HEREBY 
RESOLVES, that the Comprehensive Land Use Plan originally adopted on 15 July 2019 is hereby 
amended to:  

• Include the attached revised Action Plan Table with updated priorities
• Include the attached updated Future Land Use Map with Growth Areas Shown
• Include by reference the Amended and Restated Resolution Regarding Development within

Identified Growth Areas adopted on 27 January 2025
• Automatically include updated demographic data as the same becomes available

ADOPTED this the 27th day of January 2025.

PATRICK FITZSIMMONS, Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 

TAMARA MERCER, Town Clerk 

45



CO
M

PR
EH

EN
SI

VE
 L

AN
D

 U
SE

 P
LA

N
  

ST
AT

ED
 G

O
AL

S,
 R

ES
PO

N
SI

BI
LI

TI
ES

, A
N

D
 P

RI
O

RI
TI

ES
 

(1
=h

ig
h 

pr
io

ri
ty

, a
dd

re
ss

ed
 in

 1
2 

m
on

th
s;

 2
=m

ed
iu

m
 p

ri
or

ity
, a

dd
re

ss
ed

 in
 2

4 
m

on
th

s;
 3

=l
ow

er
 p

ri
or

ity
, a

dd
re

ss
ed

 in
 3

6 
m

on
th

s;
 0

=p
ro

po
se

d 
de

le
tio

n)
 

 P
ro

po
se

d 
–J

an
ua

ry
 2

02
5 

1 

1 
20

25
 

TC
 

PB
 

St
af

f 
ST

AT
ED

 G
O

AL
 

N
O

TE
S 

St
af

f 
PB

 
TC

 
2 

PR
IO

RI
TI

ZA
TI

O
N

 
RE

SP
O

N
SI

BI
LI

TY
 

3 
W

AT
ER

 

4 
1 

1 
1 

1 
Up

da
te

 P
la

n 
an

d 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 to
 sl

ow
 la

nd
 u

se
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t i

f w
at

er
 tr

ea
tm

en
t p

la
nt

 e
xp

an
si

on
 

is
 p

os
tp

on
ed

 o
r t

er
m

in
at

ed
 a

nd
 w

at
er

 u
sa

ge
 a

nd
 

co
m

m
itm

en
ts

 re
ac

h 
70

%
 o

f a
va

ila
bl

e 
w

at
er

 
su

pp
ly

  

W
TP

 E
xp

an
si

on
 p

ro
je

ct
 

un
de

rw
ay

; c
om

m
itm

en
ts

 
an

d 
us

ag
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 
qu

ar
te

rl
y 


 


 


 

5 
1 

1 
1 

1 
Co

nt
in

ue
 m

on
ito

ri
ng

 w
at

er
 p

ro
du

ct
io

n,
 

al
lo

ca
tio

ns
, u

sa
ge

, a
nd

 a
va

ila
bi

lit
y 

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s b

y 
st

af
f w

ith
 

qu
ar

te
rl

y 
re

po
rt

s 


 

6 
1 

1 
1 

1 
Co

nt
in

ue
 re

se
rv

in
g 

w
at

er
 a

llo
ca

tio
n 

fo
r i

nf
ill

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t w
ith

in
 th

e 
to

w
n 

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s b

y 
st

af
f w

ith
 

qu
ar

te
rl

y 
re

po
rt

s 


 

7 
1 

1.
5 

2 
2 

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f W
at

er
 S

ys
te

m
 G

IS
 L

ay
er

 
Co

m
pl

et
ed

 in
 2

02
4 


 

8 
ST

RE
ET

S 
AN

D
 S

ID
EW

AL
K

S 

9 
1 

1 
1 

1 
Co

nt
in

ue
 th

e 
St

re
et

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

ro
gr

am
 

Pr
og

ra
m

 fu
nd

ed
 F

Y2
02

4 


 


 
10

 
1 

1 
1 

1 
Es

ta
bl

is
h/

su
pp

or
t c

om
m

itt
ee

 o
n 

Bi
ke

-P
ed

 P
la

n 
Bi

ke
-P

ed
 P

la
n 

ad
op

te
d 

6/
26

/2
3;

 
co

m
m

itt
ee

 fo
rm

ed
 1

1/
23

 


 


 

11
 

1 
1 

1 
1 

De
ve

lo
p 

pr
io

ri
tie

s/
tim

el
in

e 
fo

r B
ik

e-
Pe

d 
Pl

an
 

Bi
ke

-P
ed

 P
la

n 
ad

op
te

d 
6/

26
/2

3;
 

co
m

m
itt

ee
 w

or
ki

ng
 o

n 
th

is
 


 


 

12
 

2 
2 

2 
2 

Es
ta

bl
is

h/
co

nt
in

ue
 fu

nd
in

g 
a 

Si
de

w
al

k 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
ro

gr
am

 fo
r B

ik
e-

Pe
d 

pr
io

ri
tie

s 
Bi

ke
-P

ed
 P

la
n 

ad
op

te
d 

6/
26

/2
3 


 

13
 

2 
2.

5 
2 

3 
Re

vi
ew

 a
nn

ua
l p

ro
gr

es
s t

ow
ar

ds
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
Bi

ke
-P

ed
 P

la
n 

Bi
ke

-P
ed

 P
la

n 
ad

op
te

d 
6/

26
/2

3 


 


 


 

14
 

2 
2 

2 
2 

Co
ns

id
er

 b
ro

ad
en

in
g 

al
lo

w
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 ty

pe
s 

(d
up

le
xe

s, 
qu

ad
pl

ex
es

) i
n 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l. 

di
st

ri
ct

s b
y 

al
lo

w
in

g 
m

ul
tif

am
ily

 o
r e

st
ab

lis
hi

ng
 n

ew
 d

is
tr

ic
ts

 


 


 


 

15
 

3 
2.

5 
3 

2 
St

ud
y 

po
ss

ib
le

 a
do

pt
io

n 
of

 d
ri

ve
w

ay
 co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
st

an
da

rd
s –

 st
ee

p 
sl

op
e,

 re
du

ct
io

n 
of

 cu
rb

 cu
ts

, 
co

m
m

on
 d

ri
ve

w
ay

s 


 


 



46



CO
M

PR
EH

EN
SI

VE
 L

AN
D

 U
SE

 P
LA

N
  

ST
AT

ED
 G

O
AL

S,
 R

ES
PO

N
SI

BI
LI

TI
ES

, A
N

D
 P

RI
O

RI
TI

ES
 

(1
=h

ig
h 

pr
io

ri
ty

, a
dd

re
ss

ed
 in

 1
2 

m
on

th
s;

 2
=m

ed
iu

m
 p

ri
or

ity
, a

dd
re

ss
ed

 in
 2

4 
m

on
th

s;
 3

=l
ow

er
 p

ri
or

ity
, a

dd
re

ss
ed

 in
 3

6 
m

on
th

s;
 0

=p
ro

po
se

d 
de

le
tio

n)
 

 P
ro

po
se

d 
–J

an
ua

ry
 2

02
5 

2 

1 
20

25
 

TC
 

PB
 

St
af

f 
ST

AT
ED

 G
O

AL
 

N
O

TE
S 

St
af

f 
PB

 
TC

 

16
 

H
O

U
SI

N
G 

17
 

3 
3 

3 
2 

Co
ns

id
er

 w
ay

s t
o 

in
cr

ea
se

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
ffo

rd
ab

ili
ty

 
TC

 co
ns

id
er

ed
 in

 2
02

0 


 


 
18

 
3 

3 
3 

3 
Co

ns
id

er
 e

xp
an

si
on

 o
f t

he
 M

H
 O

ve
rl

ay
 D

is
tr

ic
t 


 


 


 

19
 

GE
N

ER
AL

 P
O

LI
CY

 M
AT

TE
RS

 

20
 

1 
1 

1 
Re

vi
ew

 &
 u

pd
at

e 
ec

on
om

ic
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t g

oa
ls

 
W

ED
AC

/T
C 

w
or

ki
ng

 o
n 

th
is

 


 
21

 
1 

1 
1 

Co
nt

in
ue

 to
 a

nn
ex

 p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s a

lo
ng

 th
e 

To
w

n’
s 

bo
rd

er
s i

n 
or

de
r t

o 
im

po
se

 th
e 

To
w

n’
s l

an
d 

us
e 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 

TC
 co

ns
en

su
s o

n 
5/

14
/2

2 
an

d 
re

so
lu

tio
n 

dt
d 

12
/1

3/
22

 &
 la

st
  

am
en

de
d 

5/
20

/2
4 


 

22
 

1 
1 

1 
1 

Co
nt

in
ue

 to
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 B
un

co
m

be
 C

ou
nt

y 
on

 
pl

an
ni

ng
 is

su
es

, e
sp

. i
n 

ar
ea

s n
ea

r T
ow

n 
lim

its
 

TC
 co

ns
en

su
s o

n 
5/

14
/2

2 


 


 

23
 

1 
1 

1 
En

ga
ge

 in
 co

nv
er

sa
tio

ns
 w

ith
 N

CD
OT

 a
bo

ut
 lo

ng
-

te
rm

 p
la

nn
in

g 
fo

r g
ro

w
th

 
TC

 co
ns

en
su

s o
n 

5/
14

/2
2 


 


 

24
 

1 
1 

1 
En

ga
ge

 in
 co

nv
er

sa
tio

ns
 w

ith
 M

SD
 a

bo
ut

 lo
ng

-
te

rm
 p

la
nn

in
g 

fo
r g

ro
w

th
 

TC
 co

ns
en

su
s o

n 
5/

14
/2

2;
 

M
SD

 U
pd

at
e 

on
 ??

? 


 


 

25
 

1 
1 

1 
1 

Co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 re

vi
ew

 o
f F

ut
ur

e 
La

nd
 U

se
 M

ap
 

TC
 w

or
ks

ho
p 

5/
14

/2
2;

 
ad

op
te

d 
11

/2
0/

23
  


 


 


 

26
 

1 
1 

1 
M

ak
e 

de
ci

si
on

s o
n 

an
ne

xa
tio

n 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
ab

ili
ty

 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 q
ua

lit
y 

m
un

ic
ip

al
 se

rv
ic

es
 to

 p
ro

po
se

d 
la

nd
 u

se
s t

o 
sa

m
e 

ex
te

nt
 a

nd
 u

nd
er

 cu
rr

en
t p

ol
ic

y 

TC
 co

ns
en

su
s o

n 
5/

14
/2

2 
an

d 
re

so
lu

tio
n 

dt
d 

10
/2

3/
23

 


 

27
 

2 
2 

2 
2 

In
cr

ea
se

 re
cr

ea
tio

na
l o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s, 

es
pe

ci
al

ly
 o

n 
To

w
n 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
El

le
r C

ov
e 

W
at

er
sh

ed
 (s

tu
dy

 
co

m
pl

et
e 

2/
24

, g
ra

nt
 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

pe
nd

in
g 

3/
24

); 
Re

em
s C

re
ek

 G
re

en
w

ay
 (s

tu
dy

 
pe

nd
in

g)
 


 


 

28
 

3 
3 

2 
In

ve
st

ig
at

e 
po

ss
ib

ili
ty

 o
f r

ee
st

ab
lis

hi
ng

 d
ir

ec
t b

us
 

ro
ut

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
W

ea
ve

rv
ill

e 
an

d 
As

he
vi

lle
 


 


 

29
 

3 
3 

3 
2 

Re
vi

ew
 o

f o
ve

rl
ap

pi
ng

 la
nd

 u
se

 a
ut

ho
ri

ty
 

Ta
ke

 u
p 

w
he

n 
Co

un
ty

 in
iti

at
es

 


 


 
30

 
3 

2.
5 

3 
2 

N
eg

ot
ia

te
 in

te
rl

oc
al

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t(

s)
 w

ith
 C

ou
nt

y 
(B

ui
ld

in
g 

Pe
rm

its
 a

nd
 In

sp
ec

tio
ns

) 
Ta

ke
 u

p 
w

he
n 

Co
un

ty
 in

iti
at

es
 




 

47



CO
M

PR
EH

EN
SI

VE
 L

AN
D

 U
SE

 P
LA

N
  

ST
AT

ED
 G

O
AL

S,
 R

ES
PO

N
SI

BI
LI

TI
ES

, A
N

D
 P

RI
O

RI
TI

ES
 

(1
=h

ig
h 

pr
io

ri
ty

, a
dd

re
ss

ed
 in

 1
2 

m
on

th
s;

 2
=m

ed
iu

m
 p

ri
or

ity
, a

dd
re

ss
ed

 in
 2

4 
m

on
th

s;
 3

=l
ow

er
 p

ri
or

ity
, a

dd
re

ss
ed

 in
 3

6 
m

on
th

s;
 0

=p
ro

po
se

d 
de

le
tio

n)
 

 P
ro

po
se

d 
–J

an
ua

ry
 2

02
5 

3 

1 
20

25
 

TC
 

PB
 

St
af

f 
ST

AT
ED

 G
O

AL
 

N
O

TE
S 

St
af

f 
PB

 
TC

 
31

 
3 

3 
3 

3 
Ev

al
ua

te
 n

ee
d 

to
 st

re
ng

th
en

 re
gu

la
tio

ns
 w

ith
 

re
ga

rd
 to

 h
az

ar
d 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
Bu

nc
om

be
-M

ad
is

on
 H

az
ar

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

Pl
an

 d
at

ed
 6

/2
1 


 


 


 

32
 

LA
N

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

RE
GU

LA
TI

O
N

S 

33
 

1 
1 

Re
vi

ew
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l u
se

s f
or

 co
ns

is
te

nc
y 

an
d 

co
m

pa
tib

ili
ty

 w
ith

 p
ol

ic
y 

di
re

ct
iv

es
 

PB
 R

ec
om

m
en

de
d 

5/
24

 


 


 


 

34
 

1 
1 

De
te

rm
in

e 
ho

w
 to

 re
gu

la
te

 co
nd

om
in

iu
m

s 


 


 


 
35

 
1 

1 
1 

1 
Co

ns
id

er
 re

gu
la

tio
ns

 th
at

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
or

 g
re

en
w

ay
 d

ed
ic

at
io

n,
 co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s /

 
Li

nk
 w

ith
 T

re
e 

Co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

Co
ns

id
er

 re
gu

la
tio

ns
 co

nc
er

ni
ng

 tr
ee

 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n/
tr

ee
 ca

no
py

 p
re

se
rv

at
io

n 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 B
oa

rd
 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

1/
25

 
Ac

tiv
e 

Ite
m

 


 


 


 

36
 

1 
1 

St
ud

y 
&

 co
ns

id
er

 re
gu

la
tio

ns
 o

n 
m

in
/m

ax
 p

ar
ki

ng
 

an
d 

lo
ad

in
g 

ar
ea

s 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 B

oa
rd

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
1/

25
 

Ac
tiv

e 
Ite

m
 


 


 


 

37
 

1 
1 

Se
tb

ac
ks

 w
he

n 
pr

op
er

ty
 li

ne
 cr

os
se

s a
 ro

ad
 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 B
oa

rd
 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

1/
25

 
Ac

tiv
e 

Ite
m

 
38

 
2 

2 
St

ud
y 

&
 co

ns
id

er
 re

gu
la

tio
n 

of
 sh

or
t-

te
rm

 re
nt

al
s 

TC
 C

on
se

ns
us

 to
 D

el
ay

 
8/

20
/2

4;
 ch

an
ge

 in
 le

ga
l 

au
th

or
ity

 1
2/

24
 


 


 


 

39
 

2 
2 

2 
2 

Co
ns

id
er

 T
ow

n-
in

iti
at

ed
 re

zo
ni

ng
s t

o 
be

tt
er

 a
lig

n 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
us

es
 w

ith
 u

nd
er

ly
in

g 
zo

ni
ng

 d
is

tr
ic

ts
 

or
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

 lo
ng

 d
or

m
an

t p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s 

Fo
cu

si
ng

 o
n 

lo
ng

 d
or

m
an

t 
pr

op
er

tie
s 


 


 


 

40
 

2 
2 

2 
2 

Un
de

rt
ak

e 
a 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 re

vi
ew

 o
f z

on
in

g 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 


 


 


 

41
 

2 
2 

2 
2 

De
te

rm
in

e 
ne

ed
 o

r d
es

ir
e 

fo
r T

ow
n 

gr
ad

in
g 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 fo

r p
ro

je
ct

s b
et

w
ee

n 
1 

ac
re

 a
nd

 ½
 

ac
re

 


 


 


 

42
 

3 
3 

2 
2 

Re
vi

se
 w

ir
el

es
s t

el
ec

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
fa

ci
lit

y 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 fo
r l

eg
al

 co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

an
d 

po
lic

y 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 


 


 



48



CO
M

PR
EH

EN
SI

VE
 L

AN
D

 U
SE

 P
LA

N
  

ST
AT

ED
 G

O
AL

S,
 R

ES
PO

N
SI

BI
LI

TI
ES

, A
N

D
 P

RI
O

RI
TI

ES
 

(1
=h

ig
h 

pr
io

ri
ty

, a
dd

re
ss

ed
 in

 1
2 

m
on

th
s;

 2
=m

ed
iu

m
 p

ri
or

ity
, a

dd
re

ss
ed

 in
 2

4 
m

on
th

s;
 3

=l
ow

er
 p

ri
or

ity
, a

dd
re

ss
ed

 in
 3

6 
m

on
th

s;
 0

=p
ro

po
se

d 
de

le
tio

n)
 

 P
ro

po
se

d 
–J

an
ua

ry
 2

02
5 

4 

1 
20

25
 

TC
 

PB
 

St
af

f 
ST

AT
ED

 G
O

AL
 

N
O

TE
S 

St
af

f 
PB

 
TC

 
43

 
3 

3 
3 

3 
Co

nt
in

ue
 to

 a
na

ly
ze

 w
ay

s t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

st
an

da
rd

 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 re

se
rv

e 
us

e 
of

 co
nd

iti
on

al
 

zo
ni

ng
 fo

r u
ni

qu
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

Ar
ea

s i
m

pr
ov

ed
:  

M
ix

ed
 U

se
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Ap
ar

tm
en

ts
 


 


 


 

44
 

PL
AN

 C
O

N
SI

ST
EN

CY
 R

EV
IE

W
 - 

LE
GA

LL
Y 

RE
Q

U
IR

ED
 

45
 

- 
- 

- 
Co

ns
ul

t p
la

n 
pr

io
ri

tie
s i

f i
nc

on
si

st
en

ci
es

 d
ev

el
op

 
in

 th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
is

 P
la

n 


 


 


 

46
 

- 
- 

- 
Co

ns
ul

t t
he

 F
ut

ur
e 

La
nd

 U
se

 M
ap

 a
nd

 u
se

 
de

sc
ri

pt
io

ns
 fo

r P
la

n 
co

ns
is

te
nc

y 
re

vi
ew

 
Le

ga
lly

 re
qu

ir
ed

 


 


 


 

47
 

- 
- 

- 
Co

ns
ul

t A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

 a
nd

 st
at

ed
 g

oa
ls

 fo
r P

la
n 

co
ns

is
te

nc
y 

re
vi

ew
 

Le
ga

lly
 re

qu
ir

ed
 


 


 


 

48
 

- 
- 

- 
Co

ns
ul

t a
dd

iti
on

al
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

pl
an

s f
or

 P
la

n 
co

ns
is

te
nc

y 
re

vi
ew

 
Le

ga
lly

 re
qu

ir
ed

 


 


 


 

49
 

M
AI

N
TE

N
AN

CE
 O

F 
PL

AN
 A

N
D

 R
EG

U
LA

TI
O

N
S 

– 
LE

GA
L 

CO
M

PL
IA

N
CE

 A
N

D
 A

CC
O

U
N

TA
BI

LI
TY

 

50
 

- 
- 

- 
Co

nd
uc

t a
n 

an
nu

al
 re

vi
ew

 o
f p

ro
gr

es
s t

ow
ar

ds
 

ac
co

m
pl

is
hm

en
t o

f P
la

n 
go

al
s  

Ju
ly

/A
ug

us
t e

ac
h 

ye
ar

 


 


 


 

51
 

- 
- 

- 
Up

da
te

 a
pp

en
di

x 
to

 th
is

 P
la

n 
w

he
n 

ne
w

 p
la

ns
 

or
 a

m
en

dm
en

ts
 a

re
 a

do
pt

ed
 

To
 k

ee
p 

Pl
an

 u
p-

to
-d

at
e 

an
d 

us
ab

le
 


 

52
 

- 
- 

- 
Co

nd
uc

t a
n 

an
nu

al
 re

vi
ew

 o
f z

on
in

g 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 to
 

en
su

re
 st

at
ut

or
y 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

an
d 

co
ns

is
te

nc
y 

w
ith

 
st

at
ed

 g
oa

ls
 

Fo
r l

eg
al

 co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

an
d 

pr
og

re
ss

 to
w

ar
ds

 P
la

n 
go

al
s 


 

53
 

- 
- 

- 
Un

de
rt

ak
e 

an
nu

al
 re

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 T

ab
le

 o
f U

se
s 

Fo
r l

eg
al

 co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 


 

54
 

- 
- 

- 
Co

nd
uc

t a
n 

an
nu

al
 re

vi
ew

 o
f s

ub
di

vi
si

on
 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

st
at

ut
or

y 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
an

d 
co

ns
is

te
nc

y 
w

ith
 st

at
ed

 g
oa

ls
 

Fo
r l

eg
al

 co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

an
d 

pr
og

re
ss

 to
w

ar
ds

 P
la

n 
go

al
s 


 

55
 

- 
- 

- 
Co

ns
id

er
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f o
r a

m
en

dm
en

t t
o 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 co

ns
is

te
nt

 w
ith

 la
w

 a
nd

 P
la

n 
Fo

r p
ro

gr
es

s t
ow

ar
ds

 P
la

n 
go

al
s 


 


 


 

56
 

- 
- 

- 
Un

de
rt

ak
e 

a 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 u
pd

at
e 

to
 th

e 
Pl

an
 in

 
20

25
 o

r a
t s

uc
h 

tim
e 

as
 su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l l
eg

is
la

tiv
e 

or
 

ot
he

r c
ha

ng
es

 a
re

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
ed

  

20
25

 is
 p

ro
po

se
d 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 

pr
ov

id
e 

fo
r 5

-y
ea

r u
pd

at
es

 
th

at
 b

et
te

r a
lig

n 
w

/ 
Ce

ns
us

 


 


 



49



50

Town of Weaverville Zoning 

9/24/2024, 3:07:18 PM 

~-~ -_ ~ Weaverville Town Limits - Downtown - Residential 

Weaverville Future Land Use - Industrial Weaverville Growth Areas 

- Commercial 

~ ,iJ-

@: 
1:109,209 

0 75 1 5 3m, 

1 25 25 5 km 

Esri NASA, NGA USGS. Bmcombe County NC, St,1te of North G.lrollrw 
DOT, Esri. TomTorn, Garmin, SafeGraph GeoTechoologies. Inc. METIINASA, 



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

Date of Meeting: 

Subject: 

Presenter: 

Attachments: 

Monday, January 27, 2025 

Set Public Hearing on Text Amendments: Parking Regulations, 
Tree Preservation, Setback Requirements for Certain Lots 

Planning Director 

Planning Board Recommendations with Proposed Text 
Amendments, Staff Reports 

Description:  

Parking Regulations: 

The current goals of the Comprehensive Land Use Plan (CLUP) call for a review of the town’s 
parking regulations. The goal of reviewing regulations for non-conforming lots was also given 
number 2 (medium) priority within the current goals of the CLUP but is believed to rise to a 
number 1 (highest) priority in the update of the goals and priorities for this coming year. Staff and 
the Planning Board have identified a number of enumerated uses where the town requires more 
parking than may be needed by a particular establishment, more parking than would be required in 
similar jurisdictions, and therefore creating unnecessary impervious surface.  

Tree Preservation: 

The current goals of the Comprehensive Land Use Plan (CLUP) call for an ongoing review of tree 
preservation regulations. The goal of reviewing zoning regulations was also given number 2 
(medium) priority within the CLUP giving staff the direction to accomplish or address the stated 
goal within 24 months, but it was also determined that this goal should be addressed first should 
the highest priority goals be accomplished. During the Planning Board’s deliberations on the topic, 
it was determined that an efficient way to address this goal would be to couple it with recently 
enacted conservation subdivision standards. As such, the proposed text amendment aims to lower 
the threshold for conservation subdivision standards from 25 lots to 10 lots.  

Setback Requirements for Certain Lots: 

Though rarely encountered, staff has experienced a scenario where the property lines for a certain 
lot extends into or across a roadway. Given current ordinance language and in this scenario, a 
structure is permitted to be constructed closer to the road than would otherwise be allowed. The 
Planning Board has reviewed and offered a recommendation on a text amendment which would 
address this issue. 

Action Requested: 

A motion to set a public hearing on the aforementioned text amendments for February 24, 
2025 at 6pm or at such time as Council reaches the matter.  

51



RECOMMENDED AMENDMENTS TO CHAPTER 20 
REGARDING PARKING REGULATIONS 

Town of Weaverville 
Planning Board 

Recommendation and Plan Consistency Statement for 
Proposed Text Amendments 

On September 3, 2024, and January 7, 2025, the Planning Board reviewed and, with a unanimous vote, 
recommend to Town Council the attached proposed text amendments which provide for reduced 
parking requirements for certain enumerated uses. During the September 3 meeting of the Board, it 
was determined that the current parking regulations for these enumerated uses were more than what 
is needed for these establishments and what is currently required for similarly sized jurisdictions.  The 
Board proposes that certain parking requirements be lowered as shown in the attached proposed 
ordinance to reduce unnecessary parking spaces and to also reduce unnecessary impervious surfaces. 
These amended parking regulations also account for electric vehicle charging stations and buy online 
pick up in store spaces which current regulation do not address. This favorable recommendation is 
based on the findings as stated herein.  

The Planning Board recently undertook a review of parking regulations, a high priority within the CLUP 
priorities. The Planning Board has found that these proposed code amendments are consistent with 
the Town’s comprehensive land use plan, reasonable, and in the best interest of the public in that 
such amendments provide for regulations which reduce current parking requirements and the 
creation of unnecessary impervious surfaces.  

_______________________________________ 
Jane Kelley, Chairman of the Planning Board  
January 7, 2025 

52



Sec. 20-3501. Off-street parking. 

(a) Off-street automobile storage or parking space shall be provided on every lot on which any of the following
uses are hereafter established. Each parking space shall have an all-weather surface with minimum
dimensions of nine by 18 feet. The number of parking spaces provided shall be at least as great as the
number specified below for various uses. Each space shall be provided with vehicular access to a street or
alley.

Uses Required Parking 
Residential 
Dwelling - Single Family  Two spaces  
Dwelling - Duplex Two spaces for each dwelling unit 
Dwelling - Multifamily (four or less 
units/building)  

Two 1.5 spaces for each dwelling unit 

Dwelling - Multifamily (more than 
four units/building)  

Two 1.5  spaces for each dwelling unit 

Dwelling - Secondary  One space 
Family Care Home (6 or fewer 
residents)  

Two spaces  

Child Care Home (6 or fewer 
children)  

- 

Home Occupation - 
Manufactured Home Two spaces  
Manufactured Home Park - 
Recreational Vehicle  - 
Recreational Vehicle Park, 
Campground  

One space for each RV/camp site 

Bed & Breakfast One space for each bedroom 
Hotel, Motel, Inn  One space for each room plus one space for each employee 

working on the shift of greatest employment  
Office / Service 
Animal Services, Veterinary Clinic  One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space 
Automated Teller Machines  Two spaces  
Automobile Services, Gas Station One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space 
Automobile Services, Repair  Five spaces for each service bay 
Banks, Credit Unions, Financial 
Services  

Five spaces for each employee 

Child Care Center (more than 6 
children)  

One space for each room plus one space for each employee 
working on the shift of greatest employment  

Community Service Organization One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space 
Equipment Rental (Exterior Storage) One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space 
Equipment Rental (Interior Storage) One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space 
Funeral Home One space for each four seats in the principal assembly room 
Group Care Facility (more than 6 
residents)  

One space for each room plus one space for each employee 
working on the shift of greatest employment  

Government Services One space for each room plus one space for each employee 
working on the shift of greatest employment  

Kennels One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space 
Medical Services - Clinic, Urgent 
Care Center, Hospital  

One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space 2.5 per 
patient room 

53



Medical Services - Doctor Office Five spaces for each office 2.5 per patient room 
Personal Services One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space 
Post Office One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space 
Professional Services One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space 
Studio - Art, Dance Martial Arts, 
Music  

One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space 

Retail / Restaurants 
Accessory Retail One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space 
Alcoholic Beverage Sales Store One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space 
Auto / Mechanical Parts Store One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space 
Bar / Tavern / Night Club One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space 
Drive-Thru Retail / Restaurant One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space 
General Retail (Under 10,000 sq. ft.) One space for each 300  400 feet of gross floor space 
General Retail (10,000 - 24,999 sq. 
ft.)  

One space for each 300  400 feet of gross floor space 

General Retail (25,000 sq. ft. or 
more)  

One space for each 300 400 feet of gross floor space 

Multi-tenant Development (Under 
25,000 sq. ft.)  

One space for each 300 400 feet of gross floor space 

Multi-tenant Development (25,000 
sq. ft. or more)  

One space for each 300 400 feet of gross floor space for the entire 
facility  

Pawn Shop One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space 
Restaurant One space for each three seats plus one space for each employee 

working on the shift of greatest employment  
Vehicle / Heavy Equipment Sales - 
Indoor  

One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space 

Vehicle / Heavy Equipment Sales - 
Outdoor  

One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space 

Entertainment / Recreation 
Amusements - Indoor One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space 
Amusements - Outdoor One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space 
Cultural or Community Facility  One space for each two hundred square feet within the principal 

assembly room  
Recreation Facilities - Indoor One space for each seven feet of seating capacity dedicated to 

patron use and one space for each employee working on the shift 
of greatest employment  

Recreation Facilities - Outdoor One space for each seven feet of seating capacity dedicated to 
patron use and one space for each employee working on the shift 
of greatest employment  

Theater - Motion Picture  One space for each four seats in the principal assembly room 
Manufacturing / Wholesale / Storage 
Manufacturing, Heavy One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space One space 

for each 750 square feet of administrative space + one space for 
each 4,000 square feet of industrial space 

Manufacturing, Light One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space One space 
for each 750 square feet of administrative space + one space for 
each 4,000 square feet of industrial space 

Manufacturing, Neighborhood One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space One space 
for each 750 square feet of administrative space + one space for 
each 4,000 square feet of industrial space 

54



Metal Product Fabrication, Machine 
or Welding Shop, Auto Body Shop  

One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space 

Mini-Warehouses One space for each 300 square feet of gross floor space 
Outdoor Storage Yard One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space 
Warehousing and Distribution - 
Exterior Storage  

One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space One space for 
each 750 square feet of administrative space + one space for each 
4,000 square feet of industrial space 

Warehousing and Distribution - 
Interior Storage  

One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space One space for 
each 750 square feet of administrative space + one space for each 
4,000 square feet of industrial space 

Civic / Institutional 
Cemeteries - 
Public Safety Facilities  One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space 
Religious Institutions One space for each four seats in the principal assembly room 
Schools Two spaces for each classroom and for each administrative office 

or one space for each four pupils for high schools or higher.  
Utilities 
Wireless Telecommunication 
Facility - Stealth  

- 

Wireless Telecommunication 
Facility - Tower  

- 

Miscellaneous Uses 
Adult Establishment One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space 
Agriculture - Commercial One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space 
Agriculture - Neighborhood - 
Crematories One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space 
Event Center  One space for each four seats in the principal assembly room 
Gaming Terminals - 
Tattoo Parlors One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space 
Mixed-Use Building or Structure Match parking requirements with closest uses 
Noxious Uses One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space 
Temporary Uses 
Farmers Market - 
Mobile Food Vendor  - 
Temporary Use  - 

(b) Extension of parking space into a residential district. Required parking space may not extend from a
commercial district (C-1 and C-2) or from a conditional district that contains any commercial or office use
into any residential use district.

(c) Notwithstanding the foregoing, no additional off-street parking other than the parking currently available in
the C-1 district shall be required except where the structures currently located on an existing lot of record
containing more than 1,875 square feet are razed and the lot of record is put to a new use in which event the
parking regulations of this section shall be fully applicable to said property.

(d) Joint use of parking lots. The required parking space for any number of separate uses may be combined in
one lot, but the required number of spaces assigned to one use may not be assigned to another for use
during the same hours.

(e) Remote parking. For any use except residential, if the off-street parking spaces required by this division
cannot be reasonably provided on the same lot on which the use is located, such spaces may be provided on

55



any land within 800 feet walking distance of any entrance to such use, provided that the district use 
regulations for the district in which the remote parking spaces are located permit the use which the parking 
space serves.  

(f) Parking spaces may be occupied by electric vehicle charging stations and online order pick up and shall not
count against minimum parking spaces required.

56



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 
Staff Report: Parking Standards Prepared August 2024 

Sources:  Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan 

Page 1 of 6 

Comprehensive Land Use Plan Stated Goal and Background Information 

The current goals of the Comprehensive Land Use Plan (CLUP), last updated in November 2023, call for 
the study and consideration of parking regulations. The goal of considering the use of flag lots was also 
given number 2 (medium) priority within the CLUP giving staff the direction to accomplish or address the 
stated goal within 24 months.   

General Observations 

As noted during the recent joint meeting of Town Council and the Planning Board, the town’s land use 
regulations currently require more parking spaces for certain uses than other jurisdictions. This has led 
to existing facilities being nonconforming upon annexation and generally created more impervious 
surface than is being used for parking. 

New Parking Spaces in C-1 

The town’s current parking regulations do not require additional off street parking spaces for most new 
uses established in the district. Subparagraph 20-3501(c) states in part “no additional off street parking 
other than the parking currently available in the C-1 district shall be required except where the 
structures currently located on an existing lot of record containing more than 1,875 square feet are 
razed and the lot of record is put to a new use.”  

Other Jurisdictions 

The following is a chart showing what certain town parking requirements are in other jurisdictions. 

Weaverville Black Mountain Brevard Buncombe Co. 
Multifamily Res. 2 per unit 2 per unit 1.5 per unit 1.75 per unit 
Gen. Retail 1 per 300 sq. ft. 1 per 300 sq. ft. 1 per 300 sq.ft 1 per 300 sq. ft. 
Multitenant 1 per 300 sq. ft. 1 per 300 sq. ft. 1 per 300 sq. ft. 1 per 300 sq. ft. 
Manufacturing 1 per 200 sq. ft. 1 space per 

employee (max 
shift) 

1 per 750 sq. ft. of 
admin space / +1 
per 4,000 sq. ft. of 
industrial space 

2 per 3 
employees + I 
per company 
vehicle 

Warehousing 1 per 300 sq. ft. 1 space per 
employee (max 
shift) 

1 per 750 sq. ft. of 
admin space / +1 
per 4,000 sq. ft. of 
industrial space 

2 per 3 
employees + I 
per company 
vehicle 

57



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 
Staff Report: Parking Standards Prepared August 2024 

Sources:  Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan 

Page 2 of 6 

The parking regulations for multifamily residential, manufacturing and warehousing most often appear 
to be problematic.  

The apartment complexes along Monticello Road were each established at two spaces per unit while the 
impending Maribel complex was granted a reduction in parking spaces in the conditional district which 
was granted to govern the project. All others noted that less parking would be required in most other 
jurisdictions.  

Manufacturing and warehousing have also been problematic in that the town requires parking spaces 
for the aggregate of the entire facility. This does not take into account, what is like to be the case, that a 
massive amount of space within the facility is not occupied by vary many people. For instance, in the 
case of Brevard, more parking is required for a portion of the facility occupied by administrative space, 
while requiring less parking for the portion of the facility occupied by industrial space.  

Variances 

Over the years, the Board of Adjustment have heard and granted variances from the town’s parking 
requirements. In each case, the applicant for the variance substantiated that they did not desire, and/or 
would use, the number of spaces required by the town. Ingles alone has achieved three such variances 
related to parking (construction of garden center, fuel center and carwash, conversion of garden center 
to Ace Hardware). It may be worth looking into reducing the amount of spaces required for general 
retail and multitenant developments as well.  

 Administrative Reductions of Parking Requirements 

Other ordinances allow for the administrative reduction of parking standards based upon objective 
variables. These variables include tree preservation, bicycle parking, BOPIS (buy online pickup in store) 
spaces, and EV (electronic vehicle) parking spaces. The town’s current parking requirements do not 
permit such a reduction or even the acknowledgement that BOPIS or EV spaces do not reduce the 
number of required parking spaces.   

October Update – Hospital/Medical Parking Requirements 

Weaverville Black Mountain Brevard Buncombe Co. 
Medical-Hospital 1 per 200 sq. ft. 6 spaces per 

doctor =+ 1 per 
employee 

2.5 per patient 
room 

1 per 2 beds + 1 
per doctor + per 2 
employees 

58



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 
Staff Report: Parking Standards Prepared August 2024 

Sources:  Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan 

Page 3 of 6 

Proposed Ordinance Amendments 

Sec. 20-3501. Off-street parking. 

(a) Off-street automobile storage or parking space shall be provided on every lot on which any of the following
uses are hereafter established. Each parking space shall have an all-weather surface with minimum
dimensions of nine by 18 feet. The number of parking spaces provided shall be at least as great as the
number specified below for various uses. Each space shall be provided with vehicular access to a street or
alley.

Uses Required Parking 
Residential 
Dwelling - Single Family Two spaces 
Dwelling - Duplex Two spaces for each dwelling unit 
Dwelling - Multifamily (four or less 
units/building)  

Two 1.5 spaces for each dwelling unit 

Dwelling - Multifamily (more than four 
units/building)  

Two 1.5  spaces for each dwelling unit 

Dwelling - Secondary One space 
Family Care Home (6 or fewer 
residents)  

Two spaces 

Child Care Home (6 or fewer children) - 
Home Occupation - 
Manufactured Home Two spaces 
Manufactured Home Park - 
Recreational Vehicle - 
Recreational Vehicle Park, 
Campground  

One space for each RV/camp site 

Bed & Breakfast One space for each bedroom 
Hotel, Motel, Inn One space for each room plus one space for each employee working 

on the shift of greatest employment  
Office / Service 
Animal Services, Veterinary Clinic One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space 
Automated Teller Machines Two spaces 
Automobile Services, Gas Station One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space 
Automobile Services, Repair Five spaces for each service bay 
Banks, Credit Unions, Financial 
Services  

Five spaces for each employee 

Child Care Center (more than 6 
children)  

One space for each room plus one space for each employee working 
on the shift of greatest employment  

Community Service Organization One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space 
Equipment Rental (Exterior Storage) One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space 
Equipment Rental (Interior Storage) One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space 
Funeral Home One space for each four seats in the principal assembly room 
Group Care Facility (more than 6 
residents)  

One space for each room plus one space for each employee working 
on the shift of greatest employment  

59

--
f. .~ 

.- -),, .,,,_ 
--

. !>-.~ • I (;'_¥ ·s',. J 

f t!', 
. .... , . J .Jc • ',t,:,:-~ .' ~ "' 

- - -
I ~~ >;.,!K..,. 

·~~ 1 I ~ 

I .,----
' 

.. _, .., 
I I ,,..~, l j ., " i I 

..._ 
,--.,. '1f,,-

I i r· ' . ,, p I 
:I'. I' • 

fl I 
f ···, v,. 

1 l -
,-'! . j - . -,, 

' -"'!~p ... , --···· 
.,. T ,◄ ,, ~ - -.....;_ •...• "I 

.. ' - t' s- ·.,.-~ 
,µ 

.r' --- ... ,; 



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 
Staff Report: Parking Standards Prepared August 2024 

Sources:  Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan 

Page 4 of 6 

Government Services One space for each room plus one space for each employee working 
on the shift of greatest employment  

Kennels One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space 
Medical Services - Clinic, Urgent Care 
Center, Hospital 

One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space 2.5 per patient 
room 

Medical Services - Doctor Office Five spaces for each office 2.5 per patient room 
Personal Services One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space 
Post Office One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space 
Professional Services One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space 
Studio - Art, Dance Martial Arts, Music One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space 
Retail / Restaurants 
Accessory Retail One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space 
Alcoholic Beverage Sales Store One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space 
Auto / Mechanical Parts Store One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space 
Bar / Tavern / Night Club One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space 
Drive-Thru Retail / Restaurant One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space 
General Retail (Under 10,000 sq. ft.) One space for each 300  400 feet of gross floor space 
General Retail (10,000 - 24,999 sq. ft.) One space for each 300  400 feet of gross floor space 
General Retail (25,000 sq. ft. or more) One space for each 300 400 feet of gross floor space 
Multi-tenant Development (Under 
25,000 sq. ft.)  

One space for each 300 400 feet of gross floor space 

Multi-tenant Development (25,000 sq. 
ft. or more)  

One space for each 300 400 feet of gross floor space for the entire 
facility  

Pawn Shop One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space 
Restaurant One space for each three seats plus one space for each employee 

working on the shift of greatest employment  
Vehicle / Heavy Equipment Sales - 
Indoor  

One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space 

Vehicle / Heavy Equipment Sales - 
Outdoor  

One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space 

Entertainment / Recreation 
Amusements - Indoor One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space 
Amusements - Outdoor One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space 
Cultural or Community Facility One space for each two hundred square feet within the principal 

assembly room  
Recreation Facilities - Indoor One space for each seven feet of seating capacity dedicated to patron 

use and one space for each employee working on the shift of greatest 
employment  

Recreation Facilities - Outdoor One space for each seven feet of seating capacity dedicated to patron 
use and one space for each employee working on the shift of greatest 
employment  

Theater - Motion Picture One space for each four seats in the principal assembly room 
Manufacturing / Wholesale / Storage 
Manufacturing, Heavy One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space One space for 

each 750 square feet of administrative space + one space for each 
4,000 square feet of industrial space 

60

I I I 
I 

I I I 

, 
-~ 'l,. 

• ;t. ' ' 

•· ~ •- .. .i .. 

... ~ ' ·· .1· 
,.: - . ~-.. --::--

, ';,; ,··5'\. • ,1 
; . ..: ...... ~~., 

• P;f ), .. ,.s' ..::...._ "' ~ .."l'· • ,'"If~ . .i i,c • " • ·- ,,, -- J 

? ~ ~ '-= .. '-' ~ 

·}~. -~ -
-

' , a I _ . .,-,' i• i .... I 7, ..... 
I 

I ~ C ' .\ l ....l. ' ' I .II 

I r I ii 
,~ 

~ .. , I ..... "·~ .. ': qi 
J! il I,,:[ !l :: ii I ~ r r=r ·· 1.i.:"?,i ,-, ,;; i•il '_ill 

t ,. j .1. I ',, l ~ r,: ... _,.J. I :"'.'.',' ,.,..,., 

~ t ,, .. \ l l -~ -.,...~:: 

,-1 A •• -
,, 

' . ,, Y. ... • .,._ ~ ' .. i >, I ',I .-~ ~ '· , .. 

,µ 

--- ' 

, . 
-



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina  
Staff Report: Parking Standards Prepared August 2024 
 
Sources:  
 

Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan 

 

Page 5 of 6 
 

Manufacturing, Light  One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space One space for 
each 750 square feet of administrative space + one space for each 
4,000 square feet of industrial space 

Manufacturing, Neighborhood  One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space One space for 
each 750 square feet of administrative space + one space for each 
4,000 square feet of industrial space 

Metal Product Fabrication, Machine 
or Welding Shop, Auto Body Shop  

One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space  

Mini-Warehouses  One space for each 300 square feet of gross floor space  
Outdoor Storage Yard  One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space  
Warehousing and Distribution - 
Exterior Storage  

One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space One space for each 
750 square feet of administrative space + one space for each 4,000 
square feet of industrial space 

Warehousing and Distribution - 
Interior Storage  

One space for each 300 feet of gross floor space One space for each 
750 square feet of administrative space + one space for each 4,000 
square feet of industrial space 

Civic / Institutional 
Cemeteries  -  
Public Safety Facilities  One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space  
Religious Institutions  One space for each four seats in the principal assembly room  
Schools  Two spaces for each classroom and for each administrative office or 

one space for each four pupils for high schools or higher.  
Utilities 
Wireless Telecommunication Facility - 
Stealth  

-  

Wireless Telecommunication Facility - 
Tower  

-  

Miscellaneous Uses 
Adult Establishment  One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space  
Agriculture - Commercial  One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space  
Agriculture - Neighborhood  -  
Crematories  One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space  
Event Center  One space for each four seats in the principal assembly room  
Gaming Terminals  -  
Tattoo Parlors  One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space  
Mixed-Use Building or Structure  Match parking requirements with closest uses  
Noxious Uses  One space for each 200 square feet of gross floor space  
Temporary Uses  
Farmers Market  -  
Mobile Food Vendor  -  
Temporary Use  -  

 

(b) Extension of parking space into a residential district. Required parking space may not extend from a 
commercial district (C-1 and C-2) or from a conditional district that contains any commercial or office use 
into any residential use district.  

61

I' 

-,_ ,: '~ ' 

ul, ~ 7 •c ._.,. 
~~ ·''-""' ,. 

J .'\, ' ... ' .·,., ~Ji ~l ~ ! _.~~1r :'/,,. 

(} I -
. ,. . ... , ./ , ... ,.,,'b ~;{ii . .:;. I'-...,.; -....~ -- -~ ~ . , 

/-'•~ ,--- ;,l'!-'}l/-..::1 ., 
~,..~ 1 L 

~ ....,_ 

I I I .,..'( ·1 I J. r- • I rJ 

I t 
. .. ..... 

I J•1 I , .. - ··~ .,, 
' 

r .'I I 

~ i;: IU~J;: !rn ]1 
" ; I 

LI i . 'I ,I I I r . r; "' L 

..r~ , ~ .. , 

'{./J 
, ;1 - -

', .,, ~ ,, -<"...;'°"." ~ .. - ~ 

Ir rt1
,., .--·~ 3-'~ 

.. - ~ ' 
i '· }.:.~ 

' <l" - ,µ--
. 

_. •· ~- . ' l 



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 
Staff Report: Parking Standards Prepared August 2024 

Sources:  Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan 

Page 6 of 6 

(c) Notwithstanding the foregoing, no additional off-street parking other than the parking currently available in
the C-1 district shall be required except where the structures currently located on an existing lot of record
containing more than 1,875 square feet are razed and the lot of record is put to a new use in which event the
parking regulations of this section shall be fully applicable to said property.

(d) Joint use of parking lots. The required parking space for any number of separate uses may be combined in
one lot, but the required number of spaces assigned to one use may not be assigned to another for use
during the same hours.

(e) Remote parking. For any use except residential, if the off-street parking spaces required by this division
cannot be reasonably provided on the same lot on which the use is located, such spaces may be provided on
any land within 800 feet walking distance of any entrance to such use, provided that the district use
regulations for the district in which the remote parking spaces are located permit the use which the parking
space serves.

(f) Parking spaces may be occupied by electric vehicle charging stations and online order pick up and shall not
count against minimum parking spaces required.

62

J __ 



RECOMMENDED AMENDMENTS TO CHAPTER 20 
REGARDING TREE CONSERVATION REGULATIONS 

Town of Weaverville 
Planning Board 

Recommendation and Plan Consistency Statement for 
Proposed Text Amendments 

On September 3, 2024, and January 7, 2025, the Planning Board reviewed and, with a unanimous vote, 
recommend to Town Council the attached proposed text amendments which provide for regulations 
concerning tree conservation. During the September 3 meeting of the Board, it was determined that 
tree conservation regulations could be coupled with the recently enacted conservation subdivision 
standards and therefore propose that the lot threshold where conservation subdivision standards are 
applicable, be lowered as shown in the attached proposed ordinance. This favorable recommendation 
is based on the findings as stated herein.  

The Planning Board recently undertook a review of tree conservation regulations, a high priority 
within the CLUP priorities. The Planning Board has found that these proposed code amendments are 
consistent with the Town’s comprehensive land use plan, reasonable, and in the best interest of the 
public in that such amendments provide for regulations which encourage additional tree conservation 
measures.  

_______________________________________ 
Jane Kelley, Chairman of the Planning Board  
January 7, 2025 

63



  Created: 2024-10-03 08:27:19 [EST]

(Supp. No. 23) 

Page 1 of 2 

Sec. 20-2309. Conservation subdivision standards. 

The following additional standards shall apply to all subdivisions proposing 25 10 lots or more: 

(a) Open space shall:

(1) Comprise a minimum of 25 percent of the project area. Floodplain areas are allowed to be calculated
for both density and open space requirements.

(2) Be composed of (in order of which lands should be designated as open space first): primary
conservation area, secondary conservation area, and any remaining lands necessary.

(3) Be designated so that a minimum of 50 percent of the proposed open space is contiguous and, where
possible, adjoins open space or other protected areas (including protected forests or wildlife areas)
outside the project area.

(4) Be accessible by safe and convenient pedestrian access from all adjoining lots (except in the case of
farmland or other resource areas vulnerable to trampling damage or human disturbance).

(5) Be used as follows:

i. Conservation of natural resources, archaeological resources or historical resources;

ii. Agriculture, horticulture or silviculture, provided all applicable best management practices are
used to minimize environmental impacts;

iii. Passive recreation

iv. Active recreation provided impervious surfaces are limited to a maximum of 12 percent of the
total open space area;

v. Nonstructural stormwater management practices;

vi. Easements for drainage, access, and utility lines; and

vii. Water, septic and sewer systems.

(b) Open space ownership. The applicant must identify current and future owners of open space responsible for
maintaining the area and/or facilities. The responsibility for maintaining the open space and its facilities shall
be borne by the owner. If a homeowners' association is the owner:

(1) Membership in the association shall be mandatory and automatic for all homeowners in the
subdivision and their successors; and

(2) The association shall have lien authority to ensure the collection of dues from all members.

(c) Open space management. The applicant shall submit an open space management plan which includes:

(1) A statement allocating maintenance responsibilities and establishing guidelines for the upkeep of open
space and its facilities.

(2) Cost estimates for maintenance, operation and insurance needs for the open space.

(3) A means by which funds will be obtained for all management expenses.

(4) A provision allowing the subdivision administrator to approve plan change; and

(5) Criteria for plan enforcement.

(d) Legal instrument for permanent protection. Open space shall be protected in perpetuity by a binding legal
document recorded with the deed. The document shall be one of the following:

64



  Created: 2024-10-03 08:27:19 [EST]

(Supp. No. 23) 

Page 2 of 2 

(1) Permanent conservation easement in favor of either:

(i) A land trust or similar conservation oriented non-profit organization with legal authority to
accept such easements. The organization shall be bona fide and in perpetual existence and the
conveyance instruments shall contain an appropriate provision for retransfer in the event the
organization becomes unable to carry out its functions; or

(ii) A governmental entity with an interest in pursuing goals consistent with the intentions of this
section.

(2) Permanent restrictive covenant for conservation purposes.

(3) Equivalent legal tool providing permanent protection, subject to approval by the Town Attorney. The
instrument shall include all restrictions contained in Section 20-2309 conservation subdivision
standards and any further restrictions the applicant chooses to place on the use of the open space.

(e) Open space density bonus. Base density is determined by the zoning district in which the subdivision is
located. Conservation subdivisions proposing more than the minimum required open space may be eligible
for increased densities. The following table outlines the criteria for density bonuses. Lands under
conservation easement shall not be counted when determining density bonuses.

Open Space Density Bonuses: 

 Percent Open Space (%) 25-30 31-40 41-50 >50
Percent Housing Density Increases (%) N/A 10 15 20 

(f) Structure Placement. Structures should be placed as closely to internal roads as permitted. Structures may
be:

(1) Located in the side yard setback of other structures within the development required by the zoning
district; and

(2) Placed as closely together as permitted by the North Caroline State Building Code.

(Ord. of 1-22-2024(1), § 8) 

65



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 
Staff Report: Tree Conservation Prepared August 2024 

Sources:  Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan 

Page 1 of 2 

Comprehensive Land Use Plan Stated Goal and Background Information 

The current goals of the Comprehensive Land Use Plan (CLUP), last updated in November 2023, call for 
the study and consideration of tree conservation regulations. The goal of considering tree conservation 
regulations was also given number 2 (medium) priority within the CLUP giving staff the direction to 
accomplish or address the stated goal within 24 months.   

Exiting Conditions – Landscaping Regulations, Conservation Subdivision, and Vegetation 

Current town ordinance requires development of a certain type or scope to comply with landscape 
regulations. These regulations include the submittal of a landscape plan, landscaping requirements that 
require at least 5% of the subject property to be landscaped, street tree requirements, and landscaping 
requirements for off street parking and loading areas. These landscape regulations do provide a credit 
for existing trees of a certain size to be preserved instead of planting new required trees so there exists 
a build in incentive if it is chosen by the property owner.   

Not included for spatial considerations, the landscaping regulations may be found at the following link: 
https://library.municode.com/nc/weaverville/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH20PLDE
_PTIIIZORE_ARTIVLARE 

These landscape regulations are not applicable to land used for the following purposes. 
• Single-family residences
• Duplex residences
• Properties located within the C-1 central business district

In January 2024 the town implemented conservation subdivision standards which were incorporated 
into the subdivision ordinance. These standards now require that all subdivisions of 25 lots or more be 
comprised of at least 25% of conservation area and set the standards for how this open space may be 
used. These stands, in part, require that this open space may be used for the conservation of natural 
resources; and/or agriculture, horticulture, or silviculture.  

The town also has a vegetation ordinance which is overseen by a combination of municipal staff and the 
Tree Board. The primary focus of the vegetation ordinance is on trees and vegetation within puclic 
street rights-of-way, town parks, and town owned property. These regulations are not applicable to 
private property. The newly reestablished Tree Board meets on a semi-monthly basis to discuss public 
tree care. A Tree Board is a requirement of the Arbor Day Foundation which administers the Tree City 
USA program the town has applied for and received for many years now. 

66

https://library.municode.com/nc/weaverville/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH20PLDE_PTIIIZORE_ARTIVLARE
https://library.municode.com/nc/weaverville/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH20PLDE_PTIIIZORE_ARTIVLARE


Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 
Staff Report: Tree Conservation Prepared August 2024 

Sources:  Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan 

Page 2 of 2 

Not included for spatial considerations, the landscaping regulations may be found at the following link: 
https://library.municode.com/nc/weaverville/ordinances/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=1291170 

Other Jurisdictions 

Similar to the town’s regulations, The Town of Black Mountain does not apply their landscape 
regulations to single- and two-family residential uses and provide an exemption to properties located in 
their central business district. They also allow variances from their landscaping requirements based 
upon subjective standards which are heard by the Board of Adjustment.   

The Town of Brevard also exempts properties developed for single family and duplex uses. Where 
Brevard and Weaverville differ is that Brevard has a Main Street National Historic District, which is 
administered by Transylvania County Planning and Development. Trees within this historic district are 
afforded protection in the City of Brevard’s tree protection standards. 

General Information 

At present date, there are 2,684 parcels of land within the Town of Weaverville. Of these parcels, 1,474 
are zoned R-1 and 644 are zoned R-2. While there will never be a clean 1 to 1 ratio of structure to 
property, or more specifically undeveloped parcels, this does represent 2,118 parcels zoned for single- 
and two-family use which are currently largely exempt from the landscaping and/or or tree reservation 
ordinances of the town’s of Weaverville, Black Mountain, and Brevard.  

Similar to the town’s conservation subdivision, Black Mountain and Brevard may have similar standards 
in their subdivision ordinance which could be applicable but staff did not have sufficient time to confirm. 

67

https://library.municode.com/nc/weaverville/ordinances/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=1291170


RECOMMENDED AMENDMENTS TO CHAPTER 20 
REGARDING SETBACK REQUIREMNTS FOR CERTAIN LOTS 

Town of Weaverville 
Planning Board 

Recommendation and Plan Consistency Statement for 
Proposed Text Amendments 

On January 7, 2025, the Planning Board reviewed and, with a unanimous vote, recommend to Town 
Council the attached proposed text amendment which provides for revised setbacks requirements 
where a property line extends into or across a roadway.  The Board proposes that current setback 
measurement requirements be altered to better address this scenario. This favorable 
recommendation is based on the findings as stated herein.  

The Planning Board recently undertook a review of setback requirements for certain lots, believed to 
be a high priority within an update the CLUP in January. The Planning Board has found that these 
proposed code amendments are consistent with the Town’s comprehensive land use plan, reasonable, 
and in the best interest of the public in that such amendments provide for regulations which amend 
setback requirements for certain lots which otherwise would be allowed to build closer to a road than 
intended.   

_______________________________________ 
Jane Kelley, Chairman of the Planning Board  
January 7, 2025 

68



  Created: 2024-10-03 08:27:20 [EST]

(Supp. No. 23) 

Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 20-3208. Miscellaneous provisions. 

(c) Setback calculations. All setbacks shall be calculated from the property line. If the property line extends into
a roadway, the setback shall be measured from the edge of the road or the back of curb closest to the
subject property.

69



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 
Staff Report: Setback Requirements Prepared December 2024 

Sources:  Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan 

Page 1 of 1 

Comprehensive Land Use Plan Stated Goal and Background Information 

The current goals of the Comprehensive Land Use Plan (CLUP), to be updated in January 2025, call for 
the consideration of altering setback requirements for certain lots. The goal of considering altering 
setback requirements for certain lots is to be given number 1 (highest) priority within the CLUP giving 
staff the direction to accomplish or address the stated goal within 12 months.   

Current Conditions 

Sec. 20-1202. Specific definitions. 

Unless otherwise provided in this chapter or any other development regulations adopted by the town, the 
following definitions shall apply in the administration of all development regulations adopted by the town:  

Setback means: 

(1) The required minimum horizontal distance between the building line and the related front,
side, or rear property line.

(2) For the sign regulations found in article 1 of part IV of this chapter, setback shall mean the
horizontal distance between the leading face of the curb of a street and the closest point of
a sign or sign structure on such lot. Where there is no curb, the measurement shall be made
from the edge of the pavement.

Sec. 20-3208. Miscellaneous provisions. 

(c) Setback calculations. All setbacks shall be calculated from the property line.

Though rarely encountered, staff has experienced a scenario where the property lines for a certain lot 
extend into or across a roadway. In this scenario, a structure is permitted to be constructed closer to the 
roadway than would otherwise be allowed. A simple text amendment is being proposed to address this 
issue.  

Proposed Ordinance Amendment 

Sec. 20-3208. Miscellaneous provisions. 

(c) Setback calculations. All setbacks shall be calculated from the property line. If the property line extends into
a roadway, the setback shall be measured from the edge of the road or back of curb.

70



1 

INTERIM TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT 
January 2025 

Mayor/Council, 

Completion of Solor Panel Project at the Fire Station   
Sugar Hollow has scheduled a visit on Friday Feb 14th to troubleshoot an isolation fault. 
They tried to work on it remotely and couldn’t fix it     

Debris Removal Project 
SDR (our contract debris removal company) has completed the first pass of debris 
collection and crews will continue with storm debris removal. There was a fire at the Temp 
Debris site on Reems Creek rd that occurred on Wednesday the 15th of January. NC 
Forestry service Law Enforcement division was called in to conduct the investigation.  

Damage Assessment Update 
We continue to meet regularly with our FEMA rep to coordinate our Damage inventory. 
This includes storm debris as well at town property and repair work that has occurred. A 
site inspection was completed today Jan 27th  with FEMA for the roads and culverts 
identified and the Water Treatment plant is scheduled for Jan 28th  

Private Property Debris Removal 
DebrisTech was on site Jan 20th and 21st here in the community room at town hall doing 
intake for town residence that would like to apply for assistance with Private Property 
Debris Removal. They will continue the intake process every Monday in February from 8-
4   

Communications 
Communications between departments are being improved in the post Helene 
perspective era. At one time, essentially every department carried portable radios. This 
largely came to an end with cell phones becoming common place. During the disaster 
we identified that communications between departments were challenged without the 
now commonplace cell phone. To improve similar situations in the future, equipment is 
being purchased to ensure messages can be sent. Additionally, a local GMRS repeater 
(similar to ham radio) has been placed in service for community use.    

Community Center Hiring Update 
As mentioned last month Michael Deserio was hired as our Community Center 
Manager. We have since made an offer to Kate Gangwes for the Rec assistant position  

71



2 

Maple Trace Annexation 
A welcome letter was sent to the Maple Trace HOA President on 12/17/2024 for 
distribution to residents to provide information on the transition to Town services. The 
Public Works Department delivered garbage and recycling cans to each residence on 
12/19/2024 and ran its first garbage route in the subdivision on 1/6/2025. Curbie picked 
up recycling on 1/7/2025 as well. 

WBA St. Patrick’s Day Event 
The WBA is planning a St. Patrick’s event on Sunday March 16th so we will be coming 
to you next month with a social district and street closer request from 1-9 as that will 
allow for set up and break down on Florida Ave. The event is planned form 2-6pm  

Respectfully submitted, 
Scottie Harris, Interim Town Manager 

72



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: January 27, 2025 

SUBJECT: Annexation and Zoning – AdventHealth 

PRESENTER:  Interim Town Manager Harris 

ATTACHMENTS: Proposed Annexation Ordinance and Map 
Proposed Conditional District Ordinance 

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

A voluntary annexation petition was submitted by AdventHealth Asheville, Inc., seeking to 
have two parcels located at or near Ollie Weaver Road and US Highway 25/70 totaling +/- 
7.30 acres annexed into the Town of Weaverville. The purpose of this annexation is to bring 
the final parcels comprising the proposed AdventHealth project into the Town’s municipal 
jurisdiction.  

AdventHealth is also requesting conditional district zoning on approximately 33 acres, 
including the 7.30 acres to be annexed, to develop a hospital campus that includes a 67-bed 
hospital with a 26-bed hospital wing, emergency department, medical office buildings, and 
an out-patient surgical center.  

Public hearings on the annexation and conditional district zoning were held on 21 January 
2025. 

It is now proper for Town Council to consider and take action on the annexation petition 
and conditional district zoning request. 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Town Council discussion and possible action. 

Should Town Council wish to take action to approve the annexation and the proposed 
conditional district the following motion is proposed: 

I move that we adopt the annexation ordinance and the conditional district ordinance 
as proposed [as amended].  

73



PREPARED BY AND RETURN TO: 
Michael C. Frue, Weaverville Town Attorney 
P.O. Box 338, Weaverville, NC, 28787 

AN ORDINANCE EXTENDING THE CORPORATE LIMITS 
OF THE TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA – 

ADVENTHEALTH ASHEVILLE, INC.– +/- 7.30 ACRES  
ANNEXATION #2024-5 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has been petitioned under N.C. Gen. Stat. § 160A-31 to annex 
the area described below and the Town Clerk investigated the petition and certified the sufficiency 
of the petition; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Weaverville has the authority pursuant to Chapter 160D of the 
North Carolina General Statutes to adopt zoning regulations, to establish zoning districts and to 
classify property within its jurisdiction according to zoning district, and to amend said regulations 
and district classifications from time to time in the interest of the public health, safety and welfare; 
and 

WHEREAS, the initial zoning designation was requested to be conditional district zoning 
and by letter dated 3 December 2024, the Planning Board found the proposed conditional district 
to be reasonable and consistent with the Town’s Comprehensive Land Use; 

WHEREAS, a public hearing on the question of annexation was held during a meeting of 
Town Council on 21 January 2025 at 6:00 p.m., after due notice by mailing, posting the property, 
and publication on 9 January 2025 and 16 January 2025, and a written comment period beginning 
on 30 December 2024; 

WHEREAS, at the public hearing the residents of Weaverville and the surrounding area 
were given an opportunity to be heard on any questions regarding the desirability of the 
annexation; 

WHEREAS, Town Council finds that the annexation petition is valid and the public health, 
safety, and welfare of the inhabitants of the Town and the area proposed for annexation will best 
be served by annexation of the area proposed; 

74



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of Weaverville, 
North Carolina, that: 

1. By virtue of the authority granted by N.C. Gen. Stat. § 160A-31, that the property totaling
+/- 7.30 acres, consisting of a 5.09 acre tract and a 2.21 acre tract, as shown on that map
that is recorded in Book ________ at Page _________, Buncombe County Registry, reference to
which is hereby made for a more complete description, is hereby annexed and made part of
the Town of Weaverville. Said territory shall be subject to municipal taxes according to N.C.
Gen. Stat. § 160A-58.10.

2. From and after the effective date of this annexation ordinance, the area so annexed shall be
subject to all debts, laws, ordinances, and regulations in force in the Town of Weaverville
and shall be entitled to the same privileges and benefits as other parts of the Town.

3. The property owners are directed to submit to the Town of Weaverville an annexation map
showing the property so annexed for recordation purposes if they have not already done
so.

4. The Mayor of the Town of Weaverville shall cause to be recorded in the Office of the
Register of Deeds for Buncombe County, and in the Office of the Secretary of State in
Raleigh, North Carolina, an accurate map of the annexed territory and a copy of this
Ordinance within 30 days of the effective date of the annexation. Such a map shall also be
delivered to the Buncombe County Board of Elections as required by N.C. Gen. Stat. § 163-
288.1.

5. This annexation ordinance shall be effective immediately.

ADOPTED THIS the ____ day of ________, 2025, with ___ voting in favor and ___ against.

_____________________________________________________ 
PATRICK FITZSIMMONS, Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

________________________________________________ ____________________________________________ 
TAMARA MERCER, Town Clerk  MICHAEL FRUE, Town Attorney 

75



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF BUNCOMBE 

I, ___________________________________________, a Notary Public, certify that Tamara Mercer 
personally came before me this day and acknowledged that she is the Town Clerk for the Town of 
Weaverville and that by authority duly given and as the act of the municipal corporation, the 
foregoing instrument was signed in its name by its Mayor, sealed with its corporate seal, and 
attested by her as its Town Clerk.  

Witness my hand and seal this the ______ day of ________________________, 2025. 

_______________________________________________ 
Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: ________________ 

76



O
LL

IE
  W

E
A

V
E

R 
 R

D
U. S.   H W

 Y   25 - 70

SITE

ADVENTHEALTH ASHEVILLE, INC

- - - - - - - ABOVE GRADE
- - - - - - - BELOW GRADE
- - - - - - - DEED BOOK
- - - - - - - PLAT BOOK
- - - - - - - PAGE
- - - - - - - WITH
- - - - - - - POLYVINYL CHLORIDE
- - - - - - - CORRUGATED METAL PIPE
- - - - - - - REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE
- - - - - - - TERRA COTA PIPE
- - - - - - - OPEN IRON PIPE
- - - - - - - RIGHT OF WAY
- - - - - - - NORTH CAROLINA
- - - - - - - DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
- - - - - - - PARCEL IDENTIFCATION NUMBER
- - - - - - - RADIUS
- - - - - - - ARC LENGTH

     L E G E N D
- - - - - - - CONCRETE MONUMENT
- - - - - - - IRON FOUND (AS DESCRIBED)
- - - - - - - #5 REBAR FOUND
- - - - - - - #5 REBAR  W/ CAP  FOUND
- - - - - - - 5/8" REBAR W/ CAP (SET)
- - - - - - - NAIL (SET)
- - - - - - - UNMARKED POINT
              FENCE LINE (AS DESCRIBED)
              OVERHEAD ELECTRIC
              SEWER EASEMENT
              SOIL ROAD
              RIGHT OF WAY
              TREE LINE
              ADJOINER
              CREEK
              UTILITY EASEMENT
              SETBACK

- - - - - - UTILITY POLE
- - - - - - - UTILITY POLE W/ LIGHT

- - - GUY WIRE
- - - - - - - CURB INLET
- - - - - - - SIGN

77

I. 1-.R[A BY ~ ,l,.\T[ COM PVTM~ J. ,',PH CX PAACEL I ~.Oil AG. 1-.R[A Of PAAC[l 2 Q,11 N::. 
(4.1!26SQ. FT.) 

J. t;:J CHAflG[S IN STREIT f>.IGHT-CX-\IIAY LtJES ill'~ OOSER¼'D. ,>,LL R[CENT SlRHT, 5D£11'ALK 
""DIJJ ILDt;;J~STR'JCTOJ~DIIN, 

4, Tl<[ ~acffRTY OCJES MDT LE "'™ f J A SP!:" '"- SLCIOD HAZAAO AAU., AS SHOWIJ OM Tl<[ 
MATIOMALflCIOD ltlSL!ll<MC[f>ROORl,',I , f\.CIOD f ./SURANCE R..IT[MAP J70097J.l00~ fffl'CTM' DAT[ 

~. t;:J ABO,!' GROOIW UTILI TY STRUCTIJR[S l','.JR PAt JT ~Ai>J,\NGS fOR LJl',ll [RGROOIID UTILITI ES 

7.A5lESCRI EED IN lEEDBOOK4726 PAOC16J4 />.N D CUDBOOl(5454PAOC;ifl, ASl:IIER 
[ ASEMENTANDRIC>ffCX ll'AY AAEStHlWJfJOCT/..l.6AflD Af.Ol';;JTH[SHAR[DCCfJCR[lEDRI\I[ 
STRADO<JMG ll-£ LfJE Df NORTH f'OMT BAPTIST CHJRD< Df WEA\<SR'-<Ll[ AAD ll-£ Z..,,,,l(],,,,.;I 

_;;_ 

I ~ HER EBY CERlFY THAT mo s SLIRV[Y F Df Tl<[ m .. ,"""£ CAT[GOPJ[S as D=sJElED '" c,s, u - ao:r.i: 11) 

c) \1) SIJR,EY IS ~-AN [::1 5TIJJG ~.AAC!:l OR PAACUS CF L/,1',ll OR ctlE OR MCRE [;<lSTIIJG U.SEMEtHS N ID OCJES tlOT c:REAU A 

N.C. ""°'[S5Kll'V .l. l"'° SLffi'[YOR 
LICENSE # l-~1oe 

PRELIMlf!ARY 
FOR REVIEW 

mJL Y 

EoHoLMES~ 
&AsSOCIATES -
L"-ND •11•v • voa1 P"-

t : . 
' ~ 
' 

' VICINITY 
SAP 
(N. T.S.) ,/I ,~~9-

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
NmEXATlmJ MAP OF 
PROPERTY OW~ffD BY 

OWNER: l~JC 

REEMS CREEK TOWfJSHIP 
BUfJCOMBE COUfHY, fWRTH CAROWM 

SCALE: 1" = 50' 8/26/2024 

JOSEPH KNJE, P.L.S. 



1 

PREPARED BY AND RETURN TO: 
Michael C. Frue, Weaverville Town Attorney 
30 South Main Street, Weaverville, NC, 28787 

COUNTY OF BUNCOMBE 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE CONDITIONAL DISTRICT 
DESIGNATED AS CD-9 FOR ADVENTHEALTH 

WHEREAS, AdventHealth Asheville, Inc., is the owner of certain real property consisting of 
+/- 32.86 acres of property located along Ollie Weaver Road and US Highway 25/70 and which 
currently bears the following Buncombe County Parcel Identification Numbers (hereafter 
collectively referred to as the “Property”): 9733-72-8793, 9733-73-5347, 9733-83-1054, 9733-83-
3019, 9733-72-6639, and 9733-82-0659; 

WHEREAS, a petition requesting conditional district zoning on the Property was submitted 
to the Town of Weaverville on or about 23 September 2024; and 

WHEREAS, by contemporaneous adoption of an annexation ordinance by the Weaverville 
Town Council of certain portions of the Property, all of the Property is now located within the 
municipal jurisdiction of the Town of Weaverville; 

WHEREAS, the Town of Weaverville has the authority pursuant to Chapter 160D of the 
North Carolina General Statutes to adopt zoning regulations, to establish zoning districts and to 
classify property within its jurisdiction according to zoning district, and to amend said regulations 
and district classifications from time to time in the interest of the public health, safety and welfare; 
and 

WHEREAS, the proposed development is for a healthcare facility complex consisting of a 
67-bed hospital with an additional 26-bed hospital wing, emergency department, medical office
buildings, and ambulatory surgery center, with development being done in phases;

WHEREAS, medical services facilities, such as what is proposed, are permitted by right in 
the Town’s C-2 zoning district; however, the plan shows parking spaces that are below the 
minimum of what is permitted within the C-2 district and the proposed building height exceeds 

78



2 

what would be permitted under C-2, so for these two reasons a conditional district has been 
requested for this project; 

WHEREAS, Section 20-3203 of the Code of Ordinances of the Town of Weaverville 
establishes the procedures and requirements for zoning property to Conditional Districts; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Board of the Town of Weaverville has reviewed the project and 
submitted a finding that the proposed development is consistent with the Comprehensive Landu 
Use Plan and reasonable and Town Council hereby adopts said findings; and 

WHEREAS, the property owner held a community meeting on 20 November 2024 as 
required by Town Code Sec. 20-3203(e)(2) and after proper notice, and provided a report to Town 
Council; and 

WHEREAS, after proper notice required by law, Town Council held a public hearing on this 
application on 21 January 2025, in accordance with North Carolina law, at which time public input 
on this proposed development was taken; 

WHEREAS, as indicated by signatures below, the property owner has consented to all 
conditions set forth herein, which are hereby found to be reasonable and relevant; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
WEAVERVILLE THAT: 

1. The zoning classification of that certain real property which currently bears Buncombe
County Parcel Identification Numbers 9733-72-8793, 9733-73-5347, 9733-83-1054, 9733-
83-3019, 9733-72-6639, and 9733-82-0659, is designated as a conditional district known
as CD-9 and is subject to compliance with the conditions set out herein. The official zoning
map of the Town of Weaverville shall be amended to reflect this change upon the effective
date of this ordinance.

2. The following conditions shall apply:

a. The project is to be constructed consistent with the plans and specifications
prepared by McGill for AdventHealth and submitted by the applicant, a copy of
which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, and itemized as
follows:

i. Sheet C-100 – Master Site Plan
ii. Sheet C-200 – Master Grading Plan

iii. Sheet C-300 – Master Stormwater Management Plan
iv. Sheet C-400 – Master Utility Plan
v. Elevation Renderings

b. Pedestrian accessibility from the Ollie Weaver Road side and within the hospital
campus is encouraged.

c. All driveways/streets within the project shall be private.

79



 
 

3 
 

d. The parking requirements and improvements shall be determined by the developer, 
but shall be adequate to accommodate the use of the property, with the 
understanding that parking on or along any Town- or NCDOT-maintained street or 
roadway is expressly prohibited. 

e. A traffic impact analysis has been conducted for this project and all improvements 
as required by NCDOT must be installed.  

f. Construction related vehicles must be parked on the property and not on any Town-
maintained public streets or the shoulders of those public streets. All dirt, mud, 
construction materials, or other debris deposited on Town maintained public 
streets as a result of construction activities must be removed by the contractor or 
owner on a daily basis, pursuant to Town Code Section 22-48. 

g. All outdoor lighting on the property shall comply with the outdoor lighting 
provisions of Article VI of Town Code Chapter 20.  A plan shall be submitted and 
approved as required by Town Code Sec. 20-3603. 

h. Signage is allowed pursuant to Town Code Section 20-4105. Notwithstanding 
anything herein to the contrary, signage required by federal or state laws or 
regulations is allowed.  

i. Compliance with Buncombe County sedimentation and erosion control standards 
and with all applicable floodplain and stormwater regulations is required. All 
permitting and inspections on these issues will be conducted through Buncombe 
County. 

j. The phasing of this project as outlined by the developer is approved. 
k. Town Code Section 20-3203 shall govern the project including, but not limited, 

those provisions regarding issuance of zoning permits, modifications (in accordance 
with Town Code Section 20-1303), appeals, and final plat approval.  

3. This ordinance shall be recorded in the Buncombe County Register of Deeds, and shall be 
binding on the property owner, its successors and assigns.   

4. The conditional district zoning established herein shall be valid until amended or repealed.  
5. This ordinance, including the conditions contained herein, shall be enforced as provided in 

Article III of Part 1 of Chapter 20 of the Weaverville Town Code, and Chapter 160D of the 
N.C. General Statutes. 

6. The Town Zoning Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to make the changes as 
herein enacted on the official zoning map with said Conditional District labeled as “CD-10” 
and to issue a zoning permit for the improvements that are to be made in compliance with 
this Conditional District. 

7. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance is, for any reason, 
held to be invalid, it will be up to Town Council to determine if the validity of the remaining 
portions of this ordinance is affected.  

80



4 

8. All ordinances and clauses of ordinances contained within the Town’s Code of Ordinance
which are in conflict herewith, are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.

9. This ordinance shall be effective immediately upon adoption.

ADOPTED THIS the ____ day of __________, 2025, with a vote of ___ for and ____ against.

_____________________________________________________ 
PATRICK FITZSIMMONS, Mayor 

_____________________________________________________ 
TAMARA MERCER, Town Clerk 

OWNER/DEVELOPER CONSENT TO CONDITIONS:  By signing below I acknowledge that I am the 
respective owner and developer of the property, and that I have read, agree, and accept the 
conditions set forth in this Ordinance.  

OWNER/DEVELOPER: 

ADVENTHEALTH ASHEVILLE, INC. 

__________________________________________________ 
ALAN GUYTON, SE REGION CFO 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF BUNCOMBE 

I, _____________________________________________, a Notary Public of Buncombe County, North Carolina, 
certify that TAMARA MERCER personally came before me this day and acknowledged that she is 
the Town Clerk of the Town of Weaverville, a municipal corporation, and that by authority duly 
given, the foregoing instrument was signed in its name by the Mayor of the Town of Weaverville, 
and attested by himself as the Town Clerk..  

Witness my hand and official seal, this the _____ day of _______________, 2025. 

_____________________________________________ 
Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 

[Notary Seal] 

81



© 2024 Microsoft Corporation © 2024 Maxar ©CNES (2024) Distribution Airbus DS © 2024 TomTom 

PHASE III

PHASE I

PHASE II

PHASE I

PHASE I

PHASE II

PHASE I

PHASE II

U. S.   H W Y   25 - 70 U. S.   H W Y   25 - 70

HO
RI

ZO
N 

HI
LL

 R
D.

GARRISON BRANCH (SR 1834)

OLLIE WEAVER RD

HOSPITAL PH 1
270,000 SF
6 FLOORS

MOB PH 1
75,000 SF
3 FLOORS

MOB PH 2
75,000 SF
3 FLOORS

HOSPITAL PH 2
130,000 SF
6 FLOORS

ASC PH 3
40,000 SF
2 FLOORS

PH
AS

E 
III

PH
AS

E 
I

PH
AS

E 
II

PH
AS

E 
I

PH
AS

E 
I

PH
AS

E 
II

PH
AS

E 
I

PH
AS

E 
II

233.16'
219.82'

86.39'

231.86'

49.49'

24.00' (TYP.)

9.00' (TYP.)
18.00' (TYP.)

9' (TYP.)

18' (TYP.)

197.07'

313.94'

360.13'

24
.0

01
18

 - 
AD

VE
N

TH
EA

LT
H

 - 
AD

VE
N

TH
EA

LT
H

 B
U

N
C

O
M

BE
C

O
U

N
TY

 C
AM

PU
S 

- S
H

EE
T 

C
-1

00

P:
\2

02
4\

24
.0

01
18

-H
KS

-A
D

VE
N

TH
EA

LT
H

 B
U

N
C

O
M

BE
 C

O
U

N
TY

\D
R

AW
IN

G
S\

SH
EE

TS
\2

4.
00

11
8 

- 0
2 

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
S.

D
W

G
 P

LO
T 

D
AT

E 
9/

20
/2

02
4 

2:
25

 P
M

W
ES

TO
N

 B
ER

R
Y

P:
\2

02
4\

24
.0

01
18

-H
KS

-A
D

VE
N

TH
EA

LT
H

 B
U

N
C

O
M

BE
 C

O
U

N
TY

\D
R

AW
IN

G
S\

SH
EE

TS
\2

4.
00

11
8 

- 0
2 

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
S.

D
W

G
 P

LO
T 

D
AT

E 
9/

20
/2

02
4 

2:
25

 P
M

W
ES

TO
N

 B
ER

R
Y

P:
\2

02
4\

24
.0

01
18

-H
KS

-A
D

VE
N

TH
EA

LT
H

 B
U

N
C

O
M

BE
 C

O
U

N
TY

\D
R

AW
IN

G
S\

SH
EE

TS
\2

4.
00

11
8 

- 0
2 

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
S.

D
W

G
 P

LO
T 

D
AT

E 
9/

20
/2

02
4 

2:
25

 P
M

W
ES

TO
N

 B
ER

R
Y

NO. DATE BY DESCRIPTION

SHEET

OFFICE MANAGER

PROJECT MANAGER

DESIGNER

REVIEWER DATE PROJECT # FUNDING #

(ORIGINAL SIZE: 24"x36")

ADVENTHEALTH BUNCOMBE
COUNTY CAMPUS

BUNCOMBE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
24.00118SEPTEMBER 2024

MASTER SITE PLAN

M. CATHEY

R. WILL

G. ORR

S. BURWELL N/A

DIVISION VALUE  =          FEETGRAPHIC SCALE

0080 40 80 160

8055 Broad Street
Asheville, NC 28801
828.252.0575
NC Firm License # C-0459

mcgillassociates.com

R

VICINITY MAP

DIVISION VALUE  =          FEETGRAPHIC SCALE

2000 1000 2000

2000

0 4000

CONSTRUCTION
DO NOT USE FOR

- FOR REVIEW PURPOSES ONLY -
PRELIMINARY

APPROXIMATE PROJECT LOCATION

SERVICE /
LOADING

IMAGING
EXP. ZONE

HELIPAD

NAME AND LOCATION OF PROJECT: PIN NUMBERS: 
ADVENTHEALTH BUNCOMBE 9733-73-5347 9733-83-1054
COUNTY CAMPUS 9733-73-6639 9733-83-3019
20 MOONRIDGE ROAD 9733-73-8793 9733-82-0659
WEAVERVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 28787

PROPERTY OWNER: PROPERTY AREA:
ADVENTHEALTH ASHEVILLE, INC. 32.86 ACRES (1,431,210 SQUARE FEET)
1035 RED BUD ROAD NE
CALHOUN, GEORGIA 30701 LENGTH OF ROAD SYSTEM: 

3600'
SETBACKS:
FRONT: 0'
REAR: 0'
SIDE: 30'
MAJOR THOROUGHFARE: 60'
MINOR THOROUGHFARE: 25.5'
STREAM BUFFER: 30'

BUILDING HEIGHT: OPEN SPACE:
HOSPITAL: 120' 7 ACRES
MOB PHASE I: 65'
MOB PHASE II: 50'
ASC: 50'

BUILDING DIMENSIONS:
HOSPITAL: 195' W X 385' L
MOB PHASE I: 130' W X 195' L
MOB PHASE II: 130' W X 195' L
ASC: 85' W X 205' L

BUILDING SIGNAGE:
HOSPITAL: 200 SF
MOB PHASE I: 75 SF
MOB PHASE II: 75 SF
ASC: 75 SF

PROPOSED PHASING:
PHASE 1: ANTICIPATED COMPLETION BY END OF 2027.
PHASE 2 & 3: ANTICIPATED COMPLETION TBD.

OWNERSHIP:
PROPOSED ROADS WITHIN THE DEVELOPMENT TO BE PRIVATE INTERNAL ROADS.

FLOOD MAP INFORMATION:
THE PROPERTY LIES WITHIN ZONE X, 'AREAS OF MINIMAL FLOOD HAZARD,' PER FEMA FIRM 3700973300J,
EFFECTIVE JANUARY 6, 2010.

MAINTENANCE PLAN:
STREETS, STORMWATER, WATER/SEWER SERVICES, COMMON AREAS, AND AMENITY AREAS WILL BE
OWNED AND MAINTAINED BY THE DEVELOPER.

WATER:
PROPOSED WATER WILL BE A PRIVATE SYSTEM.

SEWER:
PROPOSED SEWER WILL BE PRIVATE GRAVITY COLLECTION SYSTEM ROUTED TO PRIVATE LIFT STATIONS.

DRY UTILITIES (NATURAL GAS, TELEPHONE/CABLE, ELECTRIC):
TBD. LAYOUT TO BE PROVIDED BY PROVIDERS AFTER FINAL UTILITY DESIGN IS COMPLETED.

STREET NAMES TBD.

ALL PROPOSED INFRASTRUCTURE AND PRELIMINARY PLAT WILL NOT BE COMPLETED UNTIL AFTER
PHASE I HAS BEEN COMPLETED.

RETAINING WALL
(MAX HEIGHT: 35')

RETAINING WALL
(MAX HEIGHT: 5')

RETAINING WALL
(MAX HEIGHT: 16')

PYLON SIGN
(120 SF)

PYLON SIGN
(75 SF)

PYLON SIGN
(18 SF)

RETAINING WALL
(MAX HEIGHT: 30')

CONCRETE SIDEWALK (TYP.)

2' CONCRETE CURB
AND GUTTER (TYP.)

PROPERTY BOUNDARY (TYP.)

RETAINING WALL
(MAX HEIGHT: 26')

RETAINING WALL
(MAX HEIGHT: 18')

RETAINING WALL
(MAX HEIGHT: 18')

RETAINING WALL
(MAX HEIGHT: 15')

PARKING DATA:

STAFF SPACES - 75

DOCTOR'S SPACES - 19

MOB SPACES PH1 - 265

MOB SPACES PH2 - 254

ED / IMAGING SPACES - 18

REGULAR BEDS SPACES - 51

ASC SPACES PH 3 - 160

EXTRA SPACES - 143

TOTAL SPACES = 985

SETBACK
(VARIES)

STREET TREE
(TYP.)

CVS DRIVEWAY CONNECTION

82

=--~[ 
I 

__ j 

1 
___ , 

0 D O D 8 D O O D 8 D 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 0 0 0 0 D 

• ~ 11· mcg1 _ _ 
@ :=:=::::::::t========J ADVENTHEALTH 

1 ' 

1-----+--+----------< C-100 



U. S.   H W Y   25 - 70 U. S.   H W Y   25 - 70

HO
RI

ZO
N 

HI
LL

 R
D.

2100

2125

2080

2085

2090

2095

2105

2110

2115

2120

2130

2135

21
40

2145

21
00

21
25

20
85 20

90 20
95 21

05 21
10 21

15 21
20 21

30

2150

2130

2135

2140

2145

21
00

2125

2150

2105

2110

21
1521152115

2120

2130
2135

2140

2145

2075

2100

2125

2065

2070

2080

2085

2090
2095

2105
2110

2115

2120

2130

2125

2110

2115

2120

2130

2135

2140

GARRISON BRANCH (SR 1834)

OLLIE WEAVER RD

15

10

100110000

0000

1155

5
11 12

0000
20000 1

5 111 11111

0000 0 21 200000 005050 211
11121
1100 2121121211111

302222 212121212121 22121
252222222555 21212121
33030

HOSPITAL PH 1
270,000 SF
6 FLOORS

MOB PH 1
75,000 SF
3 FLOORS

MOB PH 2
75,000 SF
3 FLOORS

HOSPITAL PH 2
130,000 SF
6 FLOORS

ASC PH 3
40,000 SF
2 FLOORS

220720720777775

102221021000

2211
010
0

10

21
0

21
000010
0

10
00000000

POS
0010222102100

25522212

2111212125

2221212121
225252525

125521212

2221500215215

ZZZZZZ

2006565
202020620665

207070700

22202080080800

8002208208208

50858508082020202020

20820808855

85
20

808080808082

222020900909

220
909090909099
0

09020

0200955

2220
909099
5959595

 1
S0000,

666666

95209

2105

2212121102102100505

211
0050555

SRS
0000 0301

40,00000 SSF
2110

2222 111100

211
111
0

111
0

100022

222211111155

21212121
212121212121

11515
111111

212121
1151511
5

11
55

121112222

0021222222

2 212200

221
212212122
020

0021222222

3033212121

O
0

MOM

2121
3131321
333

22212 3033
212121212121353513135

22111141414400

22212 455445

2551222121

215151515051515

00011211112222

1511211112222

0120121222212

22212 303030

33033033330303303

03013322212

001313132222

22222 3133555

353321

3533
22212

2212121142142144040

OO
,757

400421442

0440444
21

2211144141445

222

2221214514145

VEVEVEVEVEVEVE

21
00

21
00

2100

2125

2090

2095 21
05

2110

2115

2120

21
30

21
35

21
40

21
45

21
35

2135

2135

2140

2140
2140

2145

2100

21
00

2125

20
85

20
85

20
90

2090

20
95

2095

2105

2105

2110

21
10

2115

21
15

2120

2120

21
30

21
10

2115 2100

21
10

2105

2110

2120

2120

2115

24
.0

01
18

 - 
AD

VE
N

TH
EA

LT
H

 - 
AD

VE
N

TH
EA

LT
H

 B
U

N
C

O
M

BE
C

O
U

N
TY

 C
AM

PU
S 

- S
H

EE
T 

C
-2

00

P:
\2

02
4\

24
.0

01
18

-H
KS

-A
D

VE
N

TH
EA

LT
H

 B
U

N
C

O
M

BE
 C

O
U

N
TY

\D
R

AW
IN

G
S\

SH
EE

TS
\2

4.
00

11
8 

- 0
3 

G
R

AD
IN

G
.D

W
G

 P
LO

T 
D

AT
E 

9/
20

/2
02

4 
2:

25
 P

M
W

ES
TO

N
 B

ER
R

Y
P:

\2
02

4\
24

.0
01

18
-H

KS
-A

D
VE

N
TH

EA
LT

H
 B

U
N

C
O

M
BE

 C
O

U
N

TY
\D

R
AW

IN
G

S\
SH

EE
TS

\2
4.

00
11

8 
- 0

3 
G

R
AD

IN
G

.D
W

G
 P

LO
T 

D
AT

E 
9/

20
/2

02
4 

2:
25

 P
M

W
ES

TO
N

 B
ER

R
Y

P:
\2

02
4\

24
.0

01
18

-H
KS

-A
D

VE
N

TH
EA

LT
H

 B
U

N
C

O
M

BE
 C

O
U

N
TY

\D
R

AW
IN

G
S\

SH
EE

TS
\2

4.
00

11
8 

- 0
3 

G
R

AD
IN

G
.D

W
G

 P
LO

T 
D

AT
E 

9/
20

/2
02

4 
2:

25
 P

M
W

ES
TO

N
 B

ER
R

Y

NO. DATE BY DESCRIPTION

SHEET

OFFICE MANAGER

PROJECT MANAGER

DESIGNER

REVIEWER DATE PROJECT # FUNDING #

(ORIGINAL SIZE: 24"x36")

ADVENTHEALTH BUNCOMBE
COUNTY CAMPUS

BUNCOMBE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
24.00118SEPTEMBER 2024

MASTER GRADING PLAN

M. CATHEY

R. WILL

G. ORR

S. BURWELL N/A

DIVISION VALUE  =          FEETGRAPHIC SCALE

0080 40 80 160

8055 Broad Street
Asheville, NC 28801
828.252.0575
NC Firm License # C-0459

mcgillassociates.com

R

CONSTRUCTION
DO NOT USE FOR

- FOR REVIEW PURPOSES ONLY -
PRELIMINARY

RETAINING WALL
(MAX HEIGHT: 35')

RETAINING WALL
(MAX HEIGHT: 5')

RETAINING WALL
(MAX HEIGHT: 16')

RETAINING WALL
(MAX HEIGHT: 30')

PROPERTY BOUNDARY (TYP.)

RETAINING WALL
(MAX HEIGHT: 26')

RETAINING WALL
(MAX HEIGHT: 18')

RETAINING WALL
(MAX HEIGHT: 18')

RETAINING WALL
(MAX HEIGHT: 15')

83

• ~ 11· mcg1 _ _ ADVENTHEALTH C-200 



U. S.   H W Y   25 - 70 U. S.   H W Y   25 - 70

HO
RI

ZO
N 

HI
LL

 R
D.

GARRISON BRANCH (SR 1834)

OLLIE WEAVER RD

HOSPITAL PH 1
270,000 SF
6 FLOORS

MOB PH 1
75,000 SF
3 FLOORS

MOB PH 2
75,000 SF
3 FLOORS

HOSPITAL PH 2
130,000 SF
6 FLOORS

ASC PH 3
40,000 SF
2 FLOORS

PH
AS

E 
III

PH
AS

E 
I

PH
AS

E 
II

PH
AS

E 
I

PH
AS

E 
I

PH
AS

E 
II

PH
AS

E 
I

PH
AS

E 
II

2100

2125

2100

21
00

2125

2100

2125

2150

2075

20
50

2075
2100

2125

2100

2100

21
00

2100

2125

2125

2125

2125

21
50

2125

2150

21
50

21
50

2150

2150

20
75

2075

2100

2100

20
25

2050

20
50

2075

2075

2100

2125

2150

2150

2125

21
50

21
50

2125

2150

2150

2110

2115

2115

2125

2120

2125 21
30

21
35 21

40

21
45

2120

2110

2115

2115

21
05

21
10

21
15

2090

20
95

2115

2120

2155

2145

2135

2130

24
.0

01
18

 - 
AD

VE
N

TH
EA

LT
H

 - 
AD

VE
N

TH
EA

LT
H

 B
U

N
C

O
M

BE
C

O
U

N
TY

 C
AM

PU
S 

- S
H

EE
T 

C
-3

00

P:
\2

02
4\

24
.0

01
18

-H
KS

-A
D

VE
N

TH
EA

LT
H

 B
U

N
C

O
M

BE
 C

O
U

N
TY

\D
R

AW
IN

G
S\

SH
EE

TS
\2

4.
00

11
8 

- 0
4 

ST
O

R
M

.D
W

G
 P

LO
T 

D
AT

E 
9/

20
/2

02
4 

2:
25

 P
M

W
ES

TO
N

 B
ER

R
Y

P:
\2

02
4\

24
.0

01
18

-H
KS

-A
D

VE
N

TH
EA

LT
H

 B
U

N
C

O
M

BE
 C

O
U

N
TY

\D
R

AW
IN

G
S\

SH
EE

TS
\2

4.
00

11
8 

- 0
4 

ST
O

R
M

.D
W

G
 P

LO
T 

D
AT

E 
9/

20
/2

02
4 

2:
25

 P
M

W
ES

TO
N

 B
ER

R
Y

P:
\2

02
4\

24
.0

01
18

-H
KS

-A
D

VE
N

TH
EA

LT
H

 B
U

N
C

O
M

BE
 C

O
U

N
TY

\D
R

AW
IN

G
S\

SH
EE

TS
\2

4.
00

11
8 

- 0
4 

ST
O

R
M

.D
W

G
 P

LO
T 

D
AT

E 
9/

20
/2

02
4 

2:
25

 P
M

W
ES

TO
N

 B
ER

R
Y

NO. DATE BY DESCRIPTION

SHEET

OFFICE MANAGER

PROJECT MANAGER

DESIGNER

REVIEWER DATE PROJECT # FUNDING #

(ORIGINAL SIZE: 24"x36")

ADVENTHEALTH BUNCOMBE
COUNTY CAMPUS

BUNCOMBE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
24.00118SEPTEMBER 2024

MASTER STORMWATER MANAGEMENT
PLAN

M. CATHEY

R. WILL

L. ROBERSON

S. BURWELL N/A

DIVISION VALUE  =          FEETGRAPHIC SCALE

0080 40 80 160

8055 Broad Street
Asheville, NC 28801
828.252.0575
NC Firm License # C-0459

mcgillassociates.com

R

CONSTRUCTION
DO NOT USE FOR

- FOR REVIEW PURPOSES ONLY -
PRELIMINARY

CURB INLET (TYP.)

JUNCTION BOX (TYP.)

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (TYP.)

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (TYP.) BIOSWALE

HEADWALL

18" HDPE

18" H
DPE

18" HDPE
18" H

DPE

18
" H

D
PE

18" H
DPE

18
" H

D
PE

18" HDPE

18" H
DPE

18" HDPE

18" HDPE18" HDPE

18
" H

D
PE

18
" H

D
PE

18
" H

D
PE

18
" H

DPE

18" HDPE

18" HDPE18
" H

D
PE

18
" H

D
PE

18
" H

D
PE

18
" H

D
PE

18
" H

D
PE

18" HDPE18" HDPE

18
" H

D
PE

24" HDPE

24
" H

D
PE

24" HDPE24" HDPE24" HDPE

36
" H

D
PE

36" HDPE

18" HDPE

36" HDPE

36" HDPE

36" HDPE

18" HDPE18" HDPE

18" HDPE

18" HDPE

24" HDPE

24
" H

D
PE

24" HDPE

36" HDPE

18" HDPE

18" HDPE

18" HDPE

48" H
DPE

48
" H

DPE

48
" H

DP
E

48
" H

D
PE

48" HDPE

60" HDPE

24" HDPE TRENCH DRAIN24" HDPE

24" HDPE

18
" H

D
PE

18
" H

D
PE

18
" H

D
PE

18" HDPE 18" HDPE 18" HDPE

18" HDPE

18
" H

DPE
24

" H
D

PE

24" HDPE

24" HDPE

18" HDPE

18" HDPE

18" H
D

PE

18" HDPE

18" H
DPE

18" HDPE
18" HDPE

18
" H

D
PE

18" HDPE

18
" H

D
PE18" HDPE

18" HDPE18" HDPE

18
" H

D
PE

18" HDPE

18
" H

D
PE

24" HDPE24" HDPE18
" H

D
PE

24" HDPE24" HDPE

24" HDPE
FLARED END SECTION

18
" H

D
PE

18" HDPE24" HDPE 18" HDPE
18" HDPE 18" HDPE

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (TYP.)

CURB INLET (TYP.)

CURB INLET (TYP.)

CURB INLET (TYP.)

JUNCTION BOX (TYP.)

JUNCTION BOX (TYP.)

JUNCTION BOX (TYP.)

84

• ~ 11· mcg1 _ _ ADVENTHEALTH C-300 



U. S.   H W Y   25 - 70 U. S.   H W Y   25 - 70

HO
RI

ZO
N 

HI
LL

 R
D.

GARRISON BRANCH (SR 1834)

OLLIE WEAVER RD

HOSPITAL PH 1
270,000 SF
6 FLOORS

MOB PH 1
75,000 SF
3 FLOORS

MOB PH 2
75,000 SF
3 FLOORS

HOSPITAL PH 2
130,000 SF
6 FLOORS

ASC PH 3
40,000 SF
2 FLOORS

PH
AS

E 
III

PH
AS

E 
I

PH
AS

E 
II

PH
AS

E 
I

PH
AS

E 
I

PH
AS

E 
II

PH
AS

E 
I

PH
AS

E 
II

24
.0

01
18

 - 
AD

VE
N

TH
EA

LT
H

 - 
AD

VE
N

TH
EA

LT
H

 B
U

N
C

O
M

BE
C

O
U

N
TY

 C
AM

PU
S 

- S
H

EE
T 

C
-4

00

P:
\2

02
4\

24
.0

01
18

-H
KS

-A
D

VE
N

TH
EA

LT
H

 B
U

N
C

O
M

BE
 C

O
U

N
TY

\D
R

AW
IN

G
S\

SH
EE

TS
\2

4.
00

11
8 

- 0
6 

U
TI

LI
TE

S.
D

W
G

 P
LO

T 
D

AT
E 

9/
20

/2
02

4 
2:

26
 P

M
W

ES
TO

N
 B

ER
R

Y
P:

\2
02

4\
24

.0
01

18
-H

KS
-A

D
VE

N
TH

EA
LT

H
 B

U
N

C
O

M
BE

 C
O

U
N

TY
\D

R
AW

IN
G

S\
SH

EE
TS

\2
4.

00
11

8 
- 0

6 
U

TI
LI

TE
S.

D
W

G
 P

LO
T 

D
AT

E 
9/

20
/2

02
4 

2:
26

 P
M

W
ES

TO
N

 B
ER

R
Y

P:
\2

02
4\

24
.0

01
18

-H
KS

-A
D

VE
N

TH
EA

LT
H

 B
U

N
C

O
M

BE
 C

O
U

N
TY

\D
R

AW
IN

G
S\

SH
EE

TS
\2

4.
00

11
8 

- 0
6 

U
TI

LI
TE

S.
D

W
G

 P
LO

T 
D

AT
E 

9/
20

/2
02

4 
2:

26
 P

M
W

ES
TO

N
 B

ER
R

Y

NO. DATE BY DESCRIPTION

SHEET

OFFICE MANAGER

PROJECT MANAGER

DESIGNER

REVIEWER DATE PROJECT # FUNDING #

(ORIGINAL SIZE: 24"x36")

ADVENTHEALTH BUNCOMBE
COUNTY CAMPUS

BUNCOMBE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
24.00118SEPTEMBER 2024

MASTER UTILITY PLAN

M. CATHEY

R. WILL

L. ROBERSON

S. BURWELL N/A

DIVISION VALUE  =          FEETGRAPHIC SCALE

0080 40 80 160

8055 Broad Street
Asheville, NC 28801
828.252.0575
NC Firm License # C-0459

mcgillassociates.com

R

CONSTRUCTION
DO NOT USE FOR

- FOR REVIEW PURPOSES ONLY -
PRELIMINARY

EXISTING TOW 12" WATER MAIN (TYP.)

MAG METER AND
RPZ BACKFLOW PREVENTER

PROPERTY BOUNDARY (TYP.)

TAP INTO EXISTING
WATER MAIN

EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT (TYP.)

FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY (TYP.)

REMOTE FDC
6" GATE VALVE (TYP.)

4" DIP FIRE LINE (TYP.)

FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY (TYP.)

REMOTE FDC

FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY (TYP.)

FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY (TYP.)

REMOTE FDC

FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY (TYP.)

REMOTE FDC

12" DIP PRIVATE
WATER MAIN (TYP.)

12" DIP PRIVATE
WATER MAIN (TYP.)

4" DIP FIRE LINE (TYP.)

6" GATE VALVE (TYP.)

6" GATE VALVE (TYP.)

20' WATER EASEMENT

12" DIP PRIVATE
WATER MAIN (TYP.)

6" DIP SEWER FORCE MAIN (TYP.)

SEWER PUMP STATION 1

SEWER CLEANOUT (TYP.)

8" PVC SEWER SERVICE (TYP.)

SEWER MANHOLE (TYP.)

8" SDR 35 SEWER MAIN

6" DIP SEWER FORCE MAIN (TYP.)

SEWER FORCEMAIN TIE-IN
TO EXISTING MSD SEWER
MANHOLE #63-501834

EXISTING 20' SEWER EASEMENT

EXISTING 10' SEWER EASEMENT

20'

10'

8" PVC SEWER SERVICE (TYP.)

SEWER MANHOLE (TYP.)

8" SDR 35 SEWER MAIN

SEWER CLEANOUT (TYP.)

8" PVC SEWER SERVICE (TYP.)

SEWER MANHOLE (TYP.)

8" SDR 35 SEWER MAIN

6" DIP SEWER FORCE MAIN (TYP.)8" PVC SEWER SERVICE (TYP.)

SEWER MANHOLE (TYP.)

8" SDR 35 SEWER MAIN

20'

SEWER PUMP STATION 2

EXISTING 8" PVC MSD SEWER MAIN (TYP.)

EXISTING MSD SEWER
MANHOLE #63-501833

EXISTING MSD SEWER
MANHOLE #63-501832

85

• ~ 11· mcg1 _ _ @) :=::::=t::::t========= -------'A--=Dc...:....:VE=.:....:Nc..:....:.TH.:.=EA=-.!!:L:...!..!TH-=---- C-400 



86



87



88 Hospital 
Phase 1 



89
::::s .., 
::::s 

LL. 

ca~ 
-~ Q) C. (/) 
Ill CO 
o..c 

:::C CL 



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: January 27, 2025 

SUBJECT: Annexation and Zoning – 21 Parker Cove Road 

PRESENTER:  Interim Town Manager Harris 

ATTACHMENTS: Proposed Annexation Map, Staff Report, Planning Board 
Recommendation, Proposed Rezoning Plan(s) 

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

A voluntary annexation petition seeking to have approximately 9.385 acres located at 21 
Parker Cove Road annexed into the Town of Weaverville. The purpose of their annexation 
appears to be to obtain Town services, including water, to support a 45-lot single family 
subdivision.  The petitioners are requesting conditional district zoning due to small lot 
sizes and reduced setbacks due to clustering of dwellings.  

Public hearings on the proposed annexation and possible zoning, including the requested 
conditional district and traditional R-2 zoning, were held on 21 January 2025. 

There were too many variables and options for the Town Attorney or staff to effectively 
develop draft ordinances for consideration at this meeting.   

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Town Council discussion and direction to staff is requested on this matter so that the Town 
Attorney and staff can prepare proposed ordinance(s) to bring back to Town Council at its 
next regular meeting.  

90



   
 A

N
N

EX
AT

IO
N

 M
AP

 
   

   
   

   
   

  F
O

R
 

TO
W

N
 O

F 
W

EA
VE

R
VI

LL
E 

91

I 

lio!•I ~ I 
. 

~ !; l&"ttt 

~ ~l 
.,,1 

~. 11 •• ,. 
i I 

0 



ANNEXATION STAFF REPORT  
ANNEXATION #2024-4 – 21 PARKER COVE ROAD 
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

FINANCIAL PROJECTIONS 

SUFFICIENCY OF PETITION – 

ZONING CLASSIFICATION  

OPERATIONAL AND SYSTEM IMPACTS 
WATER – 

STREETS AND STORMWATER

SANITATION

POLICE

FIRE

 

92

__ ,.STOP .... .... 

~M""(~~-
, -· ' 

Rezoning 
Plan 

RZ-1 



The Town of 

Weaverville
N O R T H   C A R O L I N A 

December 3, 2024 

Mayor Patrick Fitzsimmons and 
Weaverville Town Council 

Re: 21 Parker Cove Road – +/- 8.80 Acres 
Proposed Zoning Map Amendment – Conditional District and R-2 
Statement of Consistency/Reasonableness and Recommendation 

Dear Mayor and Council – 

At the direction of Town Council, the Planning Board reviewed the properties proposed for annexation 
and development at 21 Parker Cove Road and submits this letter addressing its findings and 
recommendation concerning an appropriate zoning designation for the properties should they be 
annexed.  

Town development regulations concerning zoning map amendments and North Carolina law require 
the Planning Board to review proposed zoning for plan consistency and reasonableness. 

The property involved consists of approximately 8.80 acres located at the intersection of Parker Cove 
Road (SR 2106) and Water Leaf Drive. This property is currently in the unincorporated portion of 
Buncombe County and zoned R-1. No development approval has been obtained yet on this property so 
vested rights have not been claimed.  

The developer has requested conditional district zoning on this property and the Planning Board has 
reviewed that request and provides its findings and recommendations.  The Planning Board also 
thought it might be beneficial to Town Council to provide findings and recommendation on a 
traditional zoning district for this property as well and that is also contained in this letter so that Town 
Council could legally consider both without having to initiate a second Planning Board review.  

The Planning Board met on November 7 and December 3 to conduct its review and considered both 
options and reports the following findings and recommendations.  

Conditional District Findings and Recommendation 

The conditional district request is for a development consisting of 45 residential dwelling units with 
small lots and reduced setbacks as shown on the Rezoning Plan dated 29 August 2024 that is attached 
to this recommendation. It is noted that the proposed unit density is approximately 5 per acre. The 
dwelling units are clustered and have lot sizes and setbacks that are smaller than what would be 

93



2 

allowed under traditional zoning districts. This provides a reason to consider conditional district zoning 
for the properties. 

The Planning Board reviewed the project and, with a majority vote of 4 to 1, finds that the adoption 
of the conditional district with the suggested conditions noted below is consistent with the 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan. The Comprehensive Land Use Plan and Future Land Use Plan both 
contemplate single family residential development in the area. Both the current and anticipated 
version of the Resolution Concerning Growth Areas indicate that single family residential use would be 
appropriate for this area (Growth Area 5) and include conditional districts, R-1 and R-2 as desirable 
zoning districts in the Reems Creek Road Corridor. Additionally, the stated goals within the CLUP of 
“consider ways to increase housing affordability” was taken into account. The voluntary annexation 
petition states an anticipated average sales price of $300,000 and the reduced lot area will aid in 
affordability. 

The Planning Board’s conversation concerning whether the conditional district is reasonable was more 
difficult. The Planning Board failed to find that the conditional district as presented was reasonable 
and declined to provide a favorable recommendation on its adoption. To support this position, the 
Planning Board finds that a conditional district that incorporates the proposed rezoning plan is not 
reasonable in that the density is too high and that the small lot configuration that is proposed for the 
project is not consistent with the other residential uses within the area. It was also noted that Parker 
Cove Road connects to Reems Creek Road at an extreme angle and the Planning Board expressed 
concern that this intersection cannot safely handle the traffic load that is expected to be associated 
with this project. It was noted by some members that this project feels similar to multifamily projects 
and higher density zoning which were recently removed from the desirable uses in this Growth Area 5. 
Concern was also expressed about the impact of this high density on the existing infrastructure and 
Town resources, and the tight clustering of the dwelling units was found to be undesirable in this 
location.   

Traditional District Findings and Recommendation 

As an alternative to the proposed conditional district the Planning Board also considered which 
traditional zoning district was most appropriate for this property.  

When considering a traditional district the Planning Board was urged to consider the appropriateness 
of all uses allowable within a requested zoning district. With this in mind the Planning Board focused 
on the R-2 zoning districts as it seemed to be most closely aligned to the existing residential 
development in the Reems Creek Road corridor, including Maple Trace Subdivision.    

In a unanimous vote, the Planning Board found that R-2 zoning for this property is consistent with 
the Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan (CLUP) and reasonable and forwards a favorable 
recommendation to Town Council on R-2 zoning. In making this finding the Board considered the 
future land use map, current and proposed uses within the area, including the mix of residential uses. 
This proposed R-2 zoning district represents a consistent and compatible use when considering the 

94



3 

zoning and current uses in the area, including properties within the Town and just outside its municipal 
limits. To support the finding that R-2 zoning is reasonable the Board found that the R-2 zoning district 
is compatible with the current residential uses of the properties within the area, including existing and 
permitted single-family residences.  

It is noted that this recommendation was largely based on this property being within the Town’s 
identified Growth Area 5 and Town Council Resolution Concerning Growth Areas which indicates that 
R-2 zoning is consistent with Town Council’s desired zoning for this property.

Please let me know if you need anything further from the Board on this matter.

Sincerely,

Mark Endries 
Planning Board Vice Chair 

cc: Jane Kelley, Planning Board Chair 
James Eller, Planning Director 
Scottie Harris, Interim Town Manager 
John Henning, Town Attorney 

95



LOT 34

LOT 33

LOT 35

LOT 36

MAPLE TRACE - PHASE 3
MB 185 PG 30

6 spaces

6 spaces

6 spaces

7 spaces

9 spaces

5 s
pa

ce
s

5 s
pa

ce
s

3 sp.

3 sp.

4 sp.

3 
sp

.

6 spaces

4 
sp

.
4 

sp
.

4 sp.
2 sp.

2 
sp

.
2 

sp
.

2 
sp

.

2 sp.

pvt. alley - 20' r/w

pvt. alley - 20' r/w

pv
t. a

lley
 - 2

0' r
/w

pv
t. a

lley
 - 2

0' r
/w

pvt. alley - 20' r/w

pv
t. 

all
ey

 - 
20

' r/
w

pvt. alley - 20' r/w

pv
t. 

st
re

et
 - 

50
' r

/w

pvt. street - 50' r/w

pro
p. 

sig
n

prop. sign

prop. sign

pro
p. 

sig
n

TIE TO EXISTING SEWER

TIE TO EXISTING WATER

1.92  P.O.S

0.49 AC P.O.S

0.14 AC C.O.S

0.07 AC
C.O.S

0.09 AC C.O.S

0.07 AC C.O.S

0.22 AC C.O.S

0.13 AC C.O.S

0.1
0 A

C C.O
.S

0.05 AC
C.O.S

0.05 AC
C.O.S

0.57 AC
P.O.S

20' BUFFER (0.89 AC P.O.S)

Sheet No:

Sheet Title:

Drawn By:

Checked By:

Revisions:

Project Number:

Date:

Seals:

RZ-1

Rezoning
Plan

SITE

VICINITY MAP
N.T.S.

1005025050

GRAPHIC SCALE
1" = 50'

STOP

T
H

E
 S

A
N

C
T

U
A

R
Y

 A
T

 R
E

E
M

S
 C

R
E

E
K

T
O

W
N

 O
F 

W
E

A
VE

R
VI

LL
E

B
U

N
C

O
M

B
E

  C
O

U
N

T
Y

, N
O

R
T

H
 C

A
R

O
LI

N
A

FO
R

:
G

R
E

E
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 C
A

PI
T

A
L 

PA
R

T
N

E
R

S
,  L

LC
29

25
 S

E
N

N
A

 D
R

IV
E

; S
U

IT
E

 2
02

M
A

T
T

H
E

W
S

, N
C

 2
81

05

NRP

NRP

17.24.001

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

Reems Creek Rd

08/29/24    ORIGINAL SUBMITTAL

08/29/2024

Parker Cove Rd

Pu
g 

R
un

Pl
ea

sa
nt

 G
ro

ve
 R

d

Water Leaf Dr.

96

/ 

/ 
/ 

/ 
/ 

/ 
./ 

/ 

/ 

// 
...--- / ..-----------

_.-/ ,..--/" _;;:;:::.- ~ 

/ 
/ 

/ 
/ 

/ 
/ 

/ 
/ 

//- _/ 

/ 
/ 

/ 
/ 

/ 
/ 

/ 
~~-

~~-_?'' ~-~-

__5 ~ -~- - -~ _-----;;;:-_ -
_____-?~ 
-/ 

------'i1~ ]', ,~ - -
_. -- - :::Cs~ --- - -· • - - - - - -

----'i1---- / -- "-- -- ,1 ----- - -,- ------ - - - - •• - / - • 

----'i1------ ,,- - ___. - ------ ~ ~-,1!1,i,'" ' G / •• ___. -~ ~ • --------·- -- .,- --- - - , -· ,• ' -=-'---'~--- -- ,---::.:.---- -·- ,., ,• - -- ·- :.---- -= - - - ------>•' .- _, ' - -~',':,.',~; - ,____Js; '\,\ \ ,:;-•"· ~ .~,m;.:= • , cj,'f:: 

., ~ -~~e- r 

~~ ( 
\ 

REZONING PLAN DATA TABLE ;<,,v/ 

/j'!f:,: Site Address 21 Parker CoVE Rd, Weaverville, NC 28787 

Jurisdiction Town of WeBverVJ]le 

Perce! ID(s) 97524425600000 

Deed Reference DB 4673, PafI_e 1806 

Ma.p Reference MB 104; Page 171 

Total Acreage 9. 385-acres 

Total Square Feet 408,908 S!f:_ ft 

Survey Prepared By: Cloninger Bell Surveying and Mapping PLLC 

DBle Surveyed 08-15-2024 

PrincipBl Use(s) ResidentiBl/Suslo.ine.ble Developlllenl 

Existing Zoning District HJ - Bucombe Countx_ 

Proposed Zoning District CD - Town of WeBverviile 

Common Open Space (C. O.S) 3.87 Acres 

Tree Save/PassiYe Open Space (P.O.S} 0.92 Acres 

Impervious Area 1. 67 Acres (18% total site area} 

Total Number of Units 45 Single Fainily Detached 

Tott1.l Density 4. 79 unitsL!!cre 

*Nt1.turt1. l Gt1.s, telephone, electric, t1.nd ct1.ble lines t1.re to be instt1.lled t1.nd shtJ.11 be insttJ.11 
underground. 

BEFORE YDIJ DIG STOP. 

IT'S THE LA W. 

LE.G.Elill__;__ 

• --,,m--
--ss--- ~ - •-

Rff[P:[~ /.J.. l PAACU. ANO BOOfl OAAY 1-"CRM,\TI~. ,',D.J,',CENT PROPl'RTES. P~RTY c. ~rns,:,11s 
TOPQGR,.Pt<Y N,ll c ooa:ornATES REH ... NCEO '"°" A SIJRl/[Y !IY Clatm crn EIELL SI.J Rl/[" 'JG N,ll 

~~ 

/ // 

f' 

; 

? / ~~,·' 
4'11·" 

/- ,.~•/' 

-~- / 
--------'"'.:~J;~~,, / - , I 

,/ ., - / 
/ ,,,..,,r---

_,#~'dtrJ:;f•V ,,, -~- _ _/ 

\ 
!lilNOO\tl"'IQC.OlllffiJST 

.,, , ,=....,,.7>00000 

" " " 

-
" " " 

" 

""'":"f'~~ao" 

\ ,l v,~ 

~ 

" 

~ 

'5;.,.~ --------

t 
r 

® 



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: January 27, 2025 

SUBJECT: 

PRESENTER: 

Consideration of Resolution Permitting the Buncombe County Ordinance 
Prohibiting Discrimination in Employment and Public Accommodations to 
be Applicable Within Town Limits 

Mayor Fitzsimmons

ATTACHMENTS: Buncombe County Ordinance Prohibiting Discrimination in Employment 
and Public Accommodations dated April 20, 2021;  draft Resolution 
Permitting the Buncombe County Ordinance Prohibiting Discrimination in 
Employment and Public Accommodations to be Applicable Within Town 
Limits;  and draft Interlocal Agreement Between Buncombe County and 
the Town of Weaverville 

DESCRIPTION: North Carolina is one of just �ive states that does not have a state public 
accommodation law. A Survey of North Carolina’s Public Accommodations 
Ordinances and a Proposal for a Statewide Public Accommodations Law, 
N.C. L. Rev. 303 (2023).  Members of the community have expressed
concerns that federal protections are inadequate and have urged local
leaders to enact a ban on discrimination in Employment and public
accommodations.

COUNCIL ACTION: Consideration of the proposed Resolution Permitting the Buncombe 
County Ordinance Prohibiting Discrimination in Employment and Public 
Accommodations and the Interlocal Agreement with Buncombe County 
regarding ordinance administration within Town limits 

97



{CS: 00127082.DOCX }

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

RESOLUTION PERMITTING THE BUNCOMBE COUNTY ORDINANCE 
PROHIBITING DISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT AND PUBLIC 
ACCOMODATIONS TO BE APPLICABLE WITHIN TOWN LIMITS 

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §153A-121 a county may by ordinance define, 
regulate, prohibit, or abate acts, omissions, or conditions detrimental to the health, safety, or 
welfare of its citizens and the peace and dignity of the county; and may define and abate nuisances; 

WHEREAS, any ordinance under such authority is applicable to any part of the county not 
within a city; 

WHEREAS, on or about April 20, 2021, Buncombe County adopted Ordinance No. 21-04-
18, Prohibiting Discrimination In Employment and Public Accommodations; 

WHEREAS, the Town of Weaverville desires to extend such prohibitions as applicable to 
Town employees to all its citizens and residents; 

WHEREAS, governing board of a city has authority to permit a county ordinance adopted 
to be applicable within the city pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §153A-122; 

WHEREAS, Town personnel have worked with Buncombe County officials to develop an 
Inter-Local Agreement between the two jurisdictions to specify mutual responsibilities under the 
ordinance and investigation and enforcement in particular; and 

WHEREAS, this Council has determined that it is in the best interests of the citizens and 
residents of the Town of Weaverville to adopt said ordinance and permit its application with its 
jurisdiction. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, as follows: 

1. That, as authorized by legislation described above, Buncombe County Ordinance
No. 21-04-18, an Ordinance Prohibiting Discrimination In Employment and
Public Accommodations, shall be applicable with the Town of Weaverville.

2. That by and with the approval of the Town Attorney, the Mayor is authorized to
execute an Inter-Local Agreement between the Town and Buncombe County
concerning the administration of this ordinance within the Town.

3. All acts and doings of officers, employees and agents of the County, whether
taken prior to, on, or after the date of this Resolution, that are in conformity with
and in the furtherance of the purposes and intents of this Resolution as described
above shall be, and the same hereby are, in all respects ratified, approved and
confirmed.

4. This Resolution and Buncombe County Ordinance No. 21-04-18 shall be
effective with the Town of Weaverville on ______________________, 2025.

98



{CS: 00127082.DOCX }

ADOPTED this the 21st day of January, 2025. 

_____________________________ 
PATRICK FITZSIMMONS, Mayor 

_____________________________ 
TAMARA MERCER, Town Clerk 

99



ORDINANCE NO. 21-04-18 

ORDINANCE PROHIBITING DISCRIMINATION 

IN EMPLOYMENT AND PUBLIC ACCOMMODATIONS 

______________________________ 

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §153A-121 a county may by ordinance define, regulate, 
prohibit, or abate acts, omissions, or conditions detrimental to the health, safety, or 
welfare of its citizens and the peace and dignity of the county; and may define and 
abate nuisances; 

WHEREAS, this Board finds that discriminatory practices in employment and public 
accommodations constitutes a nuisance that is detrimental to the health, safety, or 
welfare of its citizens; and 

WHEREAS, this Board has determined that it is in the best interest of the citizens and residents of 
Buncombe County to enact protections against discrimination that reflect the 
community’s shared values of equality, inclusion, and fair access, and to preserve the 
health, safety, and welfare of people without regard to certain actual or perceived 
status or characteristics. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BUNCOMBE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS THAT: 

Section 1. The Buncombe County Code of Ordinances on file with Buncombe County Clerk to the 
Board of Commissioners shall be amended by including the following: 

Chapter 42.  NON-DISCRIMINITION ORDINANCE 

42-1.  DEFINITIONS.

a. Discrimination means any difference in treatment based on race, natural hair or hairstyles,
ethnicity, creed, color, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, national origin or
ancestry, marital or familial status, pregnancy, veteran status, religious belief or non-belief, age,
or disability.

b. Employer means any person employing one or more persons within the County and any
person  acting in the interest of an employer, directly or indirectly, including an employment
agency. “Employer” shall include the County and any County Contractor.

c. Gender identity or expression means having or being perceived as having gender-related identity,
expression, appearance, or behavior, whether or not that identity, expression, appearance, or
behavior is different from that traditionally associated with the sex assigned to that individual at
birth.

100



d. Person includes one or more individuals, partnerships, associations, organizations, corporations,
legal representatives, unincorporated organizations, fiduciaries, and other organized groups of
persons.

e. Public accommodation (or place of public accommodation) means any place, facility, store, or
other establishment which supplies accommodations, goods, or services to the public or which
solicits or accepts the patronage or trade of the public.

f. Reasonable cause in preponderance of the evidence which is evidence, when taken as a whole,
shows the violation is more likely than not.

42-2.  DISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT PROHIBITED.

It shall be unlawful for any employer, because of the race, natural hair or hairstyles, ethnicity, creed, 
color, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, national origin or ancestry, marital or 
familial status, pregnancy, veteran status, religious belief or non-belief, age, or disability of any person 
to refuse to hire or otherwise discriminate against that person with respect to hire, tenure, conditions, 
or privileges of employment, or any matter directly or indirectly related to employment. 

42-3.  EXEMPTIONS.

a. General exceptions.  Notwithstanding the prohibition on discrimination in employment set forth
in 42-2, it is not unlawful for:

1. An Employer to employ, admit, classify, or refer any individual on the basis of race, natural
hair or hairstyles, ethnicity, creed, color, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or
expression, national origin or ancestry, marital or familial status, pregnancy, veteran status,
religious belief or non-belief, age, or disability, in those certain instances where race, natural
hair or hairstyles, ethnicity, creed, color, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or
expression, national origin or ancestry, marital or familial status, pregnancy, veteran status,
religious belief or non-belief, age, or disability status is a bona fide occupational qualification
reasonably necessary to the normal operation of that particular business or enterprise.

2. An Employer to print or publish, or caused to be printed or published, any notice or
advertisement indicating any preference, limitation, specification, or discrimination, based
on race, natural hair or hairstyles, ethnicity, creed, color, sex, sexual orientation, gender
identity or expression, national origin or ancestry, marital or familial status, pregnancy,
veteran status, religious belief or non-belief, age, or disability, in such instances when race,
natural hair or hairstyles, ethnicity, creed, color, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or
expression, national origin or ancestry, marital or familial status, pregnancy, veteran status,
religious belief or non-belief, age, or disability status is a bona fide occupation qualification
for employment.

3. A school, college, university, or other educational institution, or institution of learning to
hire and employ employees of a particular religion if such school, college, university, or
other educational institution or institution of learning is, in whole or in substantial part,
owned, supported, controlled, or managed by a particular religion or by a particular
religious corporation, association, or society, or if the curriculum of such school, college,
university, or other educational institution or institution of learning is directed toward the
propagation of a particular religion.

101



4. An Employer to apply different standards of compensation, or different terms, conditions, or
privileges of employment pursuant to a bona fide seniority or merit system, or a system
which measures earnings by quantity or quality of production or to employees who work in
different locations, so long as the differences are not the result of an intention to
discriminate because of race, natural hair or hairstyles, ethnicity, creed, color, sex, sexual
orientation, gender identity or expression, national origin or ancestry, marital or familial
status, pregnancy, veteran status, religious belief or non-belief, age, or disability.

5. An Employer to give and to act upon the results of any professionally developed ability test
provided that the test, its administration, or action upon the results is not designed,
intended, or used to discriminate because of race, natural hair or hairstyles, ethnicity, creed,
color, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, national origin or ancestry,
marital or familial status, pregnancy, veteran status, religious belief or non-belief, age, or
disability.

6. An Employer to differentiate upon the basis of sex in determining the amount of the wages
or compensation paid or to be paid to employees of the employer if the differentiation is
authorized by the provisions of section 6(d) of the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, as
amended (29 U.S.C. § 206(d)).

7. An Employer to refuse to assign or continue to assign an individual to a job involving food
handling in any case in which such individual has an infectious or communicable disease that
is:

i. Transmitted to others through the handling of food;

ii. Is included on the list developed by the Secretary of the United States Department
of Health and Human Services pursuant to section 103(d) of the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990, (42 U.S.C. §§ 12101, et seq.); and

iii. Cannot be eliminated by reasonable accommodation. Nothing in this subsection
shall be construed to preempt, modify, or amend any state, county, or local law,
ordinance, or regulation applicable to food handling.

b) Exceptions regarding drug and alcohol use.  Notwithstanding the prohibition on discrimination
in employment set forth in 42-2, it is not a violation of this Ordinance for an Employer to:

1. Adopt or administer reasonable policies or procedures, including but not limited to drug
testing.

2. Prohibit the illegal use of drugs and the use of alcohol at the workplace by employees.

3. Require that employees shall not be under the influence of alcohol or be engaging in the
illegal use of drugs at the workplace.

4. Require that employees behave in conformance with the requirements established under
the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (41 U.S.C. §§ 701 et. seq.).

5. Hold an employee who engages in the illegal use of drugs or who is an alcoholic to the same
qualification standards for employment or job performance and behavior that the entity

102



holds other employees, even if any unsatisfactory performance or behavior is related to the 
drug use or alcoholism of the employee. 

6. With respect to federal regulations regarding alcohol and the illegal use of drugs, require
that employees comply with the standards established in federal regulations of the
Department of Defense, the Nuclear Regulatory Commission, and/or the Department of
Transportation, if the employees of the Employer are employed in an industry subject to the
regulations of any such federal agency.

c) Miscellaneous.  The prohibitions in this Ordinance against discrimination in employment based
upon disability shall not be construed to prohibit or restrict:

1. An insurer, hospital, medical service company, health maintenance organization, or any
agent, or entity that administers benefit plans, or similar organizations from underwriting
risks, classifying risks, or administering such risks that are based on or not inconsistent with
State law; or

2. A person or organization covered by this Ordinance from establishing, sponsoring,
observing, or administering the terms of a bona fide benefit plan that are based on
underwriting risks, classifying risks, or administering those risks that are based on or not
inconsistent with State law; or

3. A person or organization covered by this Ordinance from establishing, sponsoring,
observing, or administering the terms of a bona fide benefit plan that is not subject to State
laws that regulate insurance.

4. Nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed to require an individual with a disability to
accept an accommodation, aid, service, opportunity, or benefit which such individual
chooses not to accept;

5. Nothing contained in this Ordinance shall apply to a religious corporation, association,
educational institution, or society with respect to the employment of individuals of a
particular religion to perform work connected with the carrying on by such corporation,
association, educational institution, or society of its activities.

6. With respect to discrimination based on age, it is not unlawful for a Employer to take any
action otherwise prohibited under this Ordinance:

i. Where the differentiation is based on reasonable factors other than age;

ii. Where such practices involve an employee in a workplace in a foreign country, and
compliance with those subsections would cause such employer, or a corporation
controlled by such employer, to violate the laws of the country in which such
workplace is located; or

iii. To observe the terms of a bona fide seniority system; or

iv. To observe the terms of a bona fide employee benefit plan; or

v. To discharge or otherwise discipline an individual for good cause.

7. Nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed to prohibit compulsory retirement of any
employee who has attained 65 years of age provided such retirement is part of a practice
consistent with a bona fide employee retirement plan.

103



42-4.  DISCRIMINATION IN PUBLIC ACCOMODATIONS PROHIBITED.

It shall be unlawful for any proprietor or their employer, keeper, or manager in a place of public 
accommodation to deny any person, except for reasons applicable alike to all persons, regardless of 
race, natural hair or hairstyles, ethnicity, creed, color, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or 
expression, national origin or ancestry, marital or familial status, pregnancy, veteran status, religious 
belief or non-belief, age, or disability, the full enjoyment of the accommodations, advantages, facilities 
or privileges thereof. 

42-5.  EXEMPTIONS.  The provisions of 42-4 prohibiting discrimination in public accommodations shall
not apply to a private club or other establishments not in fact open to the public.

42-6.  HOUSING.

a) Buncombe County will assist its residents in filing housing discrimination claims with the North
Carolina Human Relations Commission.

b) In offering this assistance, and consistent with the recent Supreme Court of the United States
decision in Bostock v. Clayton County, Buncombe County interprets the prohibition on sex
discrimination in housing to include discrimination on the basis of sexual orientation and gender
identity.

c) In offering this assistance, Buncombe County interprets the prohibition on race discrimination
in housing to include discrimination on the basis of natural hair or hairstyles.

42-7.  ENFORCEMENT.  Complaints alleging violations of this Chapter shall be filed and investigated as
follows:

a) Any person who claims to have been injured, or claims they are currently being injured, or who
reasonably believes that they will be injured, by any practice made unlawful under this
Ordinance may file a Complaint with an equity officer or such other person as designated by the
County Manager hereinafter referred to as ("EO").

b) Complaints shall be in writing, signed and verified by the Complainant. Complaints shall state
the facts upon which the allegation of an unlawful discriminatory practice is based and shall
contain such other information and be in such form as the EO requires.

c) A Complaint that alleges an unlawful employment practice under this Ordinance must be filed
with the EO no later than 180 days after the occurrence, or cessation of the alleged unlawful
employment practice.

d) A Complaint that alleges discrimination in public accommodations under this Ordinance must be
filed with the EO no later than one year from the date of the occurrence, or cessation of the
alleged unlawful practice.

104



e) The EO shall serve upon the Respondent and Complainant a copy of the Complaint and a notice
advising the Respondent and Complainant of their procedural rights and obligations under this
Ordinance within ten days after the Complaint is filed.

f) A Respondent may file an answer to the Complaint within thirty (30) days after receiving a copy
of the Complaint. Answers shall be signed and verified by the Respondent and shall be filed with
the EO.

g) With leave of the EO, which leave shall be granted whenever it would be reasonable and fair to
do so, Complaints and Answers may be amended at any time. Amendments shall be reduced to
writing, signed, verified, and filed with the EO. Amendments shall relate back to the date the
original Complaint or Answer was filed.

h) EO shall, within 30 days after the filing of a Complaint, commence an investigation into the
allegations contained in the Complaint.

i) In conducting an investigation, the EO shall have access at all reasonable times to premises,
records, documents, individuals, and other evidence or possible sources of evidence to ascertain
the factual basis of the allegations contained in the Complaint.

j) Further, the EO may examine, record, and copy such materials and take and record the
testimony or statements of such persons as reasonably necessary for the furtherance of the
investigation.

k) In conducting an investigation, the EO may:

i. request production of documents, materials, or other evidence;

ii. request witnesses, including any party, to appear and give testimony before the EO;

iii. Issue interrogatories to a Respondent.

l) Upon written application to the EO, a Respondent shall be entitled to the issuance of
interrogatories directed to the Complainant and to request production of documents, materials,
or other evidence.

m) Complaints may be resolved at any time by informal conference, conciliation, or persuasion.
Nothing said or done in the course of such informal procedure may be made public without the
written consent of the person concerned. However, all resolutions of complaints shall be
reduced to writing, shall be signed by the Complainant, the Respondent, and the EO and shall be
enforceable as a binding contract.

n) All complaints alleging an unlawful discriminatory housing practice shall be handled in the
manner described in section 42-6, Housing.

42-8.  REASONABLE CAUSE AND CONCILIATION EFFORTS.

a) If the Complaint is not sooner resolved, the EO shall, upon completion of the investigation,
determine whether or not there is reasonable cause to believe that an unlawful
discriminatory practice has occurred or is occurring.

b) The EO shall make their determination on reasonable cause as promptly as possible and, so
far as practicable, no later than 100 days after the Complaint was filed. If the EO is unable to
complete the investigation within 100 days after the filing of the complaint the EO shall
notify the complainant and respondent in writing of the reasons for not doing so.

105



c) At the end of each investigation, a final investigative report will be prepared and,
notwithstanding the prohibitions and requirements with respect to disclosure of
information, the report will be made available to the parties upon request.

d) In the event the EO determines that there is not reasonable cause to believe that an
unlawful discriminatory practice has occurred or is occurring, or should the EO be unable to
confirm or deny that discrimination took place they shall dismiss the Complaint and notify
the Complainant and the Respondent of the decision.

e) If the EO determines that reasonable cause exists, the EO shall notify the Complainant and
the Respondent and shall attempt to resolve the Complaint by conference, conciliation,
and/or persuasion.

f) All conciliation agreements shall be signed by the Complainant and the Respondent and
shall be recognized as a legally enforceable contract.  To the extent required by law, each
conciliation agreement shall be made public.

g) If the EO, after a finding of reasonable cause, is unable to resolve the Complaint by
conference, conciliation, or persuasion, it shall issue a written declaration that conciliation
efforts have failed.

h) If the EO issues a written declaration that conciliation efforts have failed, then the EO may
issue penalties as authorized herein.

42-9.  APPEALS.

Appeals from final decisions of the EO that there is reasonable cause to believe that a violation of the 
Ordinance has occurred may be appealed to a panel consisting of an assistant county manager, a staff 
attorney, and the strategic partnerships director.  Appeals must be made in writing and delivered to the 
Clerk to the Board of the Buncombe County Commission within ten (10) days of receipt of the decision. 

42-10.  PENALTIES.

Pursuant to G.S. § 153A-123, the county manager, in consultation with county legal services, may 
choose from the remedies set forth below to enforce the requirements of this Chapter when there is a 
failure to comply with the requirements of this Chapter. Those remedies are as follows: 

a. In addition to or in lieu of the other remedies set forth in this Chapter the County Manager, or
their designee, may issue a citation setting forth a civil penalty of $100.00.  In the case of a
continuing violation, each 24-hour period in which the violation continues to exist shall
constitute a separate violation.  The citation shall be served upon the person violating any of the
requirements of this Section by hand delivery or certified mail or by any other means made in
accordance with the North Carolina Rules of Civil Procedure. In the event the violator does not
pay the penalty within 30 days of service of the citation, the civil penalty shall be collected by
the county in a civil action in the nature of debt, which shall not subject the offender to the
penalty provisions of G.S. § 14-4.

b. In addition to or in lieu of other remedies set forth in this Chapter, the county manager may
direct county legal services to seek injunctive relief in the appropriate court.

106



Section 2. Nothing in this Ordinance shall be interpreted or applied so as to create any 
requirement, power, or duty in conflict with any existing federal or state law. 

Section 3. Should any provision of this Ordinance be found to be unconstitutional or otherwise 
legally impermissible by a court of law, such provision shall be severed from the remainder of the 
Ordinance, and such action shall not effect the enforceability of the remaining provisions of the 
Ordinance. 

Section 4. That provisions of this Ordinance shall take effect and be in force on July 1, 2021. 

This the 20th day of April, 2021. 

ATTEST BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR THE 
COUNTY OF BUNCOMBE 

___________________________  By: _____________________________ 
Lamar Joyner, Clerk        Brownie Newman, Chairman 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

___________________________ 
County Attorney 

Holly Jones 

Mon Jun  4 2012 14:22:28

107

~~ 
(!, ~ p ~ _j-&Yv 

J~F 

~U7i 

.h7§-~ 

~/51 4~ 

~-Jr 1~~1vw----



{CS: 00127083.DOCX }

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA INTERLOCAL 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN BUNCOMBE COUNTY 

COUNTY OF BUNCOMBE AND THE TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

THIS Intergovernmental Agreement made and entered into this ____ day February 2025, 
by and between the County of Buncombe, a body politic and corporate, organized and existing 
under the laws of the State of North Carolina (hereinafter sometimes referred to as the "County"), 
and the Town of Weaverville, a municipal corporation of the State of North Carolina (hereinafter 
sometimes referred to as "Town").  Collectively hereinafter referred to as " Party" or "Parties". 

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §153A-121 a county may by ordinance define, 
regulate, prohibit, or abate acts, omissions, or conditions detrimental to the health, safety, or 
welfare of its citizens and the peace and dignity of the county; and may define and abate nuisances; 

WHEREAS, any ordinance under such authority is applicable to any part of the county not 
within a city; 

WHEREAS, on or about April 20, 2021, Buncombe County adopted Ordinance No. 21-
04-18, Prohibiting Discrimination In Employment and Public Accommodations;

WHEREAS, the Town of Weaverville desires to extend such prohibitions as applicable to 
Town employees to all its citizens and residents; 

WHEREAS, governing board of a city has authority to permit a county ordinance adopted 
to be applicable within the city pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §153A-122; 

WHEREAS, the Parties hereto desire to enter into this agreement to establish specific 
responsibilities of the each Party concerning administration, investigation and enforcement of said 
ordinance within the jurisdiction of the Town of Weaverville; and 

WHEREAS, towns and counties and other units of local government are authorized to enter 
into agreements as authorized by NCGS §153A-445 and §160A-461. 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants 
contained herein the Parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. The Recitals set forth above, along with the definitions of certain terms, are
incorporated herein by reference as if fully restated.

2. From and after the effective date of said ordinance within the jurisdiction of the
Town, Buncombe County Government shall have no responsibilities regarding
administration, investigation and enforcement of said ordinance within the
jurisdiction of the Town of Weaverville.

108



{CS: 00127083.DOCX }

3. The Town of Weaverville shall manage all aspects of administration, investigation
and enforcement of said ordinance within the jurisdiction of the Town of
Weaverville.

4. The Town of Weaverville will comply with all procedural requirements of said
ordinance within the jurisdiction of the Town of Weaverville.

5. Any complaints alleging violation of the ordinance received by either Party that are
found to be within the jurisdiction of the other Party shall be referred to the
appropriate officials within the appropriate jurisdiction and necessary persons will
be so advised.

6. Should the County deem it necessary and appropriate to amend the ordinance at
any time, the County will give the Town sixty (60) days advance written notice and
the Town may either notify the County of its acknowledgment and consent to the
amendment or the Town may notify the County of it intent to withdraw permissions
for applicability of the ordinance within Town jurisdiction and terminate this
Agreement.

7. Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth and constitutes the entire agreement
and understanding of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof.  This
agreement supersedes any and all prior agreements, negotiations, correspondence,
undertakings, promises, covenants, arrangements, communications,
representations, and warranties, whether oral or written, of any party to this
agreement.

8. Invalid Provision to Affect no Others.  If any provisions of this Agreement are held,
determined, or adjudicated to be invalid, unenforceable or void for any reason, each
such provision shall be severed from the remaining provisions of this Agreement
and shall not affect the validity and enforceability of such remaining provisions.

9. The individual signatories below have the expressed authority on behalf of their
respective Boards to execute this Agreement.  The Parties may execute this
Agreement in separate counterparts and the execution of a copy shall have the same
effect as the execution of an original.  Such execution may be by facsimile or PDF
attachment to an email.

{Signature Page Follows} 

109



{CS: 00127083.DOCX }

Signature Page 1 of 2 

County of Buncombe 

_____________________________ 
Amanda Edwards, Chair 

Attest: 

_____________________________ 
Sarah Gross, Clerk to the Board 

110



{CS: 00127083.DOCX }

Signature Page 2 of 2 

Town of Weaverville 

_____________________________ 
Patrick Fitzsimmons, Mayor 

Attest: 

_____________________________ 
Tamara Mercer, Town Clerk 

111



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

PRESENTER:  

ATTACHMENTS: 

January 27, 2025 

Hurricane Relief Donations from Weaverville, California 

Mayor Fitzsimmons

None 

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

The Town has received generous donations from the citizens of Weaverville, California, 
related to Hurricane Helene and the Town’s disaster recovery efforts. The amount received 
to date is $1,281.00. 

Staff is seeking some discussion and direction from Town Council concerning how these 
funds should be spent so that an appropriate budget amendment can be drafted and 
presented for approval and the funds can be utilized.  

TOWN COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED:  

Town Council discussion and direction to staff. 

112



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

PRESENTER:  

ATTACHMENTS: 

January 27, 2025 

Human Resources Audit 

Interim Town Manager Harris 

HR Audit Executive Summary

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

Town Council has consistently shown support for better understanding the human 
resources aspect of Town government. In September 2024 the Town engaged ADEPT HRM 
Solutions to perform a human resources audit and that work was recently completed. 
Attached is the executive summary that provides a high-level overview of the audit’s 
purpose, scope, and key findings. The full audit report is not provided due to length but is 
available upon request.  

A couple of meaningful quotes taken from the audit report include the following: 

As part of the HR Audit, ADEPT HRM Solutions conducted an on-site review in Weaverville, NC, 
spending 2-3 days at various work locations to gain a comprehensive understanding of the 
operational environment. During this time, each department head generously dedicated time 
to provide insights into their work processes, file management systems, and team leadership 
practices. A consistent theme across all work locations was the efficiency demonstrated by 
staff, who effectively manage substantial workloads despite limited resources. While this level 
of productivity is commendable, it also highlights the need for strategic HR planning to 
mitigate potential risks associated with resource constraints. In addition to addressing 
compliance, risk, and exposure, a critical responsibility of HR is to proactively consider 
contingency planning and succession planning to ensure organizational sustainability. This 
presents an opportunity for the Town of Weaverville to conduct a broader evaluation of 
departmental operations and allocate additional resources where needed.  

… 

We recommend exploring options to centralize HR tasks, allocate additional resources, and 
prioritize the areas identified in the audit. 

Town staff is already taking steps to resolve several of the compliance recommendations. 
In addition, Interim Manager Harris is working on some options to better address the HR 
needs of the Town and intends to bring some recommendations back to Town Council in an 
upcoming meeting. 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

This is provided for information, but Town Council discussion and direction is 
welcomed.  

113



HUMAN 

RESOURCES 

AUDIT 

Performed for: 

The Town of Weaverville 
North Carolina 

Delivered: 
January 8, 2025 

114

8EB 
adept hrm soluti ons 



Table of 

CONTENTS 

Executive Summary 
High-level overview of the audit's purpose, scope, and key 

findings. This section summarizes your overall compliance 

health, highlights strengths and detail areas needing 

improvement. Here you will also find recommended next steps 

for the enhancement of your HR function. 

Primary Audit Conclusions 
Summarizes the overall health of HR practices based on audit 

results. Highlights compliance status, identifies critical risks, and 

provides an assessment of strengths and areas for improvement. 

Summary of Recommendations 
Outlines prioritized actions to address identified issues, enhance 

compliance, and improve HR practices. This section provides targeted 

solutions for immediate and long-term improvements. 

01 

115

02 

03 



 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

 
An organization’s Human Resources function is charged with developing and implementing 

strategies/policies related to its most valued assets – the employees who individually and collectively 

contribute to the achievement of its goals. The broad purpose of HR is to maximize the return on an 

organization’s human capital investment and minimize HR‐related financial, operational, and regulatory 

risks. As such, HR activities touch virtually every aspect of an organization’s operation and have 

substantial resource implications. 

 
The Fire Chief and Interim Town Manager, Scottie Harris for The Town of Weaverville, NC authorized a 

comprehensive performance audit of the Human Resources function to be completed by ADEPT HRM 

Solutions. The findings and recommendations in this audit are designed to assist The Town of 

Weaverville, NC in several ways, such as: 

 

• Providing an overview of the health of the Town of Weaverville, NC’s HR function. 

• Equipping department heads and town leaders with important information regarding 

corrections for any areas of concern identified. 

• Presenting concepts and ideas for development and maintenance of the HR function. 

• Presenting industry benchmarks and data points to help illustrate the need for dedicated HR resources.  

 
This performance audit was conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those 

standards require that the audit be performed to obtain sufficient, appropriate evidence to provide a 

reasonable basis for our findings and conclusions based on audit objectives. ADEPT HRM Solutions 

believes that the evidence obtained in this audit provides a reasonable basis for its findings and 

conclusions based on audit objectives. 

116



PRIMARY AUDIT CONCLUSIONS 

The HR audit for the Town of Weaverville highlighted a functional and resourceful team managing HR 

responsibilities under challenging conditions. While their efforts have ensured continuity and compliance in 

most areas, the findings also revealed gaps that are largely a result of structural limitations and resource 

constraints rather than oversight or neglect. 

Key Observations 

• Distributed HR Responsibilities: HR tasks are dispersed among individuals who, while capable and

diligent, are not primarily HR professionals. This decentralized approach increases the potential for

inconsistencies in processes and compliance.

• Resource Limitations: Limited staffing, time, and tools hinder the ability to focus on proactive HR

initiatives, such as employee engagement, strategic planning, and risk management.

• Audit Findings: Many of the issues identified—such as outdated job descriptions, file management

inconsistencies, and compliance gaps—can be attributed to a lack of centralized HR expertise and

adequate resources. With more dedicated support, these challenges could be addressed more

effectively.

Strengths and Opportunities 

The team has demonstrated the ability to handle HR functions alongside their primary responsibilities, ensuring 

critical needs are met. However, to better position the Town for long-term growth and compliance, investing in 

dedicated HR resources will be essential.  

This includes: 

• Centralizing HR functions to improve efficiency and reduce the risk of oversights.

• Enhancing processes with specialized HR expertise to ensure compliance with evolving regulations.

• Allocating additional tools, time, or personnel to provide the capacity for strategic planning and

operational improvements.

117



Industry Benchmarks and Data Points 

According to the Society for Human Resource Management (SHRM), the average HR-to-employee ratio is 1 

HR professional for every 50-100 employees, depending on the complexity of the organization and its 

operations. If HR responsibilities are spread across multiple locations or involve compliance with public-sector 

regulations, the need for HR support increases, often approaching the lower end of the ratio (closer to 1 HR 

professional for every 50 employees. 

Distributed or Decentralized HR Functions occur when HR responsibilities are spread across different 

departments or locations rather than being managed by a centralized HR professional or team.  

118

HR to Employee 
Ratio 

Time 
Allocation 
for HR 
Tasks 
A survey by Deloitte found that 
decentralized HR structures often lead to 
inefficiencies, with managers spending up 
to 25-40% of their time on administrative 
HR tasks instead of their core 
responsibil ities. 

Organizations with centralized HR functions 
and appropriate staffing are more likely to 
meet compliance standards and achieve 
strategic HR goals, such as workforce 
planning and development. 

Standard 
Organizations 

1.7:100 

Ochar.lldr'olllOliUH .... 

-.... 
With these time demands, it's challenging for 

non-HR professionals to manage HR tasks 
effectively without sacrificing either HR quality 

and compliance or their primary duties 

Complex 
Organizations 

1.7:50 



Conclusion 

The audit findings highlight an opportunity to enhance HR resources to better support the Town's goals. The 

gaps identified appear to stem more from structural and resource limitations than from the team's efforts or 

performance. With targeted investments in HR expertise and infrastructure, the Town of Weaverville can build 

a more resilient and strategic HR function to support its workforce and future objectives.  

We recommend exploring options to centralize HR tasks, allocate additional resources, and prioritize the areas 

identified in the audit. Our team is available to collaborate on developing an actionable plan to address these 

findings and strengthen HR operations for the Town. 

119



Appendix A: SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS 

PRIORITY SCHEDULE 

1 – Urgent (compliance based) 

2 - Very Important (risk mitigation) 

3 - Important (best practice) 

Conclusion of HR Audit. 

120

Urgent 
complionce-bosed refers to tasks or actions 
that must be addressed immediately to 
ensure adherence to legol, regulotory, or 
orgonizotionol standards. 

Very Important 
Risk mitigotion refers to tasks or actions tho~ 
while not requiring immediate attention, ore 
crltlcol to prooctively addressing potentiol risks 
or vulnerabilities. 

Important 
Best practice refers to tasks or actions that 
enhance elRciency, improve processes, or 
align the organization with recognized 
standards of excellence. 



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

Date of Meeting: January 27, 2025 

Subject: Departmental Quarterly Report: Finance 

Presenter:  Town Finance Director 

Attachments:  Quarterly Report – 2nd Quarter FY 2025 

Description: 

Attached please find the Finance Department’s quarterly report, with charts summarizing 

revenues and expenditures as of 12/31/2024, as well as updated summaries of the Recreation 

Complex Project, the Water Treatment Plant Expansion Project, the Water System Resiliency 

Project, and the Helene Disaster Response & Recovery Project. 

Council Action Requested: 

No action requested. 

121



 -

 500,000

 1,000,000

 1,500,000

 2,000,000

 2,500,000

Ad Valorem Tax DMV Tax Utilites Tax Sales Tax Bunc Co Fire Protection ABC Store Water Revenue

YTD Revenue Analysis

12/31/2021 12/31/2022 12/31/2023 12/31/2024 Prorated Budget FY25

122

■ ■ ■ ■ ■ 



 -

 500,000

 1,000,000

 1,500,000

 2,000,000

 2,500,000

Governing
Body

Admin Planning Police Fire Streets Sanitation Grounds
Maintenance

Water Admin Water
Production

Water
Maintenance

YTD Expenditure Analysis

12/31/2021 12/31/2022 12/31/2023 12/31/2024 Prorated Budget FY25

123

.11111 II 11111 

■ ■ ■ ■ ■ 



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

FY 2024-2025 10/01/2024 TO 12/31/2024
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGETED % BUDGET REM

REVENUE & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT

REVENUE:
010-004-300-04010  PRIOR YEAR TAX REVEN 3,000.00 312,059.6540.31
010-004-300-04020  AD VALOREM TAX REV 4,262,256.00 502,144,138.141,905,664.96
010-004-300-04025  DMV TAX REVENUE 221,402.00 44122,925.8361,848.81
010-004-300-04030  TAX PENALTIES & INTE 8,000.00 89875.75414.47
010-004-300-05010  UTILITIES  TAX 490,661.00 44276,648.68157,762.57
010-004-300-05040  BEER & WINE TAX 19,000.00 1000.000.00
010-004-300-05050  POWELL BILL DISTRIBU 148,440.00 -10163,866.2481,933.11
010-004-300-05060  LOCAL GOVT SALES TA 2,167,560.00 531,026,720.81502,485.83
010-004-300-06040  ABC STORE DISTRIBUTI 350,000.00 7492,057.1592,057.15
010-004-300-06045  ABC STORE - ALCOHOL 4,168.17 04,168.174,168.17
010-004-300-06050  ABC STORE - POLICE DE 2,977.26 02,977.262,977.26
010-004-300-09015  CELL TOWER REVENUE 22,300.00 5011,125.685,562.84
010-004-300-09020  MISCELLANEOUS REVEN 8,000.00 97,273.463,642.70
010-004-300-09022  CONTRIBUTIONS COMM 240.86 -279913.00720.96
010-004-300-09025  CONTRIBUTIONS POLIC 323.33 1000.000.00
010-004-300-09026  CONTRIBUTIONS FIRE D 323.33 1000.000.00
010-004-300-09028  COPS FOR KIDS 4,275.00 -466,256.006,256.00
010-004-300-09030  INTEREST EARNED 287,647.00 12253,814.11119,174.52
010-004-300-09031  INTEREST EARNED POW 34,710.00 5714,998.067,600.08
010-004-300-09039  CONTRIBUTIONS PUBLI 323.34 1000.000.00
010-004-300-09040  PLANNING & ZONING FE 18,000.00 666,081.752,246.75
010-004-300-09041  FACILITY USE RENTAL F 75,770.00 6427,032.569,525.00
010-004-300-09043  PROPERTY INSURANCE 0.00 05,012.745,012.74
010-004-300-09044  PARKING ENFORCEMEN 3,400.00 671,110.00330.00
010-004-300-09050  SALE OF PROPERTY 10,000.00 703,035.001,770.00
010-004-300-09052  FEES IN LIEU OF SIDEWA 0.00 0262,560.00262,560.00
010-004-310-09900  APPROPRIATED FUND B 2,981,637.86 1000.000.00
030-004-300-08010  WATER REVENUE 2,847,745.00 511,391,649.06625,144.48
030-004-300-08020  MISCELLANEOUS REVEN 20,000.00 -26172,282.3047,161.05
030-004-300-08030  WATER TAPS 22,680.00 873,000.000.00
030-004-300-08040  SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT 150,600.00 8326,125.0017,875.00
030-004-300-08060  FEES FOR MSD COLLECT 82,426.00 4941,754.7221,198.55
030-004-300-09030  INTEREST EARNED 130,153.00 1000.000.00
030-004-310-09900  APPROPRIATED FUND B 492,179.17 1000.000.00
040-004-300-09045  FIRE INSPECTION FEEES 500.00 20400.00100.00
040-004-310-09901  APPROPRIATED FUND B 127,684.00 1000.000.00
040-004-610-09900  BUNC CO FIRE PROTECT 2,227,144.00 551,004,989.24498,083.55

TOTAL REVENUE 4,443,316.86 6,975,850.36 17,225,526.32 60

OTHER FINANCING SOURCE:
040-000-300-60010  TRANSFER FROM GENER 1,882,385.00 1000.000.00
040-000-300-60011  TRANSFER FROM GEN C 525,000.00 1000.000.00

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCE 0.00 0.00 2,407,385.00 100

TONYA Page 1 5:31:44PM01/22/2025
fl141r07

124

CURRENT PERIOD 



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

FY 2024-2025 10/01/2024 TO 12/31/2024
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGETED % BUDGET REM

REVENUE & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT

4,443,316.86 6,975,850.36 19,632,911.32

320 TRANSFERS
OTHER FINANCING USE:

010-004-320-60500  TRANSFER TO NBFD SPE 1,882,385.00 1000.000.00
011-004-320-60500  TRANSFER TO NBFD SPE 525,000.00 1000.000.00
031-004-320-60061  TRANSFER TO CAP PROJ 384,154.00 1000.000.00

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USE 0.00 0.00 2,791,539.00 100

0.00 0.00 -2,791,539.00

411 GOVERNING BODY
EXPENDITURE:

010-410-411-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 36,600.00 5018,300.009,150.00
010-410-411-12110  SALARIES & WAGES - LE 99,029.00 7227,692.310.00
010-410-411-18100  FICA 10,376.00 663,523.95699.99
010-410-411-18200  RETIREMENT 13,557.00 723,791.070.00
010-410-411-18210  401-K MATCH 5,941.00 721,661.530.00
010-410-411-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 9,540.00 742,455.570.00
010-410-411-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 74,900.00 1464,257.5228,153.50
010-410-411-19500  CONTRACT LABOR 10,000.00 -12822,800.0018,875.00
010-410-411-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 500.00 1000.000.00
010-410-411-31000  TRAVEL & TRAINING 2,000.00 9593.8093.80
010-410-411-32100  TELEPHONE/INTERNET 3,756.00 1000.000.00
010-410-411-35100  BUILDING REPAIR / MAI 30,000.00 6410,894.149,311.19
010-410-411-39100  ADVERTISING 4,500.00 92354.770.00
010-410-411-39200  NEWS LETTERS 1,000.00 1000.000.00
010-410-411-39300  PRINTING 600.00 33400.000.00
010-410-411-39500  DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 500.00 1000.000.00
010-410-411-39510  COMMUNITY PROMOTIO 74,000.00 2456,202.6120,015.19
010-410-411-39530  PUBLIC WI-FI 18,000.00 509,000.004,500.00
010-410-411-40450  INSURANCE 728.00 64259.200.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 90,798.67 221,686.47 395,527.00 44

-395,527.00-221,686.47-90,798.67

-90,798.67 -221,686.47 -395,527.00

412 ADMINISTRATION
EXPENDITURE:

010-410-412-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 453,341.00 43260,444.6087,189.58
010-410-412-18100  FICA 34,681.00 4519,081.246,475.76
010-410-412-18200  RETIREMENT 62,062.00 5825,872.612,154.01
010-410-412-18210  401-K MATCH 27,200.00 6310,178.575,226.88
010-410-412-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 72,309.00 6426,184.4211,786.00
010-410-412-18400  RETIREE HEALTH INSUR 11,796.00 565,139.612,508.24

TONYA Page 2 5:31:44PM01/22/2025
fl141r07

125

AFTER TRANSFERS 

AFTER TRANSFERS 

BEFORE TRANSFERS 

AFTER TRANSFERS 

CURRENT PERIOD 



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

FY 2024-2025 10/01/2024 TO 12/31/2024
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGETED % BUDGET REM

REVENUE & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT

010-410-412-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 124,600.00 7729,060.2319,931.07
010-410-412-19600  TAX COLLECTION FEES 85,245.00 5042,941.4738,122.39
010-410-412-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 1,100.00 9823.380.00
010-410-412-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 24,000.00 726,677.764,159.62
010-410-412-31000  TRAVEL & TRAINING 13,000.00 851,992.931,726.07
010-410-412-32100  TELEPHONE / INTERNET 18,417.00 548,546.093,868.78
010-410-412-32500  POSTAGE 3,000.00 78646.47246.47
010-410-412-33100  UTILITIES 6,380.00 463,431.982,426.30
010-410-412-35100  BUILDING REPAIR / MAI 35,000.00 6312,877.2211,377.22
010-410-412-35200  EQUIPMENT MAINTENA 5,000.00 691,543.67568.98
010-410-412-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 500.00 1000.000.00
010-410-412-39100  ADVERTISING 500.00 1000.000.00
010-410-412-39500  DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 4,600.00 641,653.49370.00
010-410-412-39600  BANK SERVICE CHARGE 12,000.00 347,909.113,915.43
010-410-412-39800  ESC REIMBURSEMENT 8,000.00 1000.000.00
010-410-412-40450  INSURANCE 10,429.00 416,115.800.00
010-410-412-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 67,500.00 5828,218.200.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 202,052.80 498,538.85 1,080,660.00 54

-1,080,660.00-498,538.85-202,052.80

-202,052.80 -498,538.85 -1,080,660.00

413 PLANNING
EXPENDITURE:

010-410-413-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 152,934.00 6356,983.5936,474.54
010-410-413-18100  FICA 11,700.00 634,353.692,787.38
010-410-413-18200  RETIREMENT 20,937.00 637,801.024,993.34
010-410-413-18210  401-K MATCH 9,176.00 633,419.022,188.47
010-410-413-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 22,438.00 755,519.043,066.01
010-410-413-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 10,000.00 -310,290.458,827.13
010-410-413-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 1,000.00 1000.000.00
010-410-413-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 1,500.00 84241.23224.73
010-410-413-31000  TRAVEL & TRAINING 5,000.00 1000.000.00
010-410-413-32100  TELEPHONE / INTERNET 2,583.00 65916.13432.54
010-410-413-32500  POSTAGE 1,000.00 1000.000.00
010-410-413-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 1,000.00 9910.0010.00
010-410-413-39100  ADVERTISING 1,500.00 1000.000.00
010-410-413-40450  INSURANCE 662.00 14566.280.00
010-410-413-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 3,000.00 401,786.761,786.76

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 60,790.90 91,887.21 244,430.00 62

-244,430.00-91,887.21-60,790.90

-60,790.90 -91,887.21 -244,430.00

431 POLICE
TONYA Page 3 5:31:44PM01/22/2025
fl141r07

126

BEFORE TRANSFERS 

AFTER TRANSFERS 

BEFORE TRANSFERS 

AFTER TRANSFERS 

CURRENT PERIOD 



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

FY 2024-2025 10/01/2024 TO 12/31/2024
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGETED % BUDGET REM

REVENUE & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT

EXPENDITURE:
010-430-431-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 1,759,583.65 55794,456.16454,922.52
010-430-431-12500  SEPARATION ALLOWAN 59,566.00 5029,524.3015,897.70
010-430-431-18100  FICA 135,741.00 5660,329.2634,599.05
010-430-431-18200  RETIREMENT 257,909.00 54117,707.8867,776.98
010-430-431-18210  401-K MATCH 102,889.00 5843,492.9025,054.45
010-430-431-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 236,519.00 51114,850.2460,969.96
010-430-431-18400  RETIREE HEALTH INSUR 34,106.00 5116,853.148,387.44
010-430-431-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 174,669.00 9214,305.8310,061.85
010-430-431-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 69,690.00 888,563.023,485.21
010-430-431-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 14,323.33 536,665.443,953.22
010-430-431-26400  ALCOHOL EDUCATION & 29,490.75 893,338.320.00
010-430-431-26450  ABC LAW ENFORCEMEN 10,917.21 98197.9658.01
010-430-431-26608  COPS FOR KIDS 5,068.13 1000.000.00
010-430-431-26900  UNIFORMS 14,500.00 2810,405.874,450.50
010-430-431-31000  TRAVEL & TRAINING 15,000.00 625,757.851,838.94
010-430-431-32100  TELEPHONE / INTERNET 30,784.00 6111,897.006,503.42
010-430-431-32500  POSTAGE 250.00 57106.505.55
010-430-431-33100  UTILITIES 7,135.00 682,252.351,266.69
010-430-431-35100  BUILDING REPAIR / MAI 40,757.00 817,903.817,844.26
010-430-431-35200  EQUIPMENT MAINTENA 17,500.00 852,581.601,786.30
010-430-431-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 25,000.00 1720,743.8913,679.30
010-430-431-40450  INSURANCE 74,065.00 1165,607.190.00
010-430-431-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 108,233.00 8022,019.2614,917.69
010-430-431-50300  CAPITAL IMPROVEMEN 169,616.00 39104,296.0241,121.77
010-430-431-50500  CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 124,000.00 973,626.920.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 778,580.81 1,467,482.71 3,517,312.07 58

-3,517,312.07-1,467,482.71-778,580.81

-778,580.81 -1,467,482.71 -3,517,312.07

434 FIRE
EXPENDITURE:

040-430-434-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 2,105,633.00 521,010,019.79585,595.41
040-430-434-12800  RELIEF PAY 67,778.00 7715,400.005,512.00
040-430-434-18100  FICA 166,266.00 5575,133.9843,438.42
040-430-434-18200  RETIREMENT 288,260.00 52138,271.8580,168.21
040-430-434-18210  401-K MATCH 108,638.00 5846,070.8626,073.57
040-430-434-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 346,928.00 57149,164.2577,057.47
040-430-434-18400  RETIREE HEALTH INSUR 10,514.00 525,038.462,769.23
040-430-434-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 27,270.00 795,591.283,130.02
040-430-434-19900  CONTRACT WORK 45,000.00 045,000.0045,000.00
040-430-434-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 38,010.00 788,442.763,696.95
040-430-434-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 12,323.33 012,268.437,277.70
040-430-434-26100  MEDICAL VACINATIONS 14,260.00 97403.36-116.64
040-430-434-26150  PREVENTION SUPPLIES 6,000.00 522,860.451,677.98

TONYA Page 4 5:31:44PM01/22/2025
fl141r07

127

BEFORE TRANSFERS 

AFTER TRANSFERS 

CURRENT PERIOD 



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

FY 2024-2025 10/01/2024 TO 12/31/2024
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGETED % BUDGET REM

REVENUE & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT

040-430-434-26260  MEDICAL EQUIP & SUPP 13,500.00 763,278.421,194.72
040-430-434-26900  UNIFORMS 12,000.00 476,357.313,557.06
040-430-434-31000  TRAVEL & TRAINING 30,000.00 6610,123.725,331.93
040-430-434-32100  TELEPHONE / INTERNET 29,427.00 6310,985.765,375.41
040-430-434-33100  UTILITIES 15,800.00 458,742.745,102.33
040-430-434-35100  BUILDING REPAIR / MAI 51,880.00 7910,920.683,742.55
040-430-434-35200  EQUIPMENT MAINTENA 20,000.00 892,130.801,053.58
040-430-434-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 65,000.00 7217,985.0213,317.86
040-430-434-39500  DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 18,800.00 754,638.79503.20
040-430-434-40450  INSURANCE 109,164.00 8100,626.20919.81
040-430-434-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 133,500.00 9111,488.857,783.02
040-430-434-50300  CAPITAL IMPROVEMEN 70,544.00 1063,490.0035,272.00
040-430-434-50500  CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 378,000.00 1000.000.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 964,433.79 1,764,433.76 4,184,495.33 58

-4,184,495.33-1,764,433.76-964,433.79

-964,433.79 -1,764,433.76 -4,184,495.33

451 STREETS
EXPENDITURE:

010-450-451-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 225,900.00 50112,237.6963,869.95
010-450-451-18100  FICA 17,280.00 538,121.474,635.94
010-450-451-18200  RETIREMENT 30,926.00 5015,365.318,743.77
010-450-451-18210  401-K MATCH 13,554.00 566,016.683,400.08
010-450-451-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 36,925.00 5018,402.339,329.40
010-450-451-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 7,500.00 89852.31553.19
010-450-451-19500  CONTRACT LABOR 24,480.00 1000.000.00
010-450-451-19900  CONTRACT WORK 35,000.00 865,028.880.00
010-450-451-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 11,500.00 446,424.364,424.48
010-450-451-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 40,000.00 875,378.453,717.84
010-450-451-26500  SAFETY MATERIALS 4,000.00 691,224.70479.86
010-450-451-26900  UNIFORMS 4,000.00 1000.000.00
010-450-451-31000  TRAVEL & TRAINING 5,000.00 83870.00870.00
010-450-451-32100  TELEPHONE / INTERNET 4,059.00 651,430.97663.00
010-450-451-33100  UTILITIES 61,600.00 4633,202.7617,959.40
010-450-451-35100  BUILDING REPAIR / MAI 3,000.00 1000.000.00
010-450-451-35200  EQUIPMENT MAINTENA 7,800.00 702,301.562,301.56
010-450-451-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 7,000.00 9952.000.00
010-450-451-39500  DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 1,000.00 1000.000.00
010-450-451-40450  INSURANCE 13,836.00 1112,336.900.00
010-450-451-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 3,000.00 1000.000.00
010-450-451-50300  CAPITAL IMPROVEMEN 564,667.55 10507,049.22109,814.65

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 230,763.12 736,295.59 1,122,027.55 34

-1,122,027.55-736,295.59-230,763.12

TONYA Page 5 5:31:44PM01/22/2025
fl141r07

128

BEFORE TRANSFERS 

AFTER TRANSFERS 

BEFORE TRANSFERS 

CURRENT PERIOD 



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

FY 2024-2025 10/01/2024 TO 12/31/2024
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGETED % BUDGET REM

REVENUE & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT

-230,763.12 -736,295.59 -1,122,027.55

459 POWELL BILL
EXPENDITURE:

010-450-459-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 12,686.00 565,541.613,182.41
010-450-459-18100  FICA 970.00 59396.64228.79
010-450-459-18200  RETIREMENT 1,737.00 56758.63435.65
010-450-459-18210  401-K MATCH 761.00 75190.77106.32
010-450-459-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 1,600.00 56708.95311.10
010-450-459-50300  CAPITAL IMPROVEMEN 540,630.00 1000.000.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 4,264.27 7,596.60 558,384.00 99

-558,384.00-7,596.60-4,264.27

-4,264.27 -7,596.60 -558,384.00

471 SANITATION
EXPENDITURE:

010-470-471-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 308,288.00 48161,303.2094,068.51
010-470-471-18100  FICA 22,341.00 4612,024.047,032.25
010-470-471-18200  RETIREMENT 39,980.00 5119,571.4611,419.97
010-470-471-18210  401-K MATCH 17,522.00 587,387.184,414.10
010-470-471-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 59,271.00 5327,920.3413,815.97
010-470-471-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 2,000.00 73536.02292.12
010-470-471-19500  CONTRACT LABOR 16,320.00 1000.000.00
010-470-471-19900  CONTRACT WORK 0.00 08.008.00
010-470-471-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 30,000.00 3120,566.8214,672.53
010-470-471-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 11,000.00 104-419.10-968.76
010-470-471-26500  SAFETY MATERIALS 7,000.00 781,516.59479.86
010-470-471-26900  UNIFORMS 8,500.00 97269.94269.94
010-470-471-31000  TRAVEL & TRAINING 1,500.00 1000.000.00
010-470-471-32100  TELEPHONE / INTERNET 2,325.00 64829.05359.91
010-470-471-33100  UTILITIES 4,000.00 741,035.76609.36
010-470-471-35100  BUILDING REPAIR / MAI 3,000.00 1000.000.00
010-470-471-35200  EQUIPMENT MAINTENA 15,000.00 832,489.491,285.87
010-470-471-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 29,000.00 776,624.374,040.01
010-470-471-40100  TIPPING FEES 76,000.00 6427,472.4414,370.65
010-470-471-40450  INSURANCE 46,246.00 1041,602.381,983.11
010-470-471-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 7,500.00 96,832.736,832.73
010-470-471-50500  CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 601,884.00 1597,914.47222,000.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 396,986.13 935,485.18 1,308,677.00 29

-1,308,677.00-935,485.18-396,986.13

-396,986.13 -935,485.18 -1,308,677.00

TONYA Page 6 5:31:44PM01/22/2025
fl141r07

129

AFTER TRANSFERS 

BEFORE TRANSFERS 

AFTER TRANSFERS 

BEFORE TRANSFERS 

AFTER TRANSFERS 

CURRENT PERIOD 



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

FY 2024-2025 10/01/2024 TO 12/31/2024
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGETED % BUDGET REM

REVENUE & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT

473 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT
EXPENDITURE:

010-470-473-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 57,622.00 5227,800.5815,613.32
010-470-473-18100  FICA 4,408.00 542,040.461,148.13
010-470-473-18200  RETIREMENT 7,888.00 523,805.902,137.45
010-470-473-18210  401-K MATCH 3,457.00 601,389.12772.06
010-470-473-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 6,560.00 344,357.152,196.27
010-470-473-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 13,000.00 1000.000.00
010-470-473-19500  CONTRACT LABOR 24,480.00 1000.000.00
010-470-473-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 3,000.00 81571.0924.99
010-470-473-31000  TRAVEL / TRAINING 2,000.00 1000.000.00
010-470-473-35200  EQUIPMENT MAINTENA 1,000.00 1000.000.00
010-470-473-39500  DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIO 1,500.00 1000.000.00
010-470-473-40450  INSURANCE 2,000.00 111,773.380.00
010-470-473-50300  CAPITAL IMPROVEMEN 136,000.00 1000.000.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 21,892.22 41,737.68 262,915.00 84

-262,915.00-41,737.68-21,892.22

-21,892.22 -41,737.68 -262,915.00

612 GROUNDS MAINTENANCE
EXPENDITURE:

010-600-612-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 175,523.00 40105,572.3360,498.34
010-600-612-18100  FICA 13,427.00 447,491.174,313.15
010-600-612-18200  RETIREMENT 24,029.00 4613,037.787,874.57
010-600-612-18210  401-K MATCH 10,531.00 544,856.923,019.17
010-600-612-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 38,407.00 5617,050.207,892.92
010-600-612-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 3,000.00 302,102.201,208.93
010-600-612-19500  CONTRACT LABOR 24,480.00 1000.000.00
010-600-612-19900  CONTRACT WORK 15,000.00 99187.980.00
010-600-612-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 7,500.00 87953.64269.25
010-600-612-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 32,323.34 709,671.866,298.54
010-600-612-26500  SAFETY MATERIALS 2,500.00 86355.90190.95
010-600-612-26900  UNIFORMS 3,500.00 1000.000.00
010-600-612-31000  TRAVEL & TRAINING 1,500.00 1000.000.00
010-600-612-32100  TELEPHONE / INTERNET 1,782.00 60715.49331.50
010-600-612-33100  UTILITIES 18,500.00 519,020.535,580.05
010-600-612-35100  BUILDING REPAIR / MAI 1,500.00 9826.120.00
010-600-612-35200  EQUIPMENT MAINTENA 5,000.00 741,283.7533.47
010-600-612-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 1,100.00 90107.05107.05
010-600-612-40450  INSURANCE 8,732.00 157,450.960.00
010-600-612-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 1,500.00 86215.980.00
010-600-612-50300  CAPITAL IMPROVEMEN 85,000.00 7520,865.020.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 97,617.89 200,964.88 474,834.34 58

TONYA Page 7 5:31:44PM01/22/2025
fl141r07

130

BEFORE TRANSFERS 

AFTER TRANSFERS 

CURRENT PERIOD 



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

FY 2024-2025 10/01/2024 TO 12/31/2024
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGETED % BUDGET REM

REVENUE & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT

-474,834.34-200,964.88-97,617.89

-97,617.89 -200,964.88 -474,834.34

614 COMMUNITY CENTER
EXPENDITURE:

010-600-614-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 126,451.00 5852,558.3932,439.88
010-600-614-18100  FICA 7,047.00 453,894.752,414.24
010-600-614-18200  RETIREMENT 12,611.00 447,077.224,323.02
010-600-614-18210  401-K MATCH 5,527.00 87734.20403.43
010-600-614-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 15,014.00 468,180.213,400.65
010-600-614-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 12,980.00 -2015,543.274,523.31
010-600-614-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 13,880.00 792,898.10959.56
010-600-614-32100  TELEPHONE / INTERNET 16,141.00 655,621.402,795.50
010-600-614-33100  UTILITIES 11,858.00 683,833.612,203.26
010-600-614-35100  BUILDING REPAIR / MAI 16,600.00 111-1,812.50-382.50
010-600-614-35200  EQUIPMENT MAINTENA 2,000.00 1000.000.00
010-600-614-39510  COMMUNITY PROGRAM 18,740.86 646,750.002,550.00
010-600-614-40450  INSURANCE 5,590.00 214,424.680.00
010-600-614-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 2,500.00 9853.0653.06

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 55,683.41 109,756.39 266,939.86 59

-266,939.86-109,756.39-55,683.41

-55,683.41 -109,756.39 -266,939.86

711 WATER ADMINISTRATION
EXPENDITURE:

030-700-711-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 175,581.00 5972,198.7739,917.95
030-700-711-18100  FICA 12,189.00 565,330.072,956.38
030-700-711-18200  RETIREMENT 21,813.00 559,884.035,464.75
030-700-711-18210  401-K MATCH 9,560.00 564,237.432,327.59
030-700-711-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 31,594.00 6411,330.285,401.01
030-700-711-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 45,000.00 904,352.442,523.07
030-700-711-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 3,000.00 92242.5665.89
030-700-711-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 3,500.00 78779.02641.35
030-700-711-26500  SAFETY MATERIALS 1,200.00 91108.950.00
030-700-711-26900  UNIFORMS 800.00 9082.4182.41
030-700-711-31000  TRAVEL & TRAINING 1,800.00 86259.77259.77
030-700-711-32100  TELEPHONE / INTERNET 6,138.00 582,547.741,196.55
030-700-711-32500  POSTAGE 14,000.00 457,767.634,907.30
030-700-711-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 1,000.00 1000.000.00
030-700-711-39500  DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 5,000.00 -205,980.002,580.00
030-700-711-40450  INSURANCE 15,917.00 3210,861.380.00
030-700-711-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 6,500.00 1000.000.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 68,324.02 135,962.48 354,592.00 62

TONYA Page 8 5:31:44PM01/22/2025
fl141r07

131

BEFORE TRANSFERS 

AFTER TRANSFERS 

BEFORE TRANSFERS 

AFTER TRANSFERS 

CURRENT PERIOD 



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

FY 2024-2025 10/01/2024 TO 12/31/2024
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGETED % BUDGET REM

REVENUE & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT

-354,592.00-135,962.48-68,324.02

-68,324.02 -135,962.48 -354,592.00

712 WATER PRODUCTION
EXPENDITURE:

030-700-712-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 373,240.00 50187,823.64106,275.76
030-700-712-18100  FICA 28,553.00 5213,838.897,822.36
030-700-712-18200  RETIREMENT 51,096.00 5025,713.0314,549.12
030-700-712-18210  401-K MATCH 22,394.00 638,282.894,815.29
030-700-712-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 68,149.00 5729,383.1315,165.11
030-700-712-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 18,000.00 695,647.393,892.57
030-700-712-19600  WATER TESTING / MAIN 17,000.00 655,930.603,593.60
030-700-712-19900  CONTRACT WORK 9,000.00 772,080.201,440.00
030-700-712-20000  CHEMICALS 112,000.00 5155,024.4729,818.36
030-700-712-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 5,000.00 82910.41375.23
030-700-712-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 10,000.00 782,242.53777.04
030-700-712-26500  SAFETY MATERIALS 1,500.00 86214.210.00
030-700-712-26900  UNIFORMS 3,000.00 491,524.591,524.59
030-700-712-27001  LAB SUPPLIES 25,000.00 5810,570.445,817.30
030-700-712-31000  TRAVEL & TRAINING 4,000.00 183,297.382,088.38
030-700-712-32100  TELEPHONE / INTERNET 6,765.00 771,568.86798.84
030-700-712-33100  UTILITIES 141,000.00 7041,701.0225,018.38
030-700-712-34000  SLUDGE REMOVAL 67,444.56 067,444.560.00
030-700-712-35100  BUILDING REPAIR / MAI 26,000.00 5212,416.825,254.06
030-700-712-35200  EQUIPMENT MAINTENA 8,000.00 89900.60900.60
030-700-712-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 4,000.00 651,391.221,200.47
030-700-712-40450  INSURANCE 17,551.00 2113,919.36360.16
030-700-712-40900  WATER PURCHASES 6,000.00 1000.000.00
030-700-712-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 5,000.00 313,431.371,231.37
030-700-712-50500  CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 122,245.44 3579,974.7357,294.27

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 290,012.86 575,232.34 1,151,938.00 50

-1,151,938.00-575,232.34-290,012.86

-290,012.86 -575,232.34 -1,151,938.00

713 WATER MAINTENANCE
EXPENDITURE:

030-700-713-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 336,476.00 41197,495.30116,867.11
030-700-713-18100  FICA 25,740.00 4414,389.278,513.11
030-700-713-18200  RETIREMENT 46,063.00 4127,037.2315,999.20
030-700-713-18210  401-K MATCH 20,189.00 657,040.874,140.59
030-700-713-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 78,511.00 5535,012.1018,365.52
030-700-713-18400  RETIREE HEALTH INSUR 22,365.00 579,634.034,868.29
030-700-713-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 35,000.00 922,666.361,741.89

TONYA Page 9 5:31:44PM01/22/2025
fl141r07

132

BEFORE TRANSFERS 

AFTER TRANSFERS 

BEFORE TRANSFERS 

AFTER TRANSFERS 

CURRENT PERIOD 



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

FY 2024-2025 10/01/2024 TO 12/31/2024
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGETED % BUDGET REM

REVENUE & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT

030-700-713-19500  CONTRACT LABOR 24,880.00 1000.000.00
030-700-713-19900  CONTRACT WORK 20,000.00 98316.00310.00
030-700-713-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 22,900.00 794,866.183,122.74
030-700-713-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 139,463.71 6154,688.2738,663.99
030-700-713-26500  SAFETY MATERIALS 4,500.00 661,510.56479.86
030-700-713-26900  UNIFORMS 10,760.00 742,781.982,760.00
030-700-713-31000  TRAVEL & TRAINING 4,400.00 85640.00440.00
030-700-713-32100  TELEPHONE / INTERNET 7,380.00 722,073.541,028.97
030-700-713-33100  UTILITIES 31,000.00 5812,996.829,226.09
030-700-713-35100  BUILDING REPAIR / MAI 10,000.00 98247.140.00
030-700-713-35200  EQUIPMENT MAINTENA 15,000.00 724,267.903,457.90
030-700-713-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 6,900.00 533,245.39686.37
030-700-713-39410  EQUIPMENTAL RENTAL 1,200.00 1000.000.00
030-700-713-39500  DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 1,800.00 1000.000.00
030-700-713-40450  INSURANCE 16,142.00 3111,151.09289.71
030-700-713-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 8,500.00 1000.000.00
030-700-713-50300  CAPITAL IMPROVEMEN 907,651.46 9912,713.003,285.00
030-700-713-50500  CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 136,473.00 22106,506.13106,506.13

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 340,752.47 511,279.16 1,933,294.17 74

-1,933,294.17-511,279.16-340,752.47

-340,752.47 -511,279.16 -1,933,294.17

910 DEBT SERVICE
EXPENDITURE:

030-910-910-60020  USDA LOAN PAYMENT-W 93,640.00 1000.000.00
030-910-910-60030  RESERVE FOR BOND PA 207,319.00 9411,659.6011,659.60
040-910-910-91061  LOAN PAYMENT - FIRE T 53,541.00 053,540.840.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 11,659.60 65,200.44 354,500.00 82

-354,500.00-65,200.44-11,659.60

-11,659.60 -65,200.44 -354,500.00

999 OTHER FUNDING USES
EXPENDITURE:

010-005-999-90000  CONTINGENCY 10,000.00 1000.000.00
030-005-999-90000  CONTINGENCY 5,000.00 1000.000.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 0.00 0.00 15,000.00 100

-15,000.000.000.00

0.00 0.00 -15,000.00

TONYA Page 10 5:31:44PM01/22/2025
fl141r07

133

BEFORE TRANSFERS 

AFTER TRANSFERS 

BEFORE TRANSFERS 

AFTER TRANSFERS 

BEFORE TRANSFERS 

AFTER TRANSFERS 

CURRENT PERIOD 



134

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 

COMMUNITY CENTER PROJECT-RECREATION COMPLEX (PHASE 2) ESTABLISHED 1/27/2020 

PAIDIN PAIDIN PAIDIN 12/31/2024 CUMULATIVE REMAINING % BUDGET 

BUDGETED FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 YEAR-TO-DATE TOTAL BALANCE REMAINING 

EXPENDITURE: 

070-300-000-19900 CONSTRUCTION COST 369,630.00 326,049.45 44,460.24 370,509.69 {879.69} 0% 

070-300-000-19002 ARCHITECTURAL FEES 14,500.00 12,872.22 1,894.80 14,767.02 (267.02) -2% 

070-300-000-19008 ENGINEERING FEES 0% 

070-300-000-19003 FIXTURES & EQUIPMENT 85,000.00 16,295.00 64,745.42 479.00 81,519.42 3,480.58 4% 

070-300-000-19007 LANDSCAPING/SITE-WORK 11,000.00 10,955.67 10,955.67 44.33 0% 

070-300-000-90000 CONTINGENCY 0% 

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 480,130.00 16,295.00 12,872.22 403,645.34 44,939.24 477,751.80 2,378.20 0% 

FINANCING SOURCE: 

070-000-300-60010 TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND 449,633.07 1,429.37 403,645.34 42,180.16 447,254.87 2,378.20 1% 

APPROPRIATED FUND BAL {FROM PHASE l} 18,997.55 16,295.00 2,702.55 18,997.55 0% 

070-000-300-60020 FUNDRAISING CONTRIBUTIONS 11,499.38 8,740.30 2,759.08 11,499.38 0% 

TOTAL FINANCING SOURCE 480,130.00 16,295.00 12,872.22 403,645.34 44,939.24 477,751.80 2,378.20 0% 



135

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 

WATER TREATMENT PLANT EXPANSION PROJECT ESTABLISHED 6/28/2021 

PAIDIN PAIDIN PAID IN PAID IN 12/31/2024 CUMULATIVE REMAINING % BUDGET 

BUDGETED FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 YEAR-TO-DATE TOTAL BALANCE REMAINING 

EXPENDITURE: 

061-300-000-19005 CONSTRUCTION ADMIN 0% 

061-300-000-19007 LEGAL SERVICES 0% 

061-300-000-19008 ENGINEERING FEES 1,068,740.00 23,850.00 316,029.98 9,375.00 242,463.75 591,718.73 477,021.27 45% 

061-300-000-19009 INTEREST ON INTERIM 0% 

061-300-000-19900 CONSTRUCTION COST 18,634,000.00 18,634,000.00 0% 

061-300-000-90000 CONTINGENCY 497,035.00 497,035.00 0% 

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 20,199,775.00 23,850.00 316,029.98 9,375.00 242,463.75 591,718.73 19,608,056.27 97% 

FINANCING SOURCE: 

061-000-300-60031 TRANSFER FROM WATER CAPITAL RESERVE 724,038.00 23,850.00 316,029.98 9,375.00 349,254.98 374,783.02 52% 

061-000-300-60030 TRANSFER FROM WATER FUND 917,342.00 242,463.75 242,463.75 674,878.25 74% 

061-000-300-60030 TRANSFER FROM WATER FUND -ARP 1,283,395.00 1,283,395.00 

061-000-300-60034 LOAN FROM GENERAL FUND 1,500,000.00 1,500,000.00 

061-000-300-60035 PROCEEDS FROM GRANT FUNDING 15,775,000.00 15,775,000.00 0% 

TOTAL FINANCING SOURCE 20,199,775.00 23,850.00 316,029.98 9,375.00 242,463.75 591,718.73 19,608,0S6.27 97% 



136

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 

WATER SYSTEM RESILIENCY PROJECT ESTABLISHED 4/24/2023 

PAID IN PAID IN 12/31/2024 CUMULATIVE REMAINING % BUDGET 

BUDGETED FY 2023 FY 2024 YEAR-TO-DATE TOTAL BALANCE REMAINING 

EXPENDITURE: 

063-300-000-19003 FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT 1,196,400.00 20,417.98 266,674.72 20,417.98 1,175,982.02 98% 

063-300-000-19005 CONSTRUCTION ADMIN 0% 

063-300-000-19007 LEGAL SERVICES 0% 

063-300-000-19008 ENGINEERING FEES 98,500.00 16,750.00 25,500.00 42,250.00 56,250.00 57% 

063-300-000-19009 INTEREST ON INTERIM 0% 

063-300-000-19900 CONSTRUCTION COST 403,600.00 403,600.00 0% 

063-300-000-90000 CONTINGENCY 0% 

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 1,698,500.00 16,750.00 45,917.98 266,674.72 62,667.98 1,635,832.02 96% 

FINANCING SOURCE: 

063-000-300-60030 TRANSFER FROM WATER FUND 1,698,500.00 16,750.00 45,917.98 266,674.72 62,667.98 1,635,832.02 96% 

TOTAL FINANCING SOURCE 1,698,500.00 16,750.00 45,917.98 266,674.72 62,667.98 1,635,832.02 96% 



137

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

GRANT PROJECT FUND 

HELENE DISASTER RESPONSE & RECOVERY - EST 11/18/2024 

12/31/2024 CUMULATIVE REMAINING % BUDGET 

BUDGETED YEAR-TO-DATE TOTAL BALANCE REMAINING 

EXP EN DITU RE: 

OS 1-300-000-19002 DEBRIS REMOVAL 3,107,713.00 338,426.90 338,426.90 2,769,286.10 89% 

051-300-000-19003 DEBRIS MANAGEMENT SITE 60,000.00 60,000.00 60,000.00 0% 

051-300-000-19005 EMERGENCY REPAIRS 107,713.00 79,126.30 79,126.30 28,586.70 0% 

051-300-000-19500 WATER LINE REPAIRS 250,000.00 243,703.80 243,703.80 6,296.20 0% 

OS 1-300-000-19510 WATER SYSTEM REPAIRS 167,714.00 74,273.85 74,273.85 93,440.15 0% 

051-300-000-19600 GRANT ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 15,000.00 15,000.00 0% 

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 3,708,140.00 795,530.85 795,530.85 2,912,609.15 79% 

FINANCING SOURCE: 

051-000-000-07073 FEMA GRANT FUNDS 3,708,140.00 795,530.85 795,530.85 2,912,609.15 79% 

TOTAL FINANCING SOURCE 3,708,140.00 795,530.85 795,530.85 2,912,609.15 79% 



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

Date of Meeting: Monday, January 27, 2025 

Subject: Planning Department Report for the 4th Quarter of Calendar 
Year 2024 and Calendar Year End 

Presenter:  Planning Director 

Attachments: Planning Department Report – Q4, 2024 and Year End 

Description: 

Attached you will find a report reflective of permits issued in October, November and 
December 2024 and Planning Board and Board of Adjustment activity during the same 
time. Year end numbers as well as year over year comparisons have also been provided. 

Action Requested: 

None 

138



Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Planning Department Report – Q4 Calendar Year 2024 
 

Zoning Permits:  Total: 31 
 
   Residential, New Construction: 21 
   Residential, Addition or Upfit: 5 
 

Commercial, New Construction: 0 
   Commercial, Addition or Upfit: 5 
 
Permitting Related to Hurricane Helene: 

• No zoning permits were applied for between September 27, 2024 (date of the storm) and 
October 22, 2024 (date of first application following the storm). 

• 3 residential zoning permits were issued as a result of damage incurred during the storm. 
These permits were issued free of charge as per the Disaster Recovery Act of 2024. 

 
Planning Department Report – Year End 2024 

 
Total Number of Zoning Permits Issued in 2024: 116 
Residential, new construction or addition or renovation: 93 
Commercial, new construction or  addition or renovation: 23 
 

Year over Year Zoning Permit Comparisons 
 
2023: Residential, 94; Commercial, 23; 117 
2022: Residential, 82; Commercial, 16: Total, 98  
2021: Residential, 155; Commercial, 27: Total, 182 
2020: Residential, 101; Commercial, 25; Total, 126 
2019: Residential, 102; Commercial, 25; Institutional, 2; Total, 129 
2018: Residential, 100; Commercial, 23; Total, 123 
2017: Residential, 102; Commercial, 18; Total, 120 
2016: Residential, 79; Commercial, 8; Total, 87 
2015: Residential, 27; Commercial, 4; Total, 31 
2014: Residential, 49; Commercial, 4; Total, 53 (with ETJ) 
 

 

139



Page 2 of 2 
 

Meetings of the Planning Board and Board of Adjustment 
 

Planning Board Activity: 
 
October: The October meeting of the Planning Board was cancelled in the aftermath of Hurricane 
Helene. 
 
November: Text Amendments previously under consideration were put on hold as staff received two 
applications for conditional districts. The Board gave initial consideration for a proposed conditional 
district for 21 Parker Cove Road and a proposed conditional district for AdventHealth near the 
intersection of 25/70 and Monticello Road. The Board also reviewed and offered a positive 
recommendation to Town Council on an update of the Comprehensive Land Use Plan. 
 
December: The Board held additional discussions on the two proposed conditional districts for 21 
Parker Cove Road and AdventHealth. Though not required, the community meeting made requisite by 
conditional districts were held for both projects between these two meetings of the Planning Board. A 
report reflective of these Community Meetings were available for the Planning Board’s consideration. 
The Planning Board offered a recommendation to Town Council on these proposed conditional 
districts.  

 
Board of Adjustment Activity: 
 
December: The Board conducted an evidentiary hearing on a proposed variance for the property 
commonly know as 9 North Street. Following the closure of the evidentiary hearing, a motion was 
made to approve the variance, but such motion only obtained 3 total votes. Therefore, the motion 
failed, and the variance was denied, as the motion failed to meet the required 4/5 standard for a vote 
on a variance. Staff has since been supplied with a compliant site plan for the subject property and 
work is underway to correct the nonconformity which was created.  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

140


	2025-1-27 Town Council Meeting Agenda
	Town Council Workshop - Dec 10 2024 - Minutes - draft - with jj revisions
	Town Council Workshop - Dec. 10 2024 Minutes
	CALL TO ORDER
	Water Requests
	75 Cole Road Renewal Request
	40 Doan Road Request
	AdventHealth Request
	21 Parker Cove Road Request

	Water Meter Conversion Project Update
	Lead Service Line Project Update
	Water Treatment Plant Update
	ADJOURNMENT

	2024-12-18 Town Council Special Called Meeting Minutes - draft
	Monthly Tax Report - Dec 2024
	Coversheet - Monthly Tax Report and Tax Releases or Refunds - Dec 2024.pdf
	2024-12 Monthly Tax Report Summary.pdf
	Weaverville December 2024 TR-401G Net Collections Report.pdf
	November 2024 NCVTS Pending Refund Report.pdf
	December 2024 NCVTS Pending Refund Report.pdf

	Conflicts of Interest Policy - January 2025
	Budget Amendment - Community Center, Police_1-27-24
	Planning Board and Tree Board Appointments
	Cooperative Interlocal Agreement - Wayfinding Signs - January 2025
	CLUP Update Agenda Item
	Binder1.pdf
	CLUP Update Agenda Item - Public Hearing.pdf


	Set PH on Text Amendments - Parking Requirements, Tree Preservation, Setback Requirements
	Text Amendments - Parking Requirements, Tree Preservation, Setback Requirements.pdf
	Text Amendments - Parking Requirements - Recommendation - January 2025.pdf
	Text Amendments - Parking Requirements - Recommendation - January 2025.pdf
	Parking Requirements Proposed Text Amendment.pdf
	Sec. 20-3501. Off-street parking.


	Staff Report - Parking Standards - 10.1.24.pdf
	Sec. 20-3501. Off-street parking.

	Text Amendments - Tree Conservation - Recommendation - January 2025.pdf
	Text Amendments - Tree Conservation - Recommendation - January 2025.pdf
	Sec._20_2309.___Conservation_subdivision_standards. (1).pdf
	Sec. 20-2309. Conservation subdivision standards.


	Staff Report - Tree Preservation - 9.3.24.pdf
	Text Amendments - Setback Requiremnts for Certain Lots - Recommendation - January 2025.pdf
	Text Amendments - Setback Requiremnts for Certain Lots - Recommendation - January 2025.pdf
	Setbacks Text Amendment.pdf
	Sec. 20-3208. Miscellaneous provisions.


	Staff Report - Setbacks.pdf
	Sec. 20-1202. Specific definitions.
	Sec. 20-3208. Miscellaneous provisions.
	Sec. 20-3208. Miscellaneous provisions.


	Interim TM Harris Town Manager January 2025 Report
	Annexation and Zoning - AdventHealth - January 2025
	Annexation and Zoning - 21 Parker Cove Road - January 2025 - with reduced maps
	Non-Discrimination Ordinance - January 2025
	Hurricane Relief Donations from Weaverville CA - January 2025
	Human Resources Audit - January 2025
	Finance Dept Quarterly Report 12-31-2024
	Quarterly Report -charts 12-31-24.pdf
	Chart2
	Chart1


	Planning Department Report - Q4, 2024
	Planning Department Report - Q4, 2024.pdf
	Zoning Permit Report - Q4 and year end 2024.pdf




